A ASIA
INSURANCE

@ COMPANY LTD




ANNUAL REPORT
2024

COMPANY L







TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chairman Message 1
Vision / Mission Statement 2
Company Information 3
Committees 4
Management ¥
Organogram 6
Statement of Ethics 7
Statement of business practices 8
Product & Services 9-10
Financial Highlights 11-13
Notice of Annual General Meeting 14-19
Directors’ Report to the Share Holders 20-38
Statement on Gender Pay Gap Under Circular 10 of 2024 30
Statement under section 46 (6) 40
Statement of Compliance with The Code of Corporate Governance 41-45
Review Report to the Members 46
Auditors' Report to the Members 47-52
Statement of Fmancial Position 53
Profit and Loss Account 54
Statement of Comprehensive Income 55
Statement of Cash Flows 56-57
Statement of Changes in Equity 58
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 59-100
Window Takaful Operations

Shariah Advisor's Report 103
Statement of Comphance With Shariah Principles 104
Shariah Auditors Report 105-106
Auditors’ Report to the Members 107-109
Statement of Financial Position 110
Profit and Loss Account 111
Statement of Comprehensive Income 112
Statement of Changes in Funds 113
Cash Flow Statement 114
Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 115-140
Branch Network 141-142
Proxy Form 143-145

A ASIA
INSURANCE

. COMPARNY LT







CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

t is of great pleasure for me to present the Annual Report of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2024. As 1 reflect on
2024, Pakistan’s economy experienced a moderate recovery in
F¥2024, achieving a GDP growth rate of 2.38%. Agriculiure
emerged as a key driver of economic expansion, supported by growth in

the industrial and service sectors. Additionally, the current account
balance improved, recording a surplus of USD 582 million. These
positive developments contributed to exchange rate stability and a
decline in inflation, leading the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to
reduce the policy rate from 22% to 13%.

Your Company had a significantly improved year in 2024 compared to
the challenges 0of 2023. Witha more favorable economic environment,
Asia Insurance achieved notable financial performance. Its combined
gross premium and contribution income saw a substantial rise of Rs.

31.537 million, marking a 2_34% increase from the previous year. The
company reported a Profit Before Tax of Rs. 243.084 million and a Profit After Tax of Rs. 168.387 million,
reflecting strong financial growth.

I am pleased to note that our journey of progress and accomplishments continued in 2024, with improved
performance despite the economic challenges faced in the previous year. This continued sustain ability and
improvement in business and operations of the Company would not have been possible without the untiring hard
work of the field force, back office staff and professional management of the Company. | am confident that the
Company's spirited manpower will continue their hard work to increase the market share of your Company
toa well-deserved level commensurate with its peers. The continued sustain ability will be sustained to encourage
all stake holders of the Company including its employees, management, shareholders and its valued clients. Under
the able guidance of its illustrious Board of Directors, the management and staff of Asia Insurance Company will
continue to remain committed to their vision, mission and core values. Your Company will continue to capitalize
the new opportunities and the development of new products and services to achieve the fulfillment of its insurance
potential. In addition to our dedicated staff and management, [ would like to also thank Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, State Bank of Pakistan, Members of Pakistan Banking Council, our Auditors, brokers
and above all our valued clients for their continued support and confidence in us.
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Qur Vision

Asia Insurance Company Limited aims to be an
ideal Insurance company with a large equity base;
o provide mote opportunitics and options for
utilization of funds and to increase profitability
through economies of scale, betfer resource
mobilization and reduction in operational cost; to
achieve this while providing better service to our
clients and stakeholders.

Ledde n
= mﬂ!uf'mgfﬂﬁ
e CREIeg j::-mi—Eg,g :

Our Mission | SOCial [T 2 ey og 671 2 1

an mu-‘m =

SUChL. &5 0_._,. Epro Jects

Provide excellent services by way of best risk iFEEEEII"Ch 0! E | B 10, Factivitl
management and hassle-free settlement of claims eam f; Q_ 10}3 EE.E?‘EE ni

through a nation-wide network of branches manned by
a sound and dynamic team to ensure good governance. Q l l
tnmmun - t t g U
=wor KiS% ra F_-T

ﬂhm\r ST

3 1"': g W E‘HC
- -t Htlulhdllq.l é: = -l; teamwork =
SCEzy P = o “management-—
= 052 culture 5 industry 3  neatth iz
=2 § goulture 3 U0

— e ! E g_hu"lf-'.h = vilie o W

: } - r H

=T statement = =

CORE VALUES =™

Dedication towards customer  services,

B S _
th ICS = gﬂﬂlb U= motivated personnel, reward them and enhance
= accountability¥°C : : : g :
values 2 e their skills, Contribute towards Company’s
= customer service , § =
- SN 8 ) TSR e S ik
business oo £=8 financial goals and focus on achieving results,
onc company's Fa Commitment towards excellence in quality of
rules = work.
c

A ASIA
_ INSURANCE

COMBANY LTD 2




COMPANY INFORMATION
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Chief Excentive Officer

Dircctors

Aundit Committee

Legal Advisor

Sharia Advisor

M. Thisham vl Hag Qureshi
{Prince Henrik Medal of Honour by Royal Kingdom of Denmark)

Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi

Mr. Thtsham ul Haq Qureshi

(Prince Henrik Medal of Honour by Royal Kingdom of Denmark)
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi

Mrs. Nosheen [htsham Qureshi

(Tamgha-g-Imtiaz by Government of Pakistan)

Mr. Wajahat Rasul Khan

Mr. Thibaud Ponchon

(Mominee Director of InsuResilience Investment Fund SICAV RAIF,
Luxembourg)

Mr.Syved Murtaza Hasnain Nadir

Mrs.Shiza Hassan

Mr_Syed Murtaza Hasnain Nadir (Chairman)
Mrs.Shiza Hassan (Member)

Mr. Thtsham ul Hagq Qureshi (Member)

Mr. Ittikhar Ahmed (Secretary)

Barister Munawar-us-Salam
Cornelius, Lane & Mufti,
Advocates and Solicitors,
Nawa-e-Wagt Building,
4-Shahra-e-Fatima Jinnah, Lahore.

Mufii Muhammad Akhlag

Share Registrar Corplink (Pvt.) Limited,
Wings Arcade, |-K,
Muodel Town, Lahore.
CFO Ms. Rafia Ashrat CA (Final), MBA (Malaysia)

Company Secrctary/

M. Shazia Hafeez (B.5c.) (LL.B,)

Compliance Officer
Internal Auditor Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed CA (Final), APFA, MBA, CICA
Auditors llyas Saeed &Company
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Management Committees

Risk Management & Compliance Committee

Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Chairman
Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Member
Mr. Muhammad Masood Member
Ms. Shazia Hafeez Secretary
Underwriting Committee
Mr. Thtisham ul Hag Qureshi Chairman
Mrs. Nosheen Thtisham Member
Mr. Faisal Mehmood Qureshi Member
Mr. Amjad Rao Secretary
Claim Settlement Committee
Mrs.Shiza Hassan Chairman
Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Member
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Member
Mr. Asif Ali Mughal Secretary
Reinsurance & Co-insurance Committee
Mr. Thtisham ul Hag Qureshi Chairman
Mr. Zain ul Haq Qureshi Member
Ms. Rafia Ashraf (CT(Q) Member
Mr. Muhammad Masood Secretary
Board Commitiees

Ethic, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Wajahat Rasul Khan Chairman
Mrs. Nosheen Thtsham Member
Mr. Thtisham ul Hag Qureshi Member
Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Secretary
Investment Committee

Mr. Thtisham ul Hag Qureshi Chairman
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Member
Mr. Wajahat Rasul Khan Member
Ms. Rafia Ashraf (CFO) Secretary
Audit Committee

Mr.Syed Murtaza Hasnain Chairman
Mr. Thtisham ul Hag Qureshi Member
Mrs. Shiza Hassan Member
Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Secretary
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MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zain ul Haq Qureshi

Ms. Rafia Ashraf

Ms. Shazia Hafeez

Mr. Riaz Hussain Shah

Mr. Saad Masood

Mr. Shahbaz Hameed

Mr. M. Amjad Rao

Mr. Gulfaraz Anis

Mr. M. Imran Qureshi

Mr, Muhammad Ahmad Chauhan
Mr. Iftikhar Ahmad

Mr. Asif Ali Mughal

Mr. Muhammad Masood

Mr. Amjad Hussain

Mr. Faisal Mehmood Qureshi
Mr. Muhammad Ali Magsood
Mr. Waqas Waheed

Mr. Asif Masood Bhatti

Chiet Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary & Compliance Otficer
Executive Vice President (EVP)

Assistant General Manager Human Resources
Deputy General Manager Legal

Deputy General Manager/Controller of Branches
Deputy General Manager MIS

Agn & Corporate Head

Head of Corporate Health

Head of Internal Audit

Head of Claims/Grievance

Head of Reinsurance/Risk Management

Head of Travel & Recovery

Head of Underwriting

Seiner Manager Accounts

Team Lead Window Takaful

Cieneral Manager South

Mr. M. Mudassar Janjua Head of Digital Channel
Registered & Head Asia House, 19 C/D, Block-L, Gulberg I11, Main Ferozpur
Oftfice: Road, Lahore, Pakistan.
Phone: +92-42-35863575-78
Fax: +02-42-35865579
UAN: +02-311-111-ASIA (2742)
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Statement of Ethics

All Directors and stafT are required to:

¢ Act with mtegnty, dignity and in an ethical manner when dealing with the public, clients and
peers.

e Protect the confidentiality of client information at all times except where required by law to
discloseit.

® Protect the confidentiality of mformation relating to the Company both during the course of
Directorship or employment (as the case may be) and after its termination (regardless of reason).

® Obtain written permission from the Company's Comphiance Officer (or the Chief Executive Officer in
the event that the Comphance Officer is Unavailable) to hold any position (paid or unpaid) with any
outside party, firm or organization. For clanty, positions covered include but are not limited to
consultant, employee, Director, representative and agent. Directors are exempt from the requirement.

e Maintain accurate records of business transactions related to the Company or its clients.

® Report any business or professional activity that may result in a conflict with or be competitive with
the interest of the Company.

® Report any person or activity to the Compliance Officer or their opmnion is m violation of this
statement.

® Disclose therr shareholding mn the Company's securiies upon agreement and any changes in
shareholding within 24 hours of any such change.

® Every Director and employee who has knowledge of confidential matenal information of the
Company's afTairs is prohibited from trading in shares of the Company.
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Statement of Business Practices

® Uncompromising Integrity:
Our business i1s founded on trust and we manage it ethically, lawfully and fairly. It is our objective to
conduct business with reputable clients and business partners who are involved in lawful business
activities. We do not facilitate money laundening.

e Clients’ Interest:
Nothing we do 1s more important than shielding and preserving our chients' lawful interests. We hold
responsibilities towards our clients in the highest regard.

¢ Entreprencurship:
We work hard every day to hire the best people, stimulate them, reward them and endorse them to
innovate. We are an equal opportunity employer.

¢ Zeal for Performance:
We contribute towards our Company's financial goals and focus on achieving better results.

e ACulture of Distinction:
‘We measure our performance on every task we undertake not just by the results but also by the quality
ofourwork.

e ATradition of Success:
While we are fair and ethical at all imes, we compete fairly with the quality and the price of our
mnovative products and services, not by offering improper benefits to others. Employees are not
permitted to use their jobs to solicit, to demand, accept, obtain or be promised advantages.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
a CONVENTIONAL INSURANCE BUSINESS:

e Motor Insurance
We provide complete Auto Insurance plans for both individuals and corporate chients, covering
accidental damage, theft, snatching, armed hold up, third party hability and terronsm. Thisis
backed up with the liberty to have your vehicle repaired at the workshop of your own choice.

® Property Insurance
We provide insurance coverage to your homes, offices & lactonies agamst accidental fire, lightning
and allied penls like Riot & Strike Damage, Malicious Damage, Earthquake (Fire and Shock),
Explosion, Atmosphernic Disturbance, Impact Damage, Burglary ete.

e Marine Insurance
We provide insurance coverage for the imports and exports of consignments, loss or damage of cargo
during transit by air, sea and rail/road. It also covers dispatching of finished goods from the insured's
premises to anywhere within and outside Pakistan.

e Agriculture Insurance
We provide msurance coverage against agriculture loans disbursed by banks, which cover insurance
of crops and livestock, as well as farm implements like tractors and harvesters.

e Travel Insurance
We provide bank guarantees for travel agents and travel insurance service for our corporate clients,
mndividuals, students and special packages for Hajj and Ummrah tour operators and groups. Our
travel insurance policies are approved for travel around the world, including the Schengen States.

e Miscellaneous Insurance
We also provide customized insurance solutions for our corporate chents, the covers range from the
msurance of engineering projects to electrical equipment and machinery breakdown, contractor all
risks, erection all nisk, bonds and guarantees.

e Health Insurance
We provide health insurance services to corporate employees and their famihies to safe guard against
mjuries and accidents in the course of daily life. We are also providing personal aceident insurance for
individuals and special policy for school going children.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
b. TAKAFUL BUSINESS:

¢ Motor Takaful
We offer complete Auto Takaful plans for both individuals and corporate clients, covering accidental
damage, theft, snatching, armed hold up, third party liability and terrorism. This is backed up with the
liberty to have your vehicle repaired at the workshop of your own choice.

¢ Property Takaful
We provide takaful coverage to your homes, offices & [actories against accidental fire, hightning and
allied perils like Riot & Strike Damage, Malicious Damage, Earthquake (Fire and Shock), Explosion,
Atmospheric Disturbance, Impact Damage, Burglary ete.

e Marine Takaful
We provide takalul coverage for the imports and exports of consignments, loss or damage of cargo
during transit by air, sea and rail/road. It also covers dispatching of finished goods from the insured's
premises to anywhere within and outside Pakistan.

e Miscellancous Takaful
We also provide customized takaful solutions for our corporate chients, the covers range from the
takaful of engineering projects to electrical equipment and machinery breakdown, contractor
all risks, erection all risk, money takaful, plate glass.

¢ Health Takaful
We provide health takaful services to corporate employees and their families to safe guard against
injuries and accidents in the course of daily life. We are also providing personal accident takaful for
mdividuals.
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Financial Highlights — Performance at a glance
(Graphical Presentation)
(Rupees in Thousand)

Business written - Conventional and Takaful
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The company has sustained its premium and contribution growth for the fifth year in a row. During the
current yvear, Company has achieved |38 billion rupees total Gross Written Premium and Gross Written
Contribution in 2024 which depicts an increase of 2% as compared to last vear.

Profitability
r
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With the adverse economic indicators, the company still managed to post along with expansion of its
branch network. The company is continuously making efforts to reduce its clam cost by focussing on the
risk management process while underwriting the business.
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Financial Highlights - Performance at a glance
(Graphical Presentation)

(Rupees in Thousand)
Investments & Total Assets
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Healthier increase in total assets over the period of 5 years, shows company's prudent policies regarding
safety of shareholders' investments along with growth.

Equity
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® Paidup Capital = Equity

Consistent hard work and diligent business strategy adopted by the Company’s management
resulted in persistent growth in the value of shareholder’s wealth.

ASIA
INSURANCE

COMPANY LTD

12




Financial Highlights - Performance at a glance
(Graphical Presentation)
(Rupees in Thousand)

Particulars 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Rupees in Thousands
CONVENTIONAL
Paidup Capital 730,082 730,082 730,082 663711 603,373
‘Total Assets 2.386.571 2,100,813 2,073,356 1,870,807 1,736,613
Equity 1.037.202 05319 837.620 951,053 084 8BR7
[Cash and Bank Deposit 61,560 309,942 437421 275208 116,685
|Gross Premium 1,234,774 1.219.521 1,001,553 923509 607,062
Net Premium Revenue 900, 8R0 £27.145 735276 593 676 471 450
Gross Claim Paid 452 525 543533 368,589 248,575 238.051
Mel Claim Expense 365,781 278,741 293 086 166,803 145,131
Under Writing Profit / (Loss) 15,951 7,272 (74.576) 6,503 (25,571)
Profil | (Loss) Before Tax 243,083 157,406 (91,229} 37,340 87.623
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 168,387 83.699 (73.831) 26,813 41,301
Invesimeni Income (Loss) 151,570 53,804 (29.044) 19259 110,631
(Loss)/Earning Per Share (Rs. 2.31 1.17 {1.01) 0.40 .62
TAKAFUL
PI¥
| Gross Contribution 145,568 129 284 100,408 17,339 73,003
Net Contribuiion Revenue 39,113 37.113 28,277 23,488 23,735
Gross Claim Paid 34,627 62,069 10,246 26,269 27.217
Nel Claim Expense 44,933 49200 28.394 25489 23.977
Under Writing Profit / (Loss) (9.040) (13.599) (329) (1.904) 172
Invesiment Income = = = = =
OPF
Investment Income 11,529 12,078 2,890 2477 3.111
ASIA
== INSURANCE
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 44 Annual General Meeting “AGM” of the members of the Asia Insurance
Company Limited (the “Company™) shall be held on Thursday, the April 24", 2025, at 11:00 AM at 19 C/D,
Block L, Gulberg IT1, Lahore, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toconfirm the minutes of the 43 Annual General Meeting held on April 29% 2024.

2. Toreceive, consider, and adopt the Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended December
31,2024 together with Directors’ and Auditors' report thereon.

3. To re-appoint M/s llyas Saeced & Co., Chartered Accountant as Auditors of the Company and fix their
remuneration for the year ending December 31, 2025.

4. Toconsider any other business ofthe Company with the permission of the Chair.

Lahore. By order of the Board
April 3, 2025

Shazia Hafeez
Company Sccretary

NOTES:

1. Shareholders interested in attending the AGM through Zoom Application will be requested to get
themselves registered with the Company Secretary office at least 2 working days before AGM at
email address corporate(@asiainsurance.com.pk or may whatsapp or sms on 03154008755 by
providing the following detail:

Mame of Sharcholder CNIC No. Folio/CDS No. Ccll No. Email Addrcss

Login [acility will be opened thirty minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to
join the meeting after identification process. Shareholders will be able to login and participate in
the AGM proceeding in person or through proxy, through their devices after completing all the
formahities required for the identification and venfication of the shareholders.

2. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 17-04-2025 to 24-04-2025 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received to our Shares Registrar M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Model Town, Lahore, by the close of business on 16-04-2025 will be treated as being in time for the purpose
and to attend the meeting.

3. AMemberentitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another Member as his/her proxy to attend
the meeting and vote for him/her. Instruments appointing proxies, in order to be effective, must reach the
Repistered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting, duly signed / notarized certified
copy, as the case may be.

4. Shareholders are required to immediately notify the company of any change to their postal addresses.

5. CDC Account Holders are required to follow guidelines provided in Circular 1, dated January 26, 2000
(issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan):

A ASIA
B D o 14




Attending the Mecting

i. Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate
their identity by showing their original CNIC or original passport at the time ofattending the meeting.

ii. In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee (along with CNIC) shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

Appointing Proxies

i. [Incaseofindividual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the

proxy form as provided above.

il. The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall
be mentioned on the form.

iii. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.

iv. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v. Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney with specimen signaiure
{and attested copy of CNIC of nominee) shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.

6. Members are requested to notify/submit the following in case of book entry securities in CDC to respective

A ASIA
INSURANCE

CDC participants and in case of physical shares to the Company's Share Registrar, if not earlier
provided/notified:

a. Change in their addresses

b. Valid and legible photocopies of CNIC, for individual and NTN both for individual & Corporate entities.

7. The members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in the city, can also avail video
conference facility under the provisions of section 134 (1) (b) of the Act to participate in the meeting. The
consent of such members must reach at the registered office of the Company at least 10 days before the

meeting.
8. Transmission of the annual audited financial statements through gr-enabled code and email:
The Annual Report, including the Financial Statements of the Company, can be viewed using the

following QR-enabled code. -

The same will be shared via email in case an email address is provided by the members. A printed
copy of the above referred Annual Report can be provided to members upon request.
9. Availability of audited financial statement on the company's website:
The financial statements and reporis have been placed on the website of the Company
www.asiainsurance.com.pk
10. Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements under Sections 143-145
ofthe Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

COMBANY LTD 15



11. Incompliance of Section 244 of the Act, the Company uploaded the details of unclaimed dividend on its
website and submitted a statement to the Commission through e-services portal, stating the amount of
dividend, which remained unclaimed for a period of 3 years from the date it was due.

12. Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Accounts:

The Secunties and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its circular # CSD/ED/Misc./2016-
639-640 dated March 26, 2021, has advised the hsted companies to pursue their such members who
still hold shares in physical form, to convert their shares into book entry form. We hereby request
all members who are holding shares in physical form to convert their shares into book-entry form at
the earliest. They are also suggested to contact the Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited or any member/stockbroker of the Pakistan Stock Exchange to open an account in the
Central Depository System and to facilitale conversion of physical shares into book-entry form.
Members are informed that holding shares i book-entry form has several benefits including but
not hmited to secure and convenient custody of shares, convenently tradeable and transferable, no
risk of loss, damage or thefl, no stamp duty on transfer of shares in book-entry form and hassle-free
credit of bonus or night shares. We once again strongly advise shareholders of the Company, in their
best interest, lo convert their physical shares mto book-entry form at the earhiest.
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Dear Sharcholders!

The Directors of Asia Insurance Company Limited (“the Company™) take pleasure in presenting the
annual report of your company, together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
December31,2024.

The Director's Report prepared under Sections 226 and 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Code of
Corporate Governance, will be put forward to the members at the 44" Annual General Meeting of
Company to be held on 24th Apnl, 2025.

Directors' Report
For the year ended December 31, 2024

State of Company’s Affairs and Business Overview

Pakistan’s economy saw a modest recovery in FY2024, with GDP growing by 2.38%. The
agricultural sector played a key role in drniving economic growth, complemented by contnibutions
from the industrial and service sectors. Moreover, the current account balance tumed positive,
recording a surplus of USD 582 million. These improvements contributed to exchange rate stability
and lower inflation, leading the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to cut the policy rate from 22% to 13%.

In 2024, your Company experienced a robust year, benefiting from a more favourable economic
environment. The management continued to closely monitor market conditions and implement
effective strategies to enhance operational and financial performance. As a result, the Company
achieved steady growth throughout the year. With improved economic stability and strategic
initiatives, your Company delivered impressive results, posting a Profit Before Tax of Rs. 168.387
million.

Window Takaful Operations

The wntlen contribution for the year was Rs145.568 million; while net contribution revenue was
Rs.39.113 million. Participants' Takaful Fund Contribution Surplus for the year was Rs. 5.471 million
and profit from Operator's Funds (for shareholders) for the year was Rs.35.412 mlhon.

Financial Results
Following 1s the overall performance of the Company for the year ended December31, 2024,
2024 2023
Gross Premium 1,234,774.434  1,219,521,663
Profit for the year before tax 243,083,991 157,406,936
Taxation:
Current 51,715,021 34,301 391
Deferred 21,245,882 46,597,145
Prior Year (187.607) (9,190,896)
Super Tax 1,923 465 0
74,696,761 71,707,640
(Loss) for the year after tax 168,387,230 85,609 296
Un-appropriated profit brought forward 102,819,333 35,120,307
Qard-c-Hasna 1] (18,000,000)
Final Dividend Paid 0 0
Un-appropriated profit carried forward 234,702,442 102,819,333
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Dividend

The Board ol Directors has decided not to declare any dividend for the financial year in order to retain
profits for strengthening the company’s capital base and supporting future growth mitiatives.
Earnings per Share

(Loss) / Earnings per share 1s Rs 2.31

(Loss) / Earnings per share shows increase of 1.14 per share as compared to the last year.
Election of Directors and Composition of Board

The Election of Directors held on January 9, 2024 afier the completion of the term of Directors and
seven (7) directors (two Female and five male directors) elected in Extraordimary General Meeting.
Compositionof the Board is as under:

No. | Name of the elected Director Category
1. | Mrs. Nosheen Thtsham Female Director (Non-Executive)
2. | Mr. Wajahai Rasul Khan
3. | Mr Syed Murtaza Hasnain Nadir Indcpenmdent Directors
4. | Mr Thtsham ul Haq Qureshi
5. | Mr. Thibaud Ponchon Non-Executive Directors
6. | Mrs. Shiza Hassan
7. | Mr. Zan ul Haq Qureshi Executive Director

Remuneration Policy of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors

In order to comply with the Companies Act, 2017, Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance,
Regulations 2019 and Articles of Association of the Company, the Company has policy with respect to
the remuneration of Executive, Non-executive and Independent directors.
The Non-Executive and Independent Directors are not paid employees of the Company and are not
mvolved in its day-to-day running. The non-executive and Independent directors are entitled to
receive a meeting fee.

Insurer Financial Rating Strength

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has upgraded the IFS rating of the Company as
“A++" on 23 August, 2024, This rating denotes a strong capacity to meet policyholders® and
contractual obligations and reflects the gains achieved by the management in core insurance business.
Related Party Transactions

At each board meeting the Board of Directors approves Company's transactions with Associated
Companies / Related parties. All the transactions executed with related parties are on arm's length
basis.

Risk Management Policy and Know Your Customer Policy

The Company has developed and implemented a nsk management policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company. Our Company’s Risk Management approach 1s
made for quahtative evaluation of risk and mmimzing 1ts hazards. The same has also been adopted by
your Board and 1s also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures
have been formulated and clearly spelled out m the said guidelines.

In addition to the Risk Management Policy, the Board has approved Know Your Customer Policy as
formulated and recommended by the Risk Management and Comphance Committee.
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A Compliance Program is also in place, which ensure and provide guidelines that relevant Laws are
complied with in letter and spint.

Internal Control

The system of internal controls is sound and 1s being implemented and monitored by the Internal Audit
Department. This i1s a continuing process and any weaknesses are identified and removed. Further,
same is regularly reviewed by the Board.

Committees
The Board m compliance with the Code of Corporate Govermnance has established followng
committees; Management Committees
Risk Management & Compliance Committee
Name of the Member Category Meetings Held | Meetings Attended
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Chairman - 4
Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Member - 4
Mr. Muhammad Masood Member e 4
Ms. Shazia Hafeez Secretary 4 4
Underwriting Committee
Name of the Member Category Meetings Held | Meefings Attended
Mr. Thisham ul Haq Qureshi Chairman 4 4
Mrs. Nosheen Ithsham Member -+ 4
Mr. Faisal Mehmood Qureshi Member 4 4
Mr. Amjad Rao Secretary - 4
Claim settlement Committee
Name of the Member Category Meetings Held | Meetings Attended
Mrs. Shiza Hassan Chairman 4 4
Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Member 4 4
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Member 4 4
Mr. Asif Ali Mughal Secretary 4 4
Reinsurance & Co-insurance Committee
Name of the Member Category Meetings Held | Meetings Attended
Mr. Thtsham ul Haq Qureshi Chairman - 4
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Member - 4
Ms. Rafia Ashral Member - 4
Mr. Muhammad Masood | Secretary -+ 4
Board Committees
Ethic, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
Name of the Member Category Mpeetings Held | Meetings Attended
| Mr. Wajahat Rasul Khan Chairman i .
Mrs. Nosheen Thtsham T Member - . 4
Mr. IThtsham ul Haq Qureshi Member 4 4
Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Secretary 4 4
Investment Committee
Name of the Member Category Meetings Held | Mectings Attended
Mr. Thisham ul Haq Qureshi | Chairman 4 4
Mr. Zain ul Haq Qureshi Member 4 4
Mr. Wajahat Rasul Khan Member 4 4
Ms. Rafia Ashraf Secretary - 4
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Audit Committee
i Ni.me of the Mmbir_ Category Mm:tin;s Held | Meetings Attended
_Mr. "} yad Murtaza Hasnaimm Nadir ] Chairman [\ i)
M. Ihtsham ul Haq Qureshi | Member 6 6
. Mrs. Shiza Hassan Member 6 2
Mr. Thibaud Ponchon Memb 6 3
(resigned on 25 July 2024) et
Mr. Ifnkhar Ahmed Secretary 6 5
Branch Network

Your company is fully aware of the fact that the network of feasible and profitable branches must be
established in as many cities of Pakistan as possible. Our aims and objectives of opening branches are
to provide excellent services to our esteemed chients and prompt settlement of claims besides ensuring
ultimate profitability for the shareholders through prudent underwriting and cost efficiency.
Statement of Investment of Provident Fund

The company operates an approved provident fund scheme covering all its permanent employees. The
investment balances are as follows:

Particulars December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Rupees Rupees
Investment 65,520,005 55,128,036

Annual Evaluation of Board's Performance
The Board has placed a mechanism to evaluate 1is performance annually as required by the Code of
Corporate Governance. The mechanism devised is based on the emerging and leading trends on the
functioning of the Board and improving its effectiveness.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal nisk the Company faces under imsurance contracts 1s the possibility that the insured event
occurs, the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claims 1.e. the frequency and seventy of claims
and that the actual claims and benefil payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities.
By the very nature of an msurance contract, this nsk 1s random and therefore unpredictable. The
objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these habilities.
The Company manages these nisks through its underwnting strategy, adequate reinsurance
arrangements and proactive claims handling. The underwnting strategy aims (o minimize insurance
risks with a balanced mix and spread of business classes and by observing underwniting guidehnes and
limits. The Company underwrites mainly property, motor, marine cargo and transportation and other
miscellaneous general insurance business. These classes of insurance are generally regarded as short
term insurance contracts where claims are normally mtimated and settled within a short time span,
usually one year. This helps to mitigate insurance risk.

Risk Management Function

Your Company established a Risk Management Function. It 1s overseen by the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee to identify and monitor nisks associated with various operations of the
Company.

Asia Insurance Company is committed to enhancing its overall profitability through optimization of
value added activities, while maintaining a strong risk-adjusted capitalization.

Corporate Bricfing Session

Corporate Briefing Session was held on 23rd May, 2024 for shareholders and analysts as per
requirement of Pakistan Stock Exchange. Company’s senior management shareholders and analysts
attended the session.
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Statement of Ethics and Business Practices

The Board has adopted the Statement of Ethics and Business Practices. All employees are informed of
this statement and are required to observe these rules of conduct in relation to business and regulations.

Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the regulatory authorities have been
duly complied with. a statement to this effect 1s annexed in the report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Your company fully understands its corporate responsibility towards society by providing equal
employment opportunities for persons with disabilities and promoting gender equality in the
workplace. We offer financial support to our deserving employees, contnibute a considerable amount
to the national exchequer, and implement solutions for energy conservation and environmental
protection.

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety, and the environment to
ensure the well-being of the people who work with us, as well as the communities where we operate.
By fostering an inclusive workplace that values diversity, we aim to empower all individuals,
regardless of gender, and create equal opportunities for growth and advancement.
Compliance with AML/CFT Laws
The Company has duly complied with the AML/CFT laws of the country and timely reporting in this
regard has been done.
Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

(a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes m equity,

(b) Properbooks of accounts have been maintained by the Company,

(c) Appropnate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments,

(d) The International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of financial statement and any departure from there has been adequately disclosed,

(e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored,

() There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,

() There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in
the listing regulations,

(h) Thekey operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed,

(1) The value of investments of provident fund based on their audited accounts as on December 31, 2024
was Rs. 65,520,005.

i) The statement of pattern of shareholding in the Com as at 31 December 2024 15 included with the
P pany
Report
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Key Financial Data
Key operational and financial daia for the last 5 years 15 as follows:

Particulars 2024 | 2023 | 20m2 2021 2020
Rupees in Thousands
CONVENTIONAL
Paidup Capital 730,082 730,082 730,082 663,711 603,373
‘Total Assels 2,386,571 2100813 2073356 1,870,807 1.736.613
Equity 1,037,202 905,319 £37.620 951,053 084,887
Cash and Bank Deposit 61,560 399,942 437,421 275208 116,685
(Gross Premium 1.234.774 1,219,521 1,001,553 923,509 607,062
Net Premium Revenue 99(),880 827,145 735,276 593.676 471,450
Gross Claim Paid 452,525 543,533 368,589 248,575 238,051
Net Claim Expense 365,787 278741 203,086 166,803 145,131
Under Writing Profit / (Loss) 15,951 1272 (74,576) 6,503 (25,571)
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 243,083 157.406 (91,229) 37,340 87.623
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 151,570 §5.699 (73.831) 26,813 41301
Investment Income (Loss) 168,387 53.804 (29.044) 19,259 110,631
(Loss)/Earning Per Share (Rs.) 231 117 (1.01) 0.40 0.62
TAKAFUL
PTF
Gross Contribution 145,568 129,284 100,408 77.339 73.003
Net Contribution Revenue 39,113 37,113 28277 23 488 23,735
Gross Claim Paid 34,627 62,069 10,246 26,269 27217
Net Claim Expense 44933 49200 28,394 25,489 23977
Under Writing Profit / (Loss) (9,040) (15.599) (329) (1.904) 172
Investment Income - = 2 E -
OPF
Investment Income 11,529 12,078 2,890 2477 311

Board Meetings

During the year ended December 31, 2024 following meetings of the Board of Dircctors were held and attended by the
Dircctors as below:

Name of Directors Meetings Held | Meetings Attended |
Mr. Thtisham ul Hag Qureshi 5 '
Mr. Zain ul Haq Qu..rﬁ.shi T
Mr. Thibaud Ponchon

Mrs. Nosheen Ihtsham

Mr. Wajahat Rasul Khan
Mrs. Shiza Hassan
Mr. Syed Murtaza Hasnain Nadir

U‘I'-J'IU'I'J‘HU'IU'II
W g wn o e

Leave ol absence was granted to those Directors who could not attend the Board Meeting,

ASIA
= INSURANCE

COMBANY LTD 25




Internal Audit:

The Company has an mdependent Internal Audit function. The Audit Committee reviews the
appropriateness and authority of this function on a quarterly basis. The Head of Internal Audit
functionally reports to the Audit Committee. The Audit Commuittee approves the audit plan, based on
an annual and quarterly assessment of the operating areas. The Internal Audit function carmes out
reviews on the financial, operational and compliance controls, and reports the findings to the Audit
Committee.

External Auditors:

The present Auditors M/s. Ilyas Saeced & Company, Chartered Accountants, have completed their
assignment for the year ended December 31, 2024, and shall retire on the conclusion of 44" General
Meeting schedule for April 247, 2025

Company's relations with stakeholders

We have a very positive and practical approach towards relations with vanous stakeholders
particularly with regulatory authonities 1.e. Secunities and Exchange Commussion of Pakistan (SECP),
Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), other Insurance Companies, the
Reinsurers and the Insurance Association of Pakistan (IAP). The Company Secretary 1s responsible
for adhening and implementing all the applicable laws, regulations and conventions in order to keep
the organization at its highest.

Future Outlook

To achieve lasting economic recovery in 2025, the Government of Pakistan aims to introduce
extensive reforms in taxation, energy, and public sector governance. Moreover, ongoing financial
support from international orgamizations will play a crucial role in managing debt and ensuring
economic stability.

Asia Insurance, being a dynamic organization that has demonstrated its resilience and determination
to grow and thrive, overcoming multiple challenges over the years, 1s committed to bringing quality
products to market while providing the best service at the lowest cost.

However, the Company will continue to focus its momentum of growth in premium while at the same
time maintaining profitability of decent standard.

Pattern of shareholding is attached with this report.

We would like to thank our valued customers for their continued patronage and support and to
Pakistan Reimnsurance Company Limited, Secunities and Exchange Commussion of Pakistan and State
Bank of Pakistan for their gmidance and assistance.

It 15 a matter of deep gratilication for your Directors to place on record their appreciation of the efforts

made by officers, field force and stafT who had contributed to the growth of the Company and the
continued success of'1ts operations.

4]
L
gﬂiﬂ
Chief Executive (fficer Director
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 FORM 20
(Section 227(2)(D)

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

I.1 MName of the Company ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 12/31/2024
——Sharcholdings-——-
2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
116 1 100 1.006
15 101 500 3,809
10 501 1,000 1.939
8 1,001 5,000 21,983
2 40,001 45,000 13,911
7 100,001 105,000 125,414
1 435,001 440,000 438,340
1 990,001 995,000 993,654
1 1,015,001 1,020,000 1,017,288
1 2,135,001 2,140,000 2,138,251
1 2,770,001 2,775,000 2,773,485
1 18,555,001 18,560,000 18,558,243
1 46,910,001 46,915,000 46,914,920
160 73,008,243
2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 49.499.773 67.8003%
and their spouse and minor children
2.3.2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related - -
parties. (Parent Company)
2.3.3 NIT and ICP e ==
2.3.4 Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non - -
Banking Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies 23,686 0.0324%
2.3.6 Modarabas and MutualFunds - -
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% or more 65,473,163 89.6791%
2.3.8 General Public
a. Local 3,932,282 5.3860%
b. Foreign - -
2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
- Joint Stock Companies 605 0.0008%
- Government Holding 993,654 1.3610%
- Foreign Companies 18,558,243 25.4194%
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AS ON 31st DECEMBER, 2024
S.No. NAME HOLDING %AGE
DIRECTORS, CEO THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN:
46,914,920 64.2598
I MR. IHTSHAM UL HAQ QURESHI (CDC)
2 MRS. NOSHEEN IHTSHAM (CDC) 438,340 0.6004
3 MR. ZAIN UL HAQ QURESHI (CDC) 3,780 0.0052
MR. ZAIN UL HAQ QURESHI (CDC) 2,138,251 2.9288
4 MRS. SHIZA HASSAN W/O HASSAN AHMED KHAN (CDC) 3,116 0.0043
5 MR. THIBAUD PONCHON 0 0.0000
6 MR.SYED MURTAZA HASNAIN NADIR 2 0.0000
7 MR. WAJAHAT RASUL KHAN 30 0.0000
MR. HASAN AHMAD KHAN (SPOUSE) 1,334 0.0018
49.499.773 67.8003
INSURANCE COMPANIES:
I PAKISTAN REISURANCE COMPANY LIMITED. (CDC) 23,686 0.0324
23 686 0.0324
FOREIGN COMPANIES
I INSURESILIENCE INVESTMENT FUND (CDC) 18,558,243 25.4194
18,558.243 25.4194
GOVERNMENT HOLDING
| FEDERAL BOARD OF REVENUE (CDC) 993,654 13610
993 654 1.3610
JOINT STOCK COMPANIES
I SARFARAZ MAHMOOD (PRIVATE) LTD (CDC) 605 0.0008
605 0.0008
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN): 0 0.0000
SHARES HELD BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL); 3,932,260 5.3860
3,932,260 5.3860

TOTAL: 73,008,243 100.0000
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL:

S.No. NAME HOLDING %AGE
I MR. IHTSHAM UL HAQ QURESHI 46,914,920 64.2598
2 INSURESILIENCE INVESTMENT FUND (CDC) 18,558,243 25.4194
65,473,163 89.6791
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF TOTAL CAPITAL:
S.No. NAME HOLDING %AGE
I MR. IHTSHAM UL HAQ QURESHI (CDC) 0,914,720 89238
2 INSURESILIENCE INVESTMENT FUND (CDC) 18,558,243 254194
65,473,163 89.6791

During the financial year there was no trading in shares of the company by the Directors, CEO, CFO,
Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children.
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Statement on Gender Pay Gap Under Circular 10 of 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended December 31, 2024:
(1) Mean Gender Pay Gap:
-22.12%
(i) Median Gender Pay Gap:
-5.58%
L
Z20=
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Statement Under Section 46 (6) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

The incharge of the management of the business was Mr. Zain ul Haq Qureshi, Chiel Executive
Officer and the report on the affairs of business during the year 2024 signed by Mr. Zain ul Haq
Qureshi and approved by the Board of Directors is part of the Annual Report 2024 under the title of
“Darectors’ Report to Members™ and

a. in our opimon the annual statutory accounts of the Asia Insurance Co. Ltd. set out in the forms
attached to the statement have been drawn up in accordance with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
(Ordinance) and any rules made thereunder.

b. Asia Insurance Co. Ltd. has at all times in the year complied with the provisions of the Ordinance and
the rules made thereunder relating to paid-up capital, solvency and re- insurance arrangements; and

¢. As at the date of the statement, the Asia Insurance Co. Ltd. continues to be in comphiance with the
provisions of the Ordinance and the rules made thereunder relating to paid-up capital, solvency and
re-insurance arrangements.
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of

Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
Asia Insurance Company Limited (The Company)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers,
2016, (the Code) and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,2019(the
Regulations) for the purpose of establishing a framework ol good governance, whereby the company 1s
managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.
The company has applied principles contained in the Code and has complied with the requirements of the
Regulations in the following manner:
. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:
a) Male: Five(5)
b) Female: Two(2)
2. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors

representing minority on its Board of Directors (the Board). At present the composition of the Board
is as follows:

Names Category
Mr. Wajahat Rasul Khan a) Independent Directors
Mr. Syed Murtaza Hasnain Nadir
Mr. [htsham ul Haq Qureshi b) Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Thibaud Ponchon (Nominee Director)
Mr. Zain ul Haq Qureshi ¢) Executive Directors
Mrs. Nosheen Thtsham d) Female Directors (Nonexecutive)

Mrs. Shiza Hassan
The independent directors meet the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code and CCG 2019.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them 1s serving as a director in more than seven hsted
companies, including this company.

4. All the resident directors of the company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted
in payment of any loan to a banking company. A Development Financial Institution or a Non
Banking Financial Institution or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a
defaulter by a stock exchange.

5. There was no casual vacancy occurred on Board during the year 2024, however, the Elections of
Dhirectors held on 9 January 2024,

6. The Company has prepared a “Statement of Ethics and Business Practices” as Code of Conduct and
has ensured the appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along
with its supporting policies and procedures.

7. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating 1s maintained by the Company.
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10.

11.
12.
13.

14.
15
16.

17.
18.

L

All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by the Board/ sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations. The decision on material transactions, including appointment and determination of
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chiel Executive Officer, other
executive directors and the key officers have been taken by the Board.

The meeting of the Board was presided over the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. The Board has complied
with the requirements of Act and the CCG 2019 with respect to frequency, recording and circulating
minutes of meeting of the Board. Wnitten notice of the Board meetings, along with the agenda and
working papers, were circulated at least seven (7) days before the meeting. The minutes of the
meeting were appropriately recorded and eirculated.

The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
m accordance with the Act and the Regulations.

Out of seven Directors, four (4)have completed the tramning and one (1) [emale director 1s exempted
from such certification. Rest of 2 newly elected directors will obtain the said traning within the
stipulated time period.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, which is effectively implemented at all
levels with the company. The company has adopted and comphed wath all the necessary aspects of
internal controls given in the Code.

The Board has approved appointment of Chiefl Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, mcluding their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment, at the ime of
their appointment.

The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in comphiance with the requirements ol
the Code and Regulations and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by Chiel Executive Officer and Chiefl
Financial Officer before approval of the Board.

The Directors, Chief Executive Officer and other executives do not hold any interest in the shares of
the company other than disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

The Board has formed the following Management Committees:

Underwriting Committee:

Name of Member Category

Mr. Ihtsham ul Hag Qureshi Chairman

Mrs. Nosheen Thisham Member

Mr. Faisal Mehmood Qureshi Member

Mr. Amjad Rao Secretary

Claims Settlement Committee:

Name of Member Category
| Mrs. Shiza Hassan - Chairman
Mr. Zain ul Haq Qureshi Member
| Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Member

Mr. Asif Ah Mughal Secretary
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Reinsurance & Co-insurance Committee:

Name of Member Category
Mr. Thisham ul Haq Qureshi Chairman
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Member
Ms. Rafia Ashraf (CFO) Member
Mr. Muhammad Masood Secretary
Risk Management & Compliance Committee:
Name of Member Category
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Chairman
Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Member
Mr. Muhammad Masood Member
Ms. Shazia Hafeez Secretary

19. The Board has formed the following Board Commuttees:
Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee:

Name of Member Category
Mr. Wajahat Rasul Kjan Chairman — Independent Director
Mrs. Nosheen Thisham Member — Mon-Executive Director
Mr. Ihtisham ul Haq Qureshi Member — Non Executive Director
Mr. Shahbaz Hameed Secretary
Investment Committee:
Name of Member Category
_Mr. Ihtisham ul Haq Qureshi _Chairman — Non - Executive Director
Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi | Member - CEO / Exccutive Director
Mr. Wajahat Rasul Kjan Member - Independent Director
Ms. Rafia Ashraf (CFO) Secretary

20. The Board has formed an Audit Commuttee. It comprises of three (3) members, of whom one (1) 1s an
mdependent directors and two (2) are non-executive directors. The chairman of the Commutlee 1s an
mdependent director. The composition of the Audit Committee 15 as follows:

Audit Committee:

Name of Member Category

| Mr. Syed Murtaza Hasnain Nadir Chairman - Independent Director
EMI&L Shiza Hassan Member — Non-Executive Director
| Mr. Thtisham ul Haq Qureshi Member - Non-Executive

Mr. Iftukhar Ahmed Secretary

21. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
commuttee for compliance

22, The meetings of the Commuittees, excepl Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration Commiltee,

were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final results of the insurer and as
required by the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016

23. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Six (6) meetings
b) Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Commuiitee: Four (4) meetings
¢) Risk Management Commitlee : Four (4) meetings
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24. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, the stafTis suitably qualified and expenenced
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company and they are
mvolved i the internal audit function on a regular basis.

25. The Chiel Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal
Audit are competent and quahified as per the Code. Moreover, the persons who are heading the
underwnting, claims, reinsurance, nisk management and grievance functions/department are
competent, experience and qualified, as required under section 12 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

MName of the Person Designation

Mr. Zain ul Hag Qureshi Chiefl Executive Officer

Ms. Rafia Ashral Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Shazia Hafeez Company Secretary / Head of Compliance

Mr. Ifukhar Ahmed Head of Internal Audit

Mr. Faisal Mehmood Qureshi | Head of Underwnting

Badn Solutions Actuary

Mr. Asif Ali Mughal Head of Claims and Grievance Department

Mr. Muhammad Masood Head of Reinsurance and Head of Risk Managemeni
Department

26. The statutory auditors of the company have been appointed from the panel of auditors approved by
the Commission in terms of sections 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. The statutory auditors of
the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control
review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any
of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with the Intermmational Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm
mvolved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children)
of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or
director of the Company;

27. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, the Regulations or any other regulatory requirements and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidehnes in this regard.

28. The Board ensures that the Appointed Actuary complies with the requirements set out for him in the
Code.

29. The Board ensures that the investment policy of the company has been drawn up in accordance with
the provision of the Code.

30. The Board ensures that the nsk management system of the company is in place as per the
requirements of the Code.

31. The company has set up a risk management department, which carries out its tasks as covered under
the Code.

32. The Board ensures that as part of the nsk management system, the company pgets itself rated from
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (the PACRA), which is being used by its risk management
department and the respective Committee as a risk monitoring tool. The rating assigned by the
PACRA on August 23, 2024 1s A++.
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33. The Board has set up a grievance department, which fully complies with the requirements of the
Code.

34. We confirm that all other matenal principles contained in the Code and all other requirements of the
regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with.

Explaination for Regulation 6: The Board of the Company comprises of seven elected Directors and

one-third works out to be 2.33. Presently, two (2) independent Directors were elected by the
shareholders in terms of Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017, which have requisite
competencies, skills, knowledge, and expenence to discharge and execute their duties competently
as per laws and regulations to fulfill the requirements, therefore, not warrant the appointment ofa
third independent Director. Fractional requirement for independent directors has not been rounded
up as one keeping in view the requisite qualification, experience and expertise of the present Board of
Directors.

35. Explanation for non-comphance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6,7, 8 27,32, 33, and 36
are below:

As per regulation 29, “Nomination Committee™ the Board may constitule a separate commitiee,
designated as the nomination committee, of such number and class of directors as 1t may deem
appropriate. No sepatae commitiee 1s constituted as these functions are performed by Human
Resource commitiee.

) L
AU =

Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASIA INSURANCE
COMPANY LIMITED
REVIEW REPORT ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR INSURERS, 2016 & LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORAT GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Stalement of Comphance with the Code of Corporate Governance for
Insurers, 2016 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Govemance) Regulations, 2019
(combined called “the Regulations™) prepared by the Board of Directors of Asia Insurance Company
Limited (“the Company™) for the year ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), Regulations, 2019 and provision
(Ixxvi) ol the Code of Corporate Governance for insurers, 2016.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations 1s that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Owr responsibility 1s to review whether the Statement of Comphance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review 1s limited primarily to mquines of the
Company's personnel and review of vanous documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and miemal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control
covers all nsks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and nisks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured comphiance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audat
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropnately reflect the Company's comphance, in all matenal respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31,
2024.

Further, we highlight content of paragraphs 34 and 35 of the Statement where the matter of minimum
number of Independent Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company and constitution of the
Nomination Committee has been explained, respectively.

Lo

IL SAEED & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
LAHORE

DATED: March 24, 2025
UDIN: CR2024102T80TIUwYDOX
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members Of Asia Insurance Company Limited
Report on The Audit of The Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Asia Insurance Company Limited, (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the
profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the
statemenl of changes n equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
mecluding material accounting pelicies information and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof, conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
mformation required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017),
in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company 1 accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountanis' Code of
Ethies for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
Our Opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current peniod. These matters were addressed i the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opmion on these matters.
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5. No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company is in highly regulated indusiry and is
govermed by sinngent laws and regulations which

mainly include Insurance Ordinance, 2000,
Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, Insurance
Rules, 2017 and Companics Act, 2017, and various
circulars issucd by the SECP from time lo time to

regulate the business of the Company.

The Company is required to comply with these rules
and regulations.

We have considercd compliance with laws and
regulation as a key audit matier sinee failure to
comply with any of these applicable laws and
regulations could have a malerial financial impact on
the business of the Company.

Our audit procedures in respect of this arca mcluded
the followimg:
® Obfained an understanding of the relevant 1{:53]
and regulatory framework within which the
Company opcrates and asscssed the design and
opcration of its key controls over this framework.

® Discussed the applicable policics and procedurcs
with scnior management and reviewed Board
papers, and intemnal andit reports for any recorded
mstances of potential non-compliance, and
maintained a high level of vigilance when
carrying out our other audit procedures for
indications of non-compliance.

® Reviewed the Company’s documcntation and
correspondence with the regulators.

Valuation of investments

The Company’s investment comprises
mvestments in equity, term deposit and debt
instruments. As at December 31, 2024, total
net investment amount to Rs. 730.907
million.

The valuation of these investments 1s made
using different valuation techniques as
disclosed in note 7.8 to the financial
stalements.

The Company’s accounting policy and
movement in the year in the mvestments
balances are disclosed mnote 10, 11 and 12
to the financial statements.

We have considered this as a key audit
matter in view of the significance of these
mvestments in relation to the total assets of
the Company.

Waluation of investments were addressed by
applying following procedures:

# Evaluated the design and implementation of kl::y
conirol around mvestmenis;

® Re-performed valuation to asscss thosc
mmvestments arc cammicd as per the valuation
mcthodology specified in the accounting
policics;

¢ Perlformed purchases and sales testing on sample
basis of trades made during the year and cheeked
that transactions were recorded m the correct
penod as part of investment in casc ol purchases.
Checked the existence of the sceurnitics from the
Central Depository Company s report;

® 'We also reviewed management’s assessment of
whether there are any indicators of impairment
including those sceuritics that are not actively
traded; and

Furthermore, we also asscssed the adequacy of the

respective disclosure relating o investments as
disclosed im the financial statements.

L
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Revenue recognition risks

Refer note 7.2 to the financial statcments for
accounting policies and details in respeet of
TeVenue Tecognition.

The Company reecives its revenue pnmanly from
two main sources namcly, premiums and investments
income. Premiums from imsurance policics comprisc
of 86.73% of the total revenue.

We identificd revenue rocognition as a kcy audit
matter as it 15 onc of the key performance indicators
of the Company and bocausc of the potential nisk that
revenue transitions may not be recognized in the
appropriate period

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter included
the following:

® Obtaincd the understanding, cvalwated the
design and tested the controls over the  process
of capiluring, processing and recording of
information rclaled o premium and mvestment
INCOmE.

® Asscssed the appropriateness of the company’s
accounting policy for recording of premium and
mmvestment income n line with requircments of
applicable accounting and reporting standards;
Tested the policics on  sample basis where
premium was recorded close to year cnd and
subscquent to year cnd, and cvaluated that these
were recorded in the appropriate accounting
period; and

® Tested the investment income iransaction on
samplc basis where investment income was
recorded close Lo year end subsequent to year end
and cvalualed that these were recorded in the
appropniatc period.

# Rccalculaied the unecamed portion of premium
mcome and ensured that appropriale amount has
been recorded as provision for uncarned
premium in liabilitics/

Valuation of outstanding claims including

claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)

As disclosed in note 28 to the fimancial statcments,
outstanding claims including IBNR amounting o
Rs. 309940 million as at December 31, 2024, .
The ouistanding claims including IBNR represented
significant poriion of the Company’s lotal hiabilitics.

We focuscd on this arca because the valuation of
outstanding claims including IBMR arc significant in
magnitude and reguires usc of judgement and
estimates. Ouistanding claims including IBNR are
estimates for scitlement of claims in future which are
impacted by a number of faclors which mcludes the
trends in severity of historical claims, frequency of
historical claims and changes in government
regulations/

The waluation imvolves complex and subjcetivie
judgements about future cvents, both internal and
extemnal to the business, for which small changes
assumptions can maierially impact the valuation of
these habilitics.

Ouor awndit procedures in respect of this area
includes the following:

® Wec asscsscd and tested the operating
cllectivencss of sclected key controls relating to
the claims handling and rescrving proccss,
including conirols over complelencss and
accuracy of the claims cstimates recorded.

® Substantive tests were performed on the
amounts rccorded for a sample of claims
notificd, focusing on those with significant
impact on the financial statcments, o asscss
whether the claims arc appropriatcly cstimated
and recorded. ;

® Tested the completeness and aceuracy of the
underlying data wscd in the valuation of
outstanding claims including IBNR/

® We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures by
reference lo the relevant accounting standards
and applicable regulations. ;
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Valuation of insurance / re-insurance receivables

Refer to note 729 and 14 to the financial statements Our audit proccdures in respecl of this matter

for accounting policics and detmils in respect of included the following: -
valuation of insurance’ reinsurance receivables. & Teded the sce A .
The Company’s msurance [ reinsurance receivable receivables aging  report, on a sample basis, by
represents 30 % ol its total assets which are stated net c:c{mparing il_'lﬂi\fidllﬂi bﬂ]ﬂlm in the report
of provision for impairment of Rs. 28224 million. with underlying documentation to cvaluatc that

the balances appearing in the ageing report
were classified within appropriate ageing

bucket.

Valuation of these receivable imvolves significant
judgment regarding uncertainty in determinmg
impairment/ provisions.

P z 2 : ® Asscsscd the approprniatencss of assumpfions
Weidentified the valoation ol imsurance / remsurance and cstimates made by the management for the

receivables as a key matter as the estimation involves provision for impairment by comparing, on a
a significant degree of judgment. samplc basis, pasl cxpericnee and historical
trends of collection the financial cireumstances
of counter partics, their credil ratings and
actual writc offs, and rcceipts an scitlement
from/with customers and reinsurer subscquent
to the financial year cnd

e Asscssed the reinsurance share of claims
outstanding againsl the terms of the
reinsurance contracts and the related recorded
liabilitics and

® Circulanized confirmation request letiers to
third partics and also performed alternative
procedurcs to confirm the exisience of

balances.

& Assessed the stoncal accuracy of provisions
for bad dcbts rccorded by cxamining the
utilization or rclease of previouwsly recorded
ProviSions. :

L

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s matenally inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
muisstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there i1s a matenial misstatement
of'this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 201 7(X1X of 2017) and for
such internal control as management determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from matenal msstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In prepanng the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the Company’s abihity

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to hiquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from matenial misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to 1ssue an auditor’s
report that includes our opimon.
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted m
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when 1t
exists. Misstalements can arise [rom fraud or error and are considered material ifl individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® [ldentify and assess the risks of maternial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and obtain audit evidence that
15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimion. The nisk of not detecting a matenal
misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matlerial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a matenial uncertamty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are mmadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

COMCETT.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and sigmlicant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to commumicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
meome, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up m conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX 0f 201 7) and are in agreement with the books of account;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the company s business, and

d) nozakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVII of 1980)

The financial statements of Asia Insurance Company Limited for the year ended December 31,2023
were audited by another firm of auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements on April 03, 2024,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report 1s Bushra Sana.

.
ILYKS SAEED & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
LAHORE

DATED: March 24, 2025
UDIN: Ar202410278djb6o3p50
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
MNote 2024 2023
ASSETS Rupees Rupees
Property and Equipment 8 177.761.210 155,008.471
Investment Property 9 40,827,320 40,827,320
Investments
Equity Securities [[]] 240,290,722 85,430,962
Debt Securities 11 T9.6016.506 135,053,472
Term Deposits 12 41 100, 0 [ 00000 000
730,907,228 320,454,434
Loans and Other Receivables 13 96,627,961 BE,613,502
Insurance / Reinsurance Receivables 14 T14.169.804 537,524,093
Reinsurance Recoveries Against Outstanding Claims 1R 175.704,619 156,115,608
Deferred Commission Expense [ Acguisition Cost 19 122,842 406 140,105,642
Deferred Taxation 16 - 11,792,792
Taxation & Levies - Payments Less Provision Is - 2,167,185
Prepayments 17 99,397,201 18,573,010
Cash and Bank 1% 61,560,149 399,042 73R
2,229.797,998  1.992,144,795
Total Assets of Window Takaful Operations - OPF ] 156,773,408 08,668,589
TOTAL ASSETS 2,386,571 406 2.100,813,384
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves Attributable to Company's Equity Holders
Ordinary Share Capital ] THLO8Z,430 730,082,430
Share Premium - Capital Reserve 204 69,917,570 68,917 570
Reserves - Revenuoe 21 2S00, 00D 2 A0 000
Unappropriated Profit - Revenue Reserve 234,702,442 102,819,333
TOTAL EQUITY 1,0:37,202,442 005,319,331
LIABILITIES
Underwriting Provisions
Cutstanding Claims Including IBNR I8 309,940,175 254,913,907
Linearned Preminm Reserves 27 546,499,077 38,157,090
Premium Deficiency Reserve - 0,642 836
Unearned Remsurance Commission 19 20,990,654 14,034 468
Deferred Taxation 16 92.453,090 -
Taxahon & Levies - Payments Less Provision 15 11,180,329 -
Retirement Benefit Obligations 12 1,391,511 992 124
Lease Liabilities 23 110,531,151 111,726,246
Insurance / Reinsurance Payables 24 149,522,136 122,693 450
Other Creditors and Accruals 5 138,088,357 107253271
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,297.596.480  1.156,413.992
Total Liabilities of Window Takaful Operations - OFF 19 51,772,484 39080059
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2.386.571.406 2 100,813 384
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 6 - -

|

L

The annexed notes 1 To 33 form an integral part of these Financial Statements,
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ASTA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Net Insurance Premium

Met Insurance Claims

Premiwm Deficiency

Net Commission and Other Acquisition Costs
Insurance Claims and Acquisition Expenses

Management Expenses
Underwriting Results

Invesiment Income

Other Income

Other Expenses

Results of Operating Activities

Finance Cost
Profit from Window Takaful Operations - OPF

Profit Before Tax & tax levies

Taxation
Profit After Tax & tax levies

Earnings Per Share - Basic & Diluted

MNote

27

28

29

kil}

31
32
33

34
19

35

36

The annexed notes 1 To 53 form an integral part of these Financial Statements,
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2024 2023

RUPEES RUPEES
000 880,067 B27.145.816
{365,787,492) (278,741,525}
6,642,836 (4.528.661)
{246,879,229) (194,996, 897)
(606,023 885) {478.267.083)
(368.904,560)  (341.606.715)
15,951,622 7272018
151.570,302 53,804,241
61,765,702 82,025,719
(8,634,603) (6,310.212)
220,652,963 36,791,766
{12.981.366) (14,529.391)
35,412,394 35,144,561
243,083,991 157,406,936
{74.696,761) (71.707.640)
168,387,230 H#3,699.204
2.31 1.17
iﬂnr Chief Financial Officer




ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
RUPEES RUPEES
Profit after Tax 168,387,230 B5,699.296
Other Comprehensive Income: - -
Item that may be re-classified to profit and loss account: - -
ltem that may not be re-classified to profit and loss account: - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 168,387,230 25,690 2496

The annexed notes | To 53 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
RUPEES RUPEES
Operating Cash Flows
a) Underwriting Activities
Insurance Premium Recerved 1,179,471,297 1,176,818,222
Eeinsurance Premiums Paid (300,891,061) (344.701.392)
Claims Paid (452,525,768) (543,533,046)
Reinsurance and Other Recoveries Received 122,175,533 226,096,814
Commission Paid (235,790.682) (232,723.583)
Commission Beceived 37,334,919 34,270,319
Management Expenses Paid (334.303.89T) (318,826,289)
Other Underwriting Receipts / (Payments) 25,169,131 (37.411,292)
Net Cash Flow from Underwriting Activities 40,639 472 (30410847
b) Giher Operating Activities
Income Tax Paid (40,103 365) (19,660,324)
Finance Charges Paid (12,981.366) {14,520.391)
Other Operating Receipts 2 27778777
Other Receipts in Respect of Operating Assets 44,934,321 73,869 309
Net Cash Flow From Other Operating Activities (8.150.408) 67,458,371
Total Cash Flow From All Operating Activities 32489064 28047524
Investment Activities
Profit / Return Receaived 69,000,120 32,766,013
Dividend Received 18,762,908 8,757,778
Decrease in Net Assets in Window Takaful Operations (35,412.394) (35,144.5a1)
Payments for Investments / Investment Properties (33,875.384) Hh3 483 339
Investment (made) / matured (310, 0000, 0000 { 100,000,000
Fixed Capital Expenditure (5,219.318) (4,057,896
Proceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment 18,714,974 9126257
Total Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities {278,939.094) {25,069,070)
Financing Activities
Dividend Paid (36.504,121) -
Repayments of Lease (35.428.338) (40 457.211)
Total Cash Flow from Financing Activities (91.932.459) {40,437211)
Net cash (used in) / generated from all activities (338.382.48%) (37478.73T
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the yvear 399,942,738 437,421,495
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year 61,560,249 399942 738
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Reconciliation to Statement of Profit or Loss

Operating Cash Flows

Depreciation Expense

Profit on disposal of fixed assets

Dividend Income

Other Investment Income | {Losg)

Profit from Window Takatul Operations

Increase / (Decrease) in Assets Other than Cash
(Increase) [ Deerease in Liabilities Other than Borrowings

Deferred Taxation

Profit After Taxation for the vear

31-Dec-24 31-Dee-23
RUPEES RUPEES
32,489,064 28,047,324
(35.806.229)| | (32.115.769)
16,831,381 8,156,410
18,762,908 8,757,778
132,807,394 45,046,463
35,412,394 35,144,561
122,060,693 34,742,642
(132,924,493) 4,516,832
(21,245.882)| | (46,597.145)
168,387,230 85,699,296

The annexed notes | To 53 form an integral part of these Financial Statements,
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Balance As At January |, 2023
Total comprehensive income Tor the vear

Profic afier tax
Crher comprehensive income

Qard-e-Hasnu contribution 10 PTF

Balance As At Decernber 31, 2023

Balance As At January 1, 2024
Total comprehensive prafit for the year

Profit afier inx
Other comprehensive income

Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2023 @ 5% ie. Rs 0,50 per share

Crard-¢-Hasna Contribution to PTF

Bulance As At December 31, 2024

Share Capital HRuserves )
Tamwall Un- Tutal share
aihesribed s Eh:l;:'l;evmlum :l::;:lrl: appmp#ared capital and
paid up erve prafit FESETVLS
RUPEES
730,082,430 69 917.570 2.500,000 15.120,037 R3TH20,037
z 5 E R3.699,2946 85.699,20%
i = - B5.690,2945. 756599, 206
. - - {18, 00, D00 [ 1,000,000
T30082,430 69 S1T.5T0 2,500,000 102815353 905,519,353
730,082,430 69.917.5T0 2,500,000 102,819,333 905,319,333
2 = - 168,387,230 168,357,230
= = - 168,357,230 16%,387.230
< - - (36.504,121) (26 504,121
THLO82,430 69,917.570 2,500, ) 134,702,442 1.037,.202,442

The annexed notes 1 To 53 form an miegral part of these Financial Statements.
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1.
1.1

L

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Asia Insurance Company Limited ("the Company”) is a quoted publie limited company which was incorporated in Pakistan
on December 06, 1979 under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Compamics Act, 2017). The Company 15
cngaged in non- life insurance business mainly comprising of fire, marine, motor, bond and surctyship, agriculture and
allicd and miscellaneous. The Company commenced ils commercial operations in 1980, The registered and principal
office ofthe Company is situated at 19 C/D, Block L, Gulberg 111, Main Ferozpur Road, Lahore-Pakistan. Shares of
the Company arc quoled on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The incorporation number is 0007342,

The Company has been allowed to work as Window Takaful Operator through License No. 10 on August 13, 2015 by
Sccuntics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan under Window Takaful Rules, 2012 to carry on Islamic General
Insurance in Pakistan. [thas not transacted any business outside Pakistan.

The SECP has issued investigation order dated March 21, 2019 against the Company for matiers pertaining o claims
paidfpayable and property valuation and appoinicd an mvestigation tcam. The Company has submitied a response to
SECP and is confident, based on the confirmation from the legal advisors that no adverse inference 18 expected in respect
of these matters excepl two orders have been issued against claim investigation by the SECP during the year 2020 Detail
isas follows:

The Scearitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has concluded ils investigation against order dated March
21,2019 agamst the Company and has issucd two Orders duning the year. The Orders have alleged that the Company has
processed allegedly fake/bopus claims. The Company has responded through ils letier dated July 17, 2020 and
vechemently denied, and it is submiticd that the Company has never been knowingly involved in processing any such
claims. The allcgedly fake/bogus claims were referred to the Surveyor in accordance with law, and the same were
processed after oblaming the survey reports from the Surveyor. The Company relied on the expertise of the Surveyor,
which is duly licensed entity by the SECP (o conduct the insurance surveys under the Ordinance. In addifion, it was
submitted that from the year 2013 onwards, the Company has paid a total of 25,633 claims. Annually, the number of
claims paid by the Comipany average over 3,000 claims.

The Company has adequate inlernal control systems which are reflected in the processing of more than 3,000 claims
accordance with the law anmually. The Company had requesied (o withdraw the show cause notices, however, the SECP
through its order datcd July 21, 2020 has imposed the penalty amounting o Rs. 5880 million to the Company and its
Board of Dircctors. The Company has challenged the onders and filed an appeal before the Appellale Bench of the
Commission and expecting a {avourable outcome based on the legal advisor opinion. The Company has blacklisted the
Surveyor during the year 2020, Further, the Company has a filed a suil against the Surveyor for amounting to Rs. 200150
million. Therefore no provision has been made n these financial statements nthis regard.

With reference to above mentioned point at 1.3, reinsurance recoverics were also obtained from the respechive remsurcrs
including Pakistan Remmsurance Company Limited (PRCL), a government owned entity. The SECP has passed an
order dirccting the Company to provide some information. The Company belicves that proceedings imitiated by PRCL
were beyond the scope of cited Scctions of the Ordinance and notice/order has been issued on the basis of sclective facts
on insistence of PRCL. The Company has challenged the order and filed an appeal before the Appellate Bench of the
Commission and cxpecting a favourable outcome.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

The registered office of the Company is situated at 19 C/D, Block L, Gulberg 111, Main Ferozpur Road, Lahore-Pakistan.
The Company opcrates through 1 (2023: 1) pnncipal office and 28 (2023: 28) branches in Pakistan.
SUMMARY OFSIGNIFICANT EVENTSAND TRANSACTIONS INTHE CURRENT REPORTING YEAR

All other significant transactions and cvents that have affected the Company's financial position and performance dunng
the yearhave been adequately disclosed in the notes to these financial statements.
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

4
4.1

4.2

L

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

Thesc financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise oft

- Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
arc notificd under the Companics Act, 2017,

Provisions of and directives issucd under the Companmies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insuranee Rules,
2017, Insurznce Accounting Regulations, 2017, General Takaful Accounting Regulation 2019 and SECP Takaful Rules,
2012.

In casc requircments differ, the provisions or dircctives of the Companics Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000,
Insurance Rules, 2017, Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, General Takaful Accounting Regulation 2019 and
SECP Takaful Rules, 2012, shall prevail.

In terms of the requirements of the Takaful Rules 2012, read with SECP Circular 25 of 2015 dated 09 July 20135, the asscts,
liabilitics and statement of comprehensive meome of the Operator's Fund of the General Takaful operations of the
Company have been presented as a single line item in the statement of financial position and profit and loss account of the
Company respectively. Further, the PTF was not consolidated with the conventional insurance business. The similar
reguirements have been prescribed by General Takaful Accounting Regulations 2020 issued by SECP.

A scparate sel of financial statemenis of the General Takaful operations has been annexed o these financial stalements as
per the requircments of the General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019,

The lotal asscis of Operator Fund of WTO melude an amount of Rs. 78411 million (2022: Rs. 78.411 million) being
(ard-c-Hasna reccivable from Participant Takalful Fund of WTO. In accordance with the Takaful Rules, 2012, ifal any
point in time, asscts in Participant Takaful Fund are not sufficient to cover its liabihitics, the deficit shall be funded by way
ol an interest frec loan (Qard-c- Hasna) from Operator Fund. In the event of future surplus in the Participant Takaful Fund
o which a (rard-c- Hasna has been made, the (Qard -c-Hasna shall be repaid prior to distnbution o surplus to participants.
IAS 12 Application Guidanee on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes (the Guidance) issued by ICAP
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has issucd the aforementioned Guidance through Circular No.
07 /2024 dated May 15,2024 In light of the said Guidance, as the minimum taxcs and final taxes arc not calculated on the
‘taxable mecome” as defined in IAS 12 (Income Taxces) but calculated on tumover or other basis (as per relevant sections of
the Income Tax  Ordinance, 2001 - the Ordinance); accordingly, mimmum taxes and final taxes should be accounted for
under IAS 37 (Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent asscts) / IFRIC 21 (Levics) as levics (though thesc arc
charged under tax law) and not under 1AS 12 as income taxcs. Based on the Guidanee, the minimum taxes and final taxes
under the Ordinance are hybnd taxes, which comprisc of'a component within the scope of IAS 12 and a component within
the scopcof IFRIC 21,

The aforesaid Guidance has been applied retrospectively by the Company and the comparative mformation has been
restated, which has not affected current year or prior years' net sales, profit afier taxes and levies, equity and cash flows.
Impact as of December 31,2023 15 not matenial to these financial statements. In accordance with the requirements of TAS
I {Presentation of financial statements), the balances as at December 31, 2023 have been restated and third statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2023 has not been presented duc to immaterial impacL

In the statement of profit or loss for the year ended December 31,2024 in terms of the requirements of IFRIC 21 7 TAS 37
(the requirements), minimum tax and final tax | which were previously presented as 'taxation” have now been reclassified
as 'minimum and final tax levies'.

Inthe statement of financial position as al December 31,2024 in terms of the aforementioned requirements, minimum Lax
and final tax, which was previously presented as Taxation® has now been reclassified as "Provision for taxation and tax
levies.
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Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been preparcd under the histonieal cost convention without any adjustment for the effect
of inflation cxcept for cerlam investments which are stated at fair value. The finaneial statements, except for cash flow
information, have been prepared under the acerual basis of aceounting.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial stalcments are presented m Pakistam Rupees which is the Company’s funetional and presentation
currency. All figures have been rounded to the nearcst rupec, unless otherwisc stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED
APPROVEDACCOUNTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended December
31,2024

The following standards amendments and interpretations arc cffective for the year ended December 31, 2024, Thesc
standards, amendments and imterpretlations are cither not relevant to the Company's operations or did not have significant

impact on the financial statements other than certain additional disclosures. Effective date
(annual periods beginning
on or after)
Classification of liabilitics as current or non-current { Amendments to IAS 1 in January 2020) January 01,2024

MNon-current liabilities with covenants ( Amendment to LAS 1 in October 2022)
Amendments to IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01,2024
Lease liability in a salc and leaseback { Amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) January 01,2024
Supplicr finance arrangements ( Amendments to LAS 7and IFRS T) Jamuary 01,2024

The Company adopted the namow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard (1AS) 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2024, Although
the amendments did not result in any changes to accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information
disclosed in the financial statements.

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companics Act, 2017 and the
amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025:

Effective date
{annual periods beginning
on or after)
Amendments to IAS | 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current liabilitics with covenant January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements January 01,2025
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture January 01,2025

{amendments to IFRS 10 and LAS 28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also
introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in
assets that are not businesses. The cffective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a
broader review. Early adoption

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments - Amendments January 01,2025

to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7 Finaneial Instruments Disclosures:-

Financial asscts with ESC-linked foatures:

Amendments to 1AS 21 "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of January 01,2025
Exchangeability (when a currency is exchanpeable into another currencey; and
how a company estimates a spot rate when a currency lacks exchangeability).
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
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IFRS | standard has been issued by IASE cffcctive from 01, July 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by

Sccuritics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
Under IFRS 9, it was unclecar whether the contractual cash flows of some financial asscl with ESG-linked (caturcs

represcnted  SPPI. This could have resulted in financial asscis with ESG-linked features being measurcd at far valuc
through profil or loss. Although the new amendments are more permissive, they apply to all contingent features, nol just
ESG linked featurcs. While the amendmenis may allow cerlain financial asscts with contingent features to mect the SPPI
critcrion, companics may nced to perform additional work to prove this. Judgement will be required n determining
whether the new lest is mel. The amendments introduce an additional SPPT test for financial asscts with contingent
fcatures that are not rclated directly to a change in basic lending risks or costs - c.g., where the cash flows change
depending on whether the borrower mects an ESG target specificd in the loan contract. The amendments also mclude
additional disclosures for all finaneial asscls and financial iabilities that have certain contingenl  features thal are:- - nol
related directly to a change m basic lendmg nisks or cosis; and are not measured at {air valoe through profil orloss.

The amendments apply for reporting periods beginning on oralter | January 2026, Companics can choose to carly-adopt
these amendments (mcluding the associated disclosure requiremenis), scparaicly from the amendments for the
recognition and de-recognition of financial asscts and financial liabilitics.

Recognition/ Derecognition requirements of financial asseis /hiahilities by clectronic payments:

The amendments to IFRS 9 elanfy when a financial asset or a financial liability 15 recognized and derccognized and
provide an exception for cerlam financial habilitics scitled using an clectronic payment system. Companics generally
derceognize their trade  payables on the sctilement date (i.c. when the payment is completed). However, the amendments
provide an exception for the de-recognition of financial liabilitics. The exception allows the Company to derccognize ils
trade payable before the scitlement date, when it uses an electronic payment system that meets all of the following criteria:
-no practical ability to withdraw, stop or cancel the payment instruction;

-no practical ability to aceess the cash to be used for settlement as a resull of the payment instruction; and

‘the settlement risk associated with the clectronic payment system is insignificant.

-Other related amendments

Contractually linked mstruments (CLI=z) and non-recourse features:

The amendments clarify the key charactenistics of CLIs and how they differ from financial asscts with non-recourse
featurcs. The amendments also include factors that a company needs to consider when asscssing the cash flows underlying
a financial assct with non-recourse features (the “look through” test).

-Disclosures on investments in equity instrumenis:

The amendments require additional disclosurces for mvestments in cquity instrumcnts that are measured at fair valuc with
gains or losses presented in other comprehensive meome (FVOCT).

The amendments apply for eporting penods begimning on or after 1 January 2026 Earlicr application is permiticd.
Annual improvements to [FRS Accounting Standards - Amendments to:

-IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards;

-IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and it’s accompanying Guidance on implementing

-IFRS 9 Financial Instrumcnis;

-[FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; and

-LIAS 7 Statement of Cash flows

The amendments to IFRS 9 address:

A conflict between IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Costomers over the imitial measurcment of trade
reccivables: Under IFRS 15, a trade receivable may be recopnized at an amount that differs from the transaction price e.g.
when the transaction  price 1s variable. Conversely, IFRS 9 requires thal companics mitially measure trade receivables
withoul a significant financing componcnt at the transaction price. The IASB has amended IFRS 9 to require companics
to mmitially measure a trade receivable  without a significant financing component at the amount determined by applying
IFRS 15; and
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-how a lessec accounts for the de-recognition of a lease hability under paragraph 23 of TFRS 9:

When lease liabilitics are derccognized under IFRS 9, the difference between the carmying amount and the consideration
paid is recognized in profit or loss.

The amendment on trade receivables may require some companics to change their accounting policy.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on orafier [ January 2026. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendment on derecognition of lcase habilitics applics only to lease liabilities extinguished on or aficr the beginning
ol the annual reporting period m which the amendment is first applied.

Temporary Exemption from IFRS 17 & IFRS9

Pursuant to the requirements of Sccuritics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan SRO 1715 (1) / 2023 dated 21
MNovember 2023 IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™, is applicable to the companics engaged in insurance / takaful and re-
insurance ./ re-taka ful business from financial years commencing on orafier 01 January 2026.

IFRS 17, replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The new standard will apply to all entitics that issue insurance and
reinsurance  contracts, and o all enfitics that hold remsurance contracts. This standard requires entitics o idenlify
contracts and its terms and to asscss whether they meet the definition of an insurance contract or includes componcnis of
an insurance contracl. Insumanee contracts are required (o aceount for under the recognition / derecognition of IFRS 17.
Companics subjeet to the requirement of SRO 17 15 will also be required to adopt requirements of IFRS-9 from the date of
transition. On initial application of IFRS 17, comparative information for insurance contracts is restated in accordance
with IFRS 17, whercas compamative information for related financial assets might not be restated in accordance with
IFRS 9 ifthe msurer is mitially applying IFRS 9 at the same datc as [FRS 17.

SECP through its 5. R.0.506(1)/2024 has dirccted that the applicability period of optional temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 Financial Instrumenis as given in para 20A of [FRS 4 Insurance Contracts is extended for anmual penods
beginning before 01 January 2026, subject to fulfilling the same conditions as arc prescribed by para 20B ol IFR5 4.
SECP wvide letler no. ID/MDPRIDVIFRS-17/2021/176 dated 15 Junc 2021 imitiated a four-phase approach towards
implementation of TFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts. The first three phases now stand completed and Phasc 4 parallel run and
implementation has commenced and is currently under progress.

In Phasc 4 SECP roquires paralle] run of IFRS 17 for the year ended 31 December 2024 to be submitted to SECP by 30
Junc 2025 and dry run on the financial statement of the first quarter of 2025 to be submitted by 30 November 2025,

The tables below sct out the fair valucs as at the end of reporting period and the amount of change in the fair valuc during
that pecriod for the following two groups of financial asscts scparatchy:

financial asscts with contractual terms that give risc on specificd dates to cash flows that arc solcly payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI™) on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial assct that meets the defimition of held
fortrading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a Fair value basis.
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b) all other financial asscts: _ - Ell:_[ﬁlet:}__ﬂiljl
Fail the SPPI test Puass the SPPI test
Change in Change in
. unrealiced anrealized
Financial asseis Fair gain or (loss) Carrying Cost less gain or (loss)
Value during the Value Impairment. = o ring the
year N year
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank * 61, 560249
Investments in equily securilics
Held for trading 240,290,722 45,409,773
Investments mn debl securities
Held to maturity 79616506 5.063,034
Term Deposits * 411,000,000
Loans and other receivables * 96,627,961
Total 398 478932 45 409,773 490,616,506 5,063,034
* The carrying amount of these financial asscts measured applying TAS 39 are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values. 31-Dec-2024
Gross carrying amounts of debt instruments that pass the SPP1 test
BEB AA+ At Unrated
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Investment in debt Securities -
Held to maturity s i = 7616506
Term Deposits 250,000,000 41 000000 110,000,000 2
Total 250,000,000 41,000,000 110,000,000 79,616,506

The Company cxpeels that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the standards will not have any
matcrial impact and therefore will not affect the Company's financial statements in the penod ofinitial application.

6. CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
The prepamation of financial statcments in conformity with the reguiremenits of approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, cstimates and associated assumptions that affect the
application of policics and reported amounts of assets and habilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimaies and
associated assumptions arc based on historical expenience, current trends and various other factors that are belicved to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the estimates about carrymg values of
assels and liabilitics that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual resulls may di ffer from these estimates.
The cstimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting cstimates arc
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the revision and
future periods, if the revision affeets both current and future peniods.
The arcas where assumptions and cstimates arc significant to the financial statements or judgment was cxercised in

application of sccounting policics, arc as follows: MNotc
Provision for uncamed premiums 7.2
- Premiom duc but unpaid - nct T.25
- Provision for oulstanding claims (including IBNR) 7.3
- Premiom deficiency rescrve 77
- Usclul life ol fixed asscis 7.10
- Taxation (currcnt and deferred) T18
- Impairment in the value of investment 7.23
- Commission incomc uncamed 762
- Reinsurance recoverics against outstanding claims 75
- Prepaid reimsurance premium ceded 742
- Deferred commission cxponse 7.6.1

L ASA
8 S o4




ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

T.

7.2
721
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723

7.24

725
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MATERIALACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The matenal accounting policics adopted in preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policics
have been apphicd consistently to all years presented.

Insurance Contracts

Insurance contracts arc those contracts under which the Company as an msurer has accepted msurance nsk from the
insurance contract holder (insured) by agrecing to compensale the msured if a specified unceriam future event (the msored
cvent) adversely affects the insured. Onee a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it rcmains an insurance
contract for the remainder of its tenure, cven if the insurance nisk reduces significantly durimg this period, unless all nghts
and obligations arc extinguished or expire. Insuranee contracts arc classified o the following main catcporics,
depending on the nature and duration of risk and whether ornot the terms and conditions arc fixed.

- Firc and property

- Marinc, aviation and transport

- Motor

- Health

- Miscellancous

These contracts are provided o individuals as well as commercial organizations with various lenures according to the
nature and terms of the contract and the needs of the insured. The Company also accepls insurance nsk pertainimg to
msurance contracts of other insurers as reinsurance inward. The insurance risk involved in these contracts is similar to the
contracts undertaken by the Company as insurcr. The Company neither issucs mvestment contracts nor does it issuc
msurance contracts with discretionary participation features (DPF).

Revenue recognition

Premium

Premium receivable/received under a policy 1s recognized at the ime of 1ssuance of policy. Similarly reinsurance premium
is recorded at the ime reinsurance is ceded.

Premiuvm written under a policy is recognized as income over the penod of insurance from the date of 1ssuance of the
policy towhich it relates to its expiry. Where the pattern of incidence of tisk varies over the period of the policy, premium is
recognized as revenue in accordance with the pattem of the incidence of nisk. The portion of premium writlen relating to
the unexpircd period of coverage 15 recognized as uncamed premium by the Company. This hiability s caleulated by
applying 1/24 method as specificd in the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017,

Commission income

Commission imcome rom reinsurers is recognized at the time of issuance of the underlymg msurance policy by the
Company. This income is deferred and recognized as revenuee inaccordance with the patiern of recognition ol the
reinsurance premium to which it relates. Commission from reinsurers is armived at after taking the impact of opening and
closing uncamed commussion. Profit! commission, if any, which the Company may be entitled to under the terms of
reinsurance is recognized on acerual basis.

Investment income

Return on investments and fixed deposits arc recogmized using the effective interest rate method. Profit or loss on sale of
mvestments is recognized at the ime of sale.

Dividend Income and other income

Dividend income and entitlement of bomus shares are recognized when the right to receive such dividend and bonus shares
is cxtablished.

Preminms doe but unpaid - net

Premiums duc but unpaid is recorded as receivable when it is due, sl the fair value of consideration receivable less
provision for doubtful debts, if any. I there 15 objective evidence that reccivable is impaired, the Company reduces the
camying amount of the reccivable accordimgly and recognizes that impairment loss in profil and loss account.

Claims expense

Gieneral insurance claims include all claims occurmng during the year, whether reporied or nod, including external claims
handling costs that are dircetly related to the processing and scttlement of claims, reduction for the value of salvage and
other recoverics, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. Claims are charged to profit and loss
account a5 incurred based on estimated Liability for compensation owed under the insurance contracts.
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Provision for outstanding claims

The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims meurred up to the balance sheet date which s measured at
the un discounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considercd to be incurred at the time of the
incident giving risc Lo the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in an insurance contract. The liability for claims
includes amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)and e xpected claims
scitlement costs.

Provision for IBNR 15 bascd on the management's best cstimate which takes into account the past trends net of exceptional
claims.

Reinsurance contracts

Contracts (treaty and facullative) entered by the Company under which the Company cedes insurance nsks assumed
during normal course of ils business and according lo which the Company 1s compensated for losses on msurance
contracts issucd by the Company arc classificd as reinsurance contracts held.

Reinsurance expense

Reinsurance premium coded (treaty and facultative) is recognized as an cxpensc over the perniod of reinsurance from
inception to which itrelates toits expiry as follows:

for proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the peniod of the underlying policics.

for non-proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the peniod of mdemnity.

Where the pattern of incidence of sk varies over the period of the policy, reinsurance premium is recognized as cxpense
in accordance with the patien ol incidence of risk.

Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded

The portion of remsurince premium ceded nol recognized as an expense as at year ond is recopnized as prepaid
reinsurance premium ceded. Unrecognized portion is determined in the same manmer as for provision for oneamed
pPremiunms.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Remsuranee recoveries receivable from reimsurers arc recognized as an asscl at the same fime as and when the claims
which give risc Lo the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and arc measurced at the amount expected to be
rcceived.

Commission

Commission expense

Commission cxpensc incurred in obtaining and recording policics is deferred and is recognized in the profit and loss
account as an cxpensc in accordance with the pattern of recognition of premium revenuc.

Commission income

Commission and other forms of revenue (apart from recoveries) from reinsurers are deferred and recognrzed as liability
and recogmized in the profit and loss account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsumance
premium to which it relates.

Preminm deficiency reserve - (liability adequacy test)

Al cach balance shecel date, liability adequacy test is performed o ensurc the adequacy of uncamed premiom.
Where the cumulative uncarmed premium reserve for any classes of business 18 not adequate to mect the expected futurc
liability, afier reinsurance from claims and other supplementary cxpenses, including reinsurance cxpenses, commissions
and other underwriting cxpenscs, expected to be incurred afler the balance shect date in respect of unexpired policics in
that class of business m foree at balance shect date, a preminm deficicney reserve is recognized as a liability to mect the
deficil. The movement in premium deficieney reserve is recorded as an expense / income in the profit and loss account for
the year. The Company determines adequacy of iability of premium deficicney by carrying out analysis of its loss ratio of
cxpired risk.

Investments

All mvestments are mitially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and include transaction
costs, cxcept for held for trading, in which casc transaction costs arc charged to profit and loss account. Subscquently,
these are recogmzed and classificd into the following categonics:
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c)
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Available for sale
The financial asscts that are inlended to be held for an indefinile period of ime and may be sold in response o the need lor

hiquidity arc classificd as available-for-sale.

Subsequent to the initial recognition at cost, these are valued at market valucs and any unrealized gains / (losses) arc taken
to other comprehensive income.

Fair value through profitor loss-held for trading

Investments which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of shorl term market / interest rate
movements are considered as held for radimg. A fler initial recogmition, these are measured at fair values with any resulting
gains or losses recognized dircetly in the statement of comprchensive income. Subscquent to initial recognition these arc
measured at fair value by reference to quoted market prices.

In debt securities

Held to maturity
Investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the intent and the ability to hold to matunity, arc classificd as

held o maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition al cost, these investments are measured at amortized cost, less provision for impairment
invalue, if any. Amortized cost is calenlated taking mto account any discount or premiuom on acquisition, which is deferred
and included in the income for the period on a straight line basis, over the term of the investmends.

Investment at fair valoe through profit or loss-held for trading
Investments which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advanlage of shorl term market / intercst rate

movemenis arc considercd as held for trading. After initial recognition, these are measured at fair values with amy
resulting gains or losscs recognized dircetly in the statement of comprehensive income.

In term deposits

Held to maturity

Investments with fixed matunty, where management has both the intent and the ability to hold to maturity, arc classificd as
held to maturity.

Subscquent to mitial recognition at cost, these investments arc measured al amortized cost, less provision for impairment
mvalue, ifany. Amontized cost is caleulated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, which isdeferred
and included in the income for the period on a straight line basis, over the term of the invesimenis.

Trade and settlement date accounting

All ‘regular way' purchases and sales of financial asseis are recognized on the trade date, e the date on which
commitment to purchasc / sale is madc by the Company. Regular way purchascs or sales ol financial asscts arc thosc, the
contract for which requires delivery ol asscts within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Derecognition

All imvestments are de-recognized when the rights to reccive cash flows from the investments have cxpired or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment

Available-for-sale

The Company considers that available-for-sale investments 15 impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline m the fair value below iis cost This defermination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In
addition, impairment may be appropriatc when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investec,
industry and scctor performance.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Company opcrates an approved provident fund scheme for all s permancent employecs.  Equal monthly

coninbutions arc made, both by the Compamy and iis employees, (o the fund at the rate of 8.33% (2023: 8.33%) of basic
salary of thc cmployecs.
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Fixed assets and depreciation

Owned assets

Thesc arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, iFany.

Depreciation/amortization is charged to profit and loss account on reducing balance method using the following rates:

- Building on frechold land 10%%

Furniture and fixturc 1005
- Office cquipments 10%%
- Motor vchicles 20%
- Computer cqupment 30%

Full month's depreciation / amortization is charged in the month when asscts become available for usc and no depreciation

15 charged in the month of disposal.

The asscts” residual values, uscful life and method of depreciation / amortization are revicwed at each financial year end

and adjusicd if impact on depreciation is significant.

Subscquent costs arc included in the assct’s carrying amount or recognizod as a scparate part, as appropriatc, only when it

is possible that future cconomic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. Mormal repairs and maintenance are charged Lo profit and loss account.

(rams or losses on disposal are meluded in profit and loss aceount.

An assessment 1s made at cach balance shect date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment or reversal

of previous impairment, in respect of item of fixed asscts and intangible asscts. In the cvent that an asscl’s carrying amount
cxceeds ils recoverable amount, the carrying amount 15 reduced to recoverable amount and an impairment loss is
recognized in the profit and loss account. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the cstimates used to determine the recoverable amount, however not to an amount higher than  the carmying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortization or depreciation), had no impairment losses been recognized
for the assct in prior years, Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asscl

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. All expenditures connecied  to the specifie assets incurmed  during mstallabon
and construction peniod arc camicd under capital work-in-progress. These expenditures are transferred to relevant
category ol fixed assets or intangibles as and when the asscts starl operation.

Right of use assets

The right-of usc assct is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of leasc liability adjusted for amy
lcase payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial dircet cost incurred and an cstimate of cost to
dismantle and remove the underlying assct or (o restore the underlying assel or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives reccived.

The night of usc asset is subscquently depreciated wsing straight line method from the date of recognition to the carlier of
the end of usefal life of the ight of use asset or the end ol the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the nght of use asseis

arc determined on the same basis as thosc of property and cquipment. In addition, the right of usc asscl is peniodically
reduced by the impairment losses, ifany, and adjusted for certam re-measurement ol the lease liability.

Lease liabilities

Lcasc liabilitics arc inibially measured at the present valuc of the lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, il that mie cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate is used. The Company

used its incremental bommowing rate as the discount rate 1fany or market rate.

Subscquently, the leasc liability is measurcd at amortized costusing the cffective interest method. It is remeasured when

there is a change in future lease payments ansing {rom a change in the rate, ifthere 1s a change m the Company's estimate
of the amount cxpected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its asscssmenl of
whether it will exereisc a purchasc, cxtension or lermination option. When the lease liability is remeasurcd m this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-usc assct has been reduced to zero. The short term and low value leases have not been
considercd under IFRS 16 "Leases".
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ljarah contracts
Operating lease / jjarah in which 2 significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor /

Muj'ir (lessor) arc classificd as operating leascs/Tjarah. Payments made during the period arc charged to profitand loss ona
straight-line basis over the peniod of the lease / Tjarah.
The SECP has issucd dircctive (vide SRO 43 112007 dated May 22, 2007) that [slamic Financial Accounting Standard 2
(IFAS-2) shall be followed in preparation of the financial statements by companics while accounting for ljarah (Leasc)
transaclions as defined by said Standard. The Company has adopted the above said standard.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applics the short-term lease recognibion cxemption to its short-term leascs ol its assets (1o, thosc leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applics
the lease of low value asscls recognition exemplion to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short
tlerm leascs and leases of low-valuc assets arc recognized as cxpensc on a straight-line basis over the lease torm.
Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to cxtend the lease if it is reasonably cerlain to be exercised, or any peniods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, ifit is reasonably certain nol to be cxerciscd.

7.12 Investment properties
Property held for the purposc of rental income and long- lerm capital appreciation is classificd as investment property.

7.12.1 Initial recognition
Investment property is inthally recognized al cost which is equal to the fair value of consideration paid at the tme of
acquisition or construction of the asscl.

T.12.2 Measurement subsequent to initial recognition
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properly is carned at histonical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

T.12.3 Depreciation
Dcpreciation is charged to profit and loss account in the same manner as owned fixed asscts.

7.13  Investmentand other income

7.13.1 Dividend income and bonus shares
Dividend income 15 recognized when the right to reccive the samce is cstablished.
Entitlement of bonus shares is recognized when the right to receive the same is cstablished.

7.13.2 Interestincome
Interest income 1s recognized on time proportion basis that takes into account effective yicld on the assels.

7.13.3 Rental income
Rental income on investment propertics is recognized as income on accrual basis.

7.14 Sepment reporting
The Company’s opcrating business is organized and managed scparatcly according (o the nature of the services provided
with cach scgment representing a strategic business unit that scrves different markets. The Company has five major
scgments namely fire and property damage, marme, aviation and transport, motor, crops and miscellancous, as disclosed
in note 7.1. The Company accounts for segment reporting arc prepared in the format prescernibed under the Insurance
Ordimance 2000 and the Insurance Rules, 2017 and provide required information at appropriate level of detail.
Asscts, liabilitics and capital expenditures that arc directly attnbutable to segments have been assigned to them while the
carrying amount of certain asscts used jointly by two or morc scgments have been allocated to scgments on a reasonable
basis. Thosc asscts and liabilitics which cannot be allocated to a particular scgment on a reasonable basis arc reporied as
unallocated corporale assels and liabilibes.

7.15 Financial instruments
Financial asscts and financial liabilitics arc recognized when the Company bocomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of contractual rghts that comprise the financial
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7.16

717

T.18
7.18.1

asscls and in the casc of financial liabilitics when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
cxpired. Any gain or loss on the de recognition of the financial asscls and liabilitics is included in the nct profit or loss
account for the period I which 1t anses.

Financial imstruments carricd in the statement of financial position include investments, loan and other reccivables,
insurance / reinsurance receivables, reinsurance recoveries against oulstanding elaims, cash and bank, provision for
outstanding claims, insurance / reinsurance payables, other creditors and aceruals.

(MTsetting of financial asset and financial liabilities

Financial asscts and financial liabilitics arc off-sct and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is
alegally enforccable nght toset-off the recognized amount and the Company intends either to scitle on nel basis,
or realize the assets and Lo scttle the hiabilitics simultancously.

Related party transactions

All transactions involving related partics arising in  the normal course of business are conducted at arm’s length at
normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions wsing valuation modcs, as
admissible, cxcept in cxtremely rarc circumstances where, subject to the approval of the board of dircetors, it 15 in the
interest of the Company to do so.

Taxation and tax levies

Current

Provision for current taxation and tax levies is bascd on taxable income for the year detcrmined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax and tax levics 1s calculated using prevailing tax rates or
tax rates expected to be applicd (o the profit for the year, ifentered. The charge for current tax and tax levies also melude
adjustments, where considercd necessary, lo provision for tax and tax levies made in previous years ansmg from
assessment finalized duning the corrent year for such years.

T.18.2 Deferred

7.19

7.20

Dcferred tax is accountcd for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences ansing
from diffcrences between the carrying amount of assets and hiabilitics in the financial statements and the corresponding
lax bases used m the computation of taxable profil. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
lemporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized Lo the cxtent that il is probable that taxable profits will be
available agamst which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax eredits can be niilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that arc expected to be applicd to the peniod when the differences reverse bascd on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred Lax is charged or eredited in the
profit and loss account, except in the case of ilems credited or charged to equity m which case 1t is included in statement of
comprehensive income.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in forcign currency, if any, are converied into Pak rupees at the rale of exchange prevailing on the date of
iransaction.

Monctary asscts and liabilitics denominated in forcign currencics arc translated imto Pak rupees at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange diffcrence arc taken to profitand loss account.

Management expenses

Management expenscs are allocaled o all classes of business m proportion Lo the net premium income of the year
Underwriting cxpenscs have been allocated to various classcs of business on a basis deemed cquitable by the
management. Provision for bad debts 1s based on review of outstanding amounts as at balance shect date. Bad debts arc
writtcn off to the profit and loss account when identificd. Expenses not allowable to the underwriting business arc charged
to Other cxpensecs.

7.21 Creditors, aceruals and provisions

L

Liabilities for creditors and other amounis payable are camied at cost which is fair value of the consideration (o be paid in
future for goods and / or services received, whether ornot billed to the Company.

Provisions arc recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past cvents, it is
probable that an out flow of resources embodying cconomie benefits will be required to scttle the obligation and a reliable
cstimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at cach reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current
best estimaic.
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T.22

T.23

7.24

T25

7.26

727

T.28

729

730

731

732

733

L

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s asscts arc reviewed annually to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. I any such indication cxists, the asscts recoverable amount 15 cstimaled and impairment losscs arc
recognized in the profil and loss account.

Earnings pershare

The Company presents basic and diluted camings per sharc (EPS) for its ordinary sharcs. Basic EPS 15 calculated by
dividing the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary sharcs outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is delermined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary sharcholders and the weightcd average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the cffects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposc of cash flow statement, Cash and cash equivalenis include cash at bank in current and saving accounts,
cash and stamps in hand and bank deposits.

Dividend and bonus shares

Dividend to sharcholders is recognized as liabality in the year in which it is approved. Similarly, reserve for issue of bonus
shares is recognized in the year in which such issuc is approved.

Fair value

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the mecasurement date.

Share capital

Shares are classificd as equity when there 15 no obligation (o fransfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly
atinbutable to the 1ssuc of cquity instruments are shown in cquity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Receivables and payables related to insurance contraets

Recervables and payables related to mnsurance contracts are recognized when doe al cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given less provision for impairment, iCany.

Insurance/ reinsurance receivables

Amounis duc to / [fom other insurers/reinsurers are carmiced at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be
received/paid in the future for the services. However, an asscssment 15 made at cach statement of financial position datc to
determine whether there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or group of asscls may be impaired. 11 such cvidence
cxisls, the cstimated recoverable amount of thal assel s delermined and any impairment loss is recognized for the
difference between the recoverable amount and the camying amount.

Reinsurance assets

The Company determines the impairment of the reinsurance asscis by looking al objective evidence, as a resull of an event
that occurred afier imitial recognition of the reinsurance asscts, which indicates that the Company may not be able to
recover amount due from reinsurer under the terms of reinsurance contract. In addition the Company also monitors the
financial ratings of 1is reinsurers on cach reporling date.

Loans and other receivables

These are recognized at cost, which is the far value of the consideration given. Howoewver, an assessment 15 made at cach
statement of financial position date to determine whether there 15 objective evidence that a financial assel or group of
asscts may be impaired. If such evidence cxists, the estimated recoverable amount of that assct is determined and any
impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the recoverable amount and the camying amount.

Zakat

Zakat oninvestment incomc is accounted forin the year of deduction, under Zakal and Ushr Ordinance, 1980,
Contingencies

Contingencics are disclosed when the company has possible obligation thal anises from past event and whose existence
will be confirmed only by eccurrence or non-occurrence of onc or more uncertain future cvents not wholly within the
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control of entity, or a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognized becanse 1t is not probable that an
outflow of rccourse embodying cconomic benefit will be required to scitle the obligation or, when amount of obligation
cannot be measured with sufficicnt rehability.

Contingencics are revicwed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current estimate.
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ASTA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

8.4 The following assets with book value below Rs. 50,000/- were disposed off during the year:

DVR {digital Vidco Record) 14,655 (%,109) 6,546 2,000 {4.5%6)
Solar Pancl 11,765 {5,393) 6372 i (6372)
Solar Pancl 11,765 {5,393) 60372 - (6372}
Solar Pancl 11,765 {5,393) 6372 - (6,372)
Laptop Dicll E6410 2210 (20,322) 1,678 6, D00 4322
Printcr-hp-p 4250 31,5040 (2%,535) 24965 = (2.965)
Laptop dell 21,500 {19.458) 2,042 - (2.042)
Laptop hp-probook 65600 21,000 (1%,771) 2229 4,500 2N
CPU 6,000 {5,776) 224 1,000 76
Laptop hp probook 65700 21,500 (20,607) H93 5,000 4,107
Laptop hp pro book 45205 20,3003 (19,379) 421 5, (M0 4,079
Laptop dell 19,000 {1%.042) 958 5,000 4,042
Laptop HP i5 21,500 {19.622) 1,878 5,000 3,122
Laptop 18,500 {16,343) 2,157 5,040 2343
LEA-1TA-9373 1 in - 1,050,000 1050, 00
AL Hater 1 ton 45,000 (39 298) 5702 10,0400 4.79%
CPU 13,080 (12,955) 75 3,140 1975
Primtcr 15,000 (14,601} 399 2,000 1,601
Printcr 10,000 (9.423) 577 [} {577}
Laptop 22,000 (20,645) 1,305 5,000 3,695
CPU 5,000 (4,659) 341 2,000 1,659
Attendance Machines 30,000 {27.671) 2379 0 (2329
Laptop 21,500 (19,726) 1,774 5,000 3,226
Laptop Dell E6410 21,500 (19,674) 1,526 3,000 1,174
Laptop dell 22,000 {20,020 1,980 5,000 3,020
Printcr-HP-4250) 7 A0 (6:,352) [T 2,500 1,852
Metro LEK-13A-3294 40,300 {36,990) 3310 H,182 4,572
Road Prince LEL-13A-4254 41,000 {37.567) 3,433 #1181 4,748
Road Princc LER-14-8313 41,600 (37.329) 4271 #3063 4,092
Road Prince LIDX-15-5994 42 400 (36,852) 5,548 K635 3,087
Road Prince LEX-15-2926 34,5000 (33,834) 5 il B636 2,970
Road Prince LEP-1TA-4268 39,000 {30,%73) ¥,127 10,904 2,781
Road Prince LEP-17A-4255 39,000 (30.873) %127 19,999 11,872
Telephonc-exchange 45,000 {39.49%) 5,502 0 (5,502)
Dispenscr 12,000 (4, 0059) 3,941 4,500 559
Laptop Lenovo 44,000 (42.727) 1,273 3,159 1,486
Microwave {ven 7,500 (4.814) 2 686 4,500 1314
Crown cr/ 70 LEO-8126 42,000 {37.396) 4604 20, TH30 15,396
Chair-5taft 5,500 {(3,270) 2230 0 (27300
Chair-Saff 5,500 {3,270) 2,230 0 (2,230}
Chair-Staft 5,500 {3.270) 2,230 ] (2.230)
UniqueK 1L 4329 43,500 {37 3%) 6462 22,0H00 15,538
UniqueKIU-4336 43,500 (37.03%) 6,462 27000 15538
Read Prince LEL-16A-2347 43,500 {36,651) 6,849 25,000 18,151
Motorcyele  LEK-16-9034 39,500 (33,280) 6,220 20,000 13,780
Road Prince LEY-17-7103 44,000 {35,990) £010 22,0400 13,990
Road Prince LEP-1TA-4272 34,000 (31,626) 7374 15 (4D T 626
Road Prince LEP-17A-4084 39,000 (31,329) 7675 20,000 12,325
Read Prince LEP-1TA-4106 34,006 (31,475) 7,525 20, (M0 12,475
Road Prince LEP-17TA-4157 39,000 (31.325) 7675 20,000 12,325
Laptop core i5 21,500 {19.935) 1,565 5,500 34935
Laptop 21,500 (19,935) 1,565 0 (1,565%
Printer-Canonc13p2 10,500 (% 656) R4 4,500 3686
Printcr-HP-2420 13,500 (12.424) 1076 i} (1,076}
Router TP fink 35,000 (7.076) 27924 ] {Z7.924)
Sub-Total 1386581 (1167644) 218937 1427063 1,208,126
Cirand Total 2024 17,284,985 (15401 | 92 18810427 s
Girand Total 2023 Q701,107 (87312600 969847 9126257  RI1S6410
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MNegotintion
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotiation
MNegotiation
MNegotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotiation
MNegotiation
MNegotiation
MNegotintion
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotiation
MNegotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
MNegotiation
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
MNegotiation
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotintion
Megotiation
MNegotiation
Megotiation
Megotiation
Megotintion

Betier Communication System
Azad Blectric Stores
Asad Electric Stores
Asad Flectric Storcs
Mew Cosmaos

Copicr Links

Mew Cosmos

Mew Cosmos

Mew Cosmos

Mew Cosmos

MNew Cosmos

Mew Cosmos

Mew Cosmos

The Computcr Profossional
Wagar Mustafa

Afzal Electronics
Bahoo Computer
Technoland

Copicr Links

Sarmad Laptop And Computcr
Mew Cosmos

Mew Cosmos

Mew Cosmaos

Sarmad Laptop And Computcr
Mew Cosmos

Copier Links

Malik Abdul Jabhar
Malk Abdul Jabhar
Mahk Abdul Jabhar
Malik Abdul Jabhar
Mahk Abdul Jabbar
Malik Abdul Jabhar
Malk Abdul Jabhar
Ideal Digital Services
Wajid And Sons
Century Compatcrs
Wajid And Sons
Muhammad Saced
Classic Wood Fumiture
Classic Wood Fommiture
Classic Wood Fumiture
Limique House

Unigue Houss

Inam Motors

Ahdullzh Traders

MiA

Amir Tagi

Hasech Ahmad
Ahbdullzh Traders
Ahdullah Traders
Tecno Craft

Sarmad Laptop And Computcer
Raza Printcr

Rara Printer

M) Compauters
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85 Right of use assets Note 31-Dec-2024 31-Dec-2023
The following is the statcment of right of usc asscts: Rupees Rupecs
Building
Year ended December 31,

MNet carry value basis

Opening net book value 76,736,324 05,908,920
Addition (at cost) 54,233,243 .
Adjusiment for lease remeasurement - -
Depreciation for the year (24,355, 71%) (19,172,596)
Closing net book valuc 106,613,848 76,736,324
Gross carry value basis

Cost 158,115,762 158,115,762
Addition (at cost) 54,233,243 -
Adjusiment for lease remeasurement - -
Accurmulaied depreciation (105,735,157) (81,379,438)
Net book value 106,613,848 76,736,324
Dicpreciation rate % per annum 10%-33% 10%-33%

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Frechold land (Residential plots) 9.1 40,827,320 40,827,320

9.1 The movement in this account i as follows:

Opcning balance 9.2 40.827.320 38,727,320
Additions = 2,100,000
Closing balance 40.827.320 40,837,320

9.2 This compriscs three residential plots at DHA Multan and considered as frechold land held for capital appreciation.
Investment property is mitially recognized al cost, being the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to imitial

recognition investment property will be carmed oul at cost mode]

10 INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES
Investments in equity securities

Held for Trading 10.1 240,290,722 85,430,962
10.1  Held for Trading

Listed shares

Cost 53,707,247 53,669,983

Add: unrealized Gain / (Loss) on revaluation of investment 48,837,993 18.363.524

Carrying valuc 10.2 102,545,240 72,033,507

Mutuzl lunds

Cost 120,957,352 11,544,629

Add: unrealized gam on revaluation of mvestment 16,788,130 1. B52 B26

Carrying valuc 10.2 137,745,482 13,397 455
240,290,722 85430962
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ASTA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

102 Investments - Held for Trading
3i-Dec3024 31 Dec 207
Cost wl . P i Cast "::: . ‘ I ¢ armying valos
LISTED SHARES
EFU LIFE ASSURANCE LIMITED 130, T (46,225) 4,451 130,706 (35,151) 95,555
MUCH BANK LIMITED ILAMETS  IRII3ITT 39,803,950 21 490673 2925152 24,415,825
HANK ALFALAN LIMITED 1007558 16,173,356 26,24 950 10,075,594 5,205,056 15,201,650
THE BANK OF PUNIAB SETEII0 16,251,980 26,160,206 9 KT8 220 5,803, 380 15,651,600
MEEZAN BANK LIMITED - - - 9,053,500 6,021,140 15,974,640
JUBILEE LIFE INSURANCE OO LIMITED 2,143,481 (1,398,462} T4SO19 2,141,290 (1,556,053) SRS 23T
MATIONAL BANK LIMITED 998,573 {4#5,933) 9,502 640 ! _
S3,707,247  4KK37.993 102,545,240 53,660,0K3 IR, 363,524 12,033,507
MUTUAL FUNDS
PAKISTAN INCOME FUND 13,077,134 AL 15,191,824 11,109,902 100, 195 12,510,100
HHL MONEY MARKET FLND 630,052 S3.248 683 33 534,727 52628 SKT,355
ALMERFSAMN INVES TMENT K7.250,1346 13,181,315 LA LAST . -
NHP Fuands 20, (W, LAXEETT I AIEETT
120,957 352 16, 78K 130 137,745,482 1,540 629 I_R52 576 13,397 455
“Tinkal Eiguity Securilies 174664599 65,626,123 240,290,712 63,214,612 20,216,350 3430902
11 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES Naie 31-DecZd 3D 23
Hueld iy matwrity Hupers Ruprees
Pakistan Investament Bonds and ‘Treasury Bilks 11 TA16.56 135,053,472
31-Dec2i4 31 Thec 2023
Cast "_""'“” Carrying value Cast ""’”""'"‘,.. f | | Carrying vakae
.m_
Hebd b maturity TH616506 - 79,616,506 TTAU3, B0 TTA03,601
Ciovermment securitio - - - STA49 T 57649571
Pakistan Invesiment Honds TH616.506 - 79,61 6,50 135,053,472 135,053 472
Treasury Hills
11.1 Pakistan Investments Bonds (PIBs) having face value of Rs. 83 million (2023: 83 million), carry intcrest ratc ranging
from 7.5% to 12% (2023: 7.5% to 12% ) per annum. Profit is paid scmi annually and these will mature latest by October
2025.
11.2 Company has deposited following secuntics with Statc Bank of Pakistan against statutory deposits under the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000-
31-Dec-24 31-Dece-23
Note Rupees Rupees
Pakistan investment bonds 79,616,506 135,053,472
79,616,506 135,053,472
12 INVESTMENTS IN TERM DEPOSITS
Held to maturity
Deposits maturing within 12 months 121 41 1,000,000 100,000,000
12.1 At amortized cost
Term deposit receipls (TDRs)
Bank Al Habib Limited 41,000,000
1J Bank Limited 110,000,000 -
WRSP Bank Limited 250,000,000 100,000,000
LOLC Bank 10,000,000 -
411,000,000 1 00, (00,000
12.2 This represents, investment in Term Dieposit Receipts {TDRs) with various banks, have a maturity period of one year and

will maturcd on May 03, 2025 Thesc carry mark-up 15.5 to 23.25% per annum.
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13

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Unsceured Considered good

Accrucd investment income

Balance with brokers

Sccurity deposits

Other receivable

MNote

13.1
13.2 & 133

31-Dec-24 31-Dec-23
Rupees Rupecs
58,297,369 24715111
56,671 69587
17,791,913 14,559,313
20,482,008 49,269 491
96,627,961 88,613,502

13.1 This includes balance amounting to Rs. 0.012 million (2023: Rs. 0.031220 million) with broker, Anf Habib Limited for

13.2

133

14

14.1

15

16

16.1

16.2

L

investment purposes.

This includes sccurity deposit against rented premiscs. The said deposit is refundable at the expiry of the respective rent
agreement or on vacation of the rented premises. These deposits do not carry any interest or mark-up.
This includes security deposit with related partics and their relatives amounting to Bs. 4.538 million against rented premises

(2023: Rs. 4.538 million) against rented premises.

INSURANCE / REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES

{Unsecured and considered pood)
Due from insurance contract holders
Less = Provision for impairment of receivables from insurance
contract holders

Duc from other insurers / reinsurers
Less: Provision for impairment of due from other insurers / reinsurer

Movement of provision for impairment is as follows:
Opening balance

Adjustment on account of:

Doubtful premium written off

Provision made for doubtful due from:

Due from insurance contract holders

Due from other insurcrs / reinsurers

MNet adjustment

Closing balance

TAXATION & LEVIES - PAYMENTS LESS PROVISION
Income tax deducted at source / payments (Advance Tax)
Prior year adjustment

I'rovizion for tax payable

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax (liability) / asset arising respect of:

Accclerated depreciation on property and equipment

Unrealized gain on re-measurement of investment - Profit and loss

Leases
Provisions

Balance at beginning of the year
Charged’ Reversal during the year
charged to profit and loss account

charped to other comprehensive income
during the year

Balance at the end of the year

14.1

14.1

16.1

184,926,762 166868179
(14,127,414)  (14,127414)
S567467.068 418879040
(14,096,612)  (14.096612)
724169804 557524003
(28,224.026)  (24.936,459)
. (2.761.713)

- (525,854)

. (3.287.567)
(28.224.026)  (28.224.026)
2,167,185 7.617 356
40,103,365 19,660,324
187,607 9,190,896
(53,638.486)  (34.301.391)
(11,180,329) 2,167,185
257,500 (676,511}
(19.031.576) (5.862.742)
1,136,018 10,147,077
8,184,968 8,184,968
(9,453,000) 11,792,792
11,792,792 58389937
(21,245,882) | | (46.597,145)
(21,245882)  (46.597.145)
(9.453,090) 11792792

The deferred tax asset has been recognized on the basis of future projections indicating the quantum of profits available for
utilization of losses carricd forward. In the event that future profits are not available, the tax losses and minimum tax would not

be utilized and may lapse.
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18.1

18.2

19

19.1

20
20.1

20.3

0.4

31-Dec-24 3-Dec-23
MNote Rupees Rupees
PREFPAYMENTS
Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 99,397,201 118,573,010
99,397,201 118.573,010
CASH AND BANK
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash in hand 60,0400 60,000
Cash ai bank
Curreni accounis 17,136,113 49333077
Saving accounts 18.1 44,364,136 350,549 661
61,560,249 399942 738

The rate of return on PLS saving accounts maintained at various banks ranges from 8.75% to 14% per annum (2023:

17.5% 10 22 5% per anmum ).
(Cash and bank include the following for the purpose of the cash flow stalement.

Cash and cash cquivalents 61,560,249 399,942,738
61,560.249 399942 738

TOTAL ASSETS OF WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS - OPF

Total liabilitics in window takaful operations 51,772,484 39080059

Total asscts in window takaful operations 156,773,408 108,668,589

Profit for the year 35412394 35144561

The financial staterments of window takaful operations are scparately prepared under the provisions of clause 11(b) of
Takaful Rules, 2012 rcad with Circular No. 25 of 2015 issucd dated July 9, 2015 and General Takalul Accounting

Repulations, 2019.
ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized share capital
2024 2023 31-Dec-2024 31-Dec-2023
No. of Shares Rupees Rupces
100,000,000 100,000,000 Ordinary sharcs of Rs. 10/ cach 1,000,000,000  1,000.000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid - up share capital
2024 2023
No. of Sharcs
40,337,391 40337391 Ordinary sharcs of Rs. 104 cach fully paid incash 403,373,910 403373210
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- cach issued as fully
27,670,852 27,670,852 paid honus s} 276,708,520 276,708,520
5,000,000 5,000,000 Statutory fund for window takaful opcrations 50,000,000 50,000,000
73,008,243 73,008,243 730,082,430 730082430

Amount of Rs. 50 million is deposited as statutory reserves (o comply with provisions of para 4 of Circular No 8 of 2014
rcad with section 1 1({c) of Takaful Rules, 2012 issucd by Sceurnitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

During the year 2018, the Company has issucd 15,337,391 shares to InsuResilicnce Investment Fund SICAY RAIF,
Luxcmbourg for an aggregate amount of Rs. 350 million bearing a premium of Rs. 12,82 per shares and total amounting

to Rs. 196,626,090/ under the sharcholders agrecmenL
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21

21.1
22

23.2
233

24

25

25.1

25.2

31-Dec-24 31-Dec-23
RESERVES - REVENUE

Revenue reserve
Giencral rescrves 21.1 2,500,004 2,500,000
These represent general reserves utilizable at the discretion of the board of dircctors.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Staff provident fund 1,391,511 992,124

The company operates a funded Provident Fund Scheme for its employecs and contributions are made monthly equal to
cmployces contribution (@ 8.33% (2023: 8.33%) of basic salary and cost of Tiving allowance.

LEASE LIABILITIES

Sceured

Lcasc liabilitics as at Beginning of ycar 111,726,246 152,183,457
Add: Additions during the ycar 20,278,333 -
Less: Completion of Leasc / remeasurcment -
Less: Payment made duning the year (34,454,794)  (54.986,602)
Add: Intcrest expense for the year 12,981 366 14,529 391

110,531,151 111,726,246

The contractual un discounted cash flows to which the Company is committed under the lease agreement and the years in
which thcy became duc are as follows:
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flow

Less than one year 55,160,934 33,959 358
Onc to five year 63,825,977 92,570,180
More than five year 14,978,863 21463219
Total undiscounted leasc hability 133,965,774 147 992 757

The above lishilitics were obligations under leases with various lessors for lease of buildimgs.
The Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate. The weighted average rate applicd is 12%
(2023: 12%) per annum.

INSURANCE / REINSURANCE PAYABLES

Duc to other insurcrs / reinsurcrs 149,522 136 122 693 450
149,522,136 122,693,450

OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Ouistanding agency commissions 84,827,650 0623606
Salcs tax 5,047,811 5664383
Federal insurance fec 1,531,279 1313375
Worker Welfare Fund 12,314,394 7,353 496
Tax deducted at source 1,983,104 1 448 669
EOBI payable 259,102 281,135
Receipts from forcign reinsurers 25.1 7,133,952 7.133.952
Aunditors” rermumeration 1,027,571 07,005
Unpaid and unclaimed dividend 252 2,487,961 1,562 995
Sccurity against vanous policics 18,480,603 18617103
Others 2,994,930 2,347 552

138,088,357 107,253,271

It represents reccipls from forcign reinsurers against scillement of reaty agrecments im 2011 after adjustment of
receivable balances.

The Company has transferred unpaid and unclaimed dividend Lo separate bank accounL
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d)

e)

CONTINGENCIESAND COMMITMENTS
COMMITMENTS
Suits for recovery ol approximate Rs. 209 290 million (December 31, 2023: Rs. 204 353 million) have been lodged but
are not accepled by the Company and the cases are pending adjudication before different courts. As per the Company's
legal advisor, such claims arc untenable and accordingly management has not provided any liability in respect thereof.
The Company has filed smil for recovery of Rs. 84.249 million (Decemboer 31, 2023: Rs. 104963  million) against
insurcr/remsurer for amount due. The management of the Company on the basis of the facts of the case and advice of the
lcgal advisor belicve that they have strong case and has not, thercfore, made provision in the financial stalements against
the aforcsaid claim.
The Commissioner Inland Revenue, under sccbon 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, imbiated an audit of the
income lax affairs for the tax year 2014, relevant to the financial year cnding on December 31, 2013, A final order under
scction 122 of the Ordinance was issucd by the tax department on July 31, 2019, resulting in a tax demand of Rs.1.245
million. This demand was established by disallowing various profit and loss expenses totalling Rs. 13 373 million under
section 174(2) of the Ordinance. The company filed an appeal against this onder before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue, Appeals (CIR-A), Lahore. The CIR-A, through an order dated May 06, 2021, pranted relicf to the company by
reducing the disallowed profit and loss expenses. Subsequently, the tax department filed a sccond appeal before the
Appcllate Trnbunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) challenging the CIR-A's order, and this appcal 15 currently awaiting
adjudication. [t is anticipated that there will be no un favourable outcome concernimg the tax liability.
The Commissioner Inland Revenue issued a withholding tax order under sections 161/205 of the Ordinznee, finalizing it
on July 27, 2017, resulting in a tax demand of Rs.47_713 for the tax year 2015, relevant to the financial year ending on
December 31, 2024, Subsequently, on June 30, 2021, the department issued another order under seetions 161/205 of the
Ordinance, creabing a tax demand of Rs 8285 million. The company filed an appeal against this order before the
Commissioner Inland Revenuc, Appeals, Lahore (CIR-A). The CIR-A, through an order dated January 12, 2022, deleted
the tax charged, citing it as a duplicate order. Despite this, the tax department filed a second appeal before the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue challenging the CIR-A's order, and it 15 currently awaiting adjudication. It is antictpated that
there will be no un favourable outcome regarding the tax liabality.
The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) finalized the order-in-original pertaining (o the tax period from January 2014 to
December 2015, This resulted in the creation of a sales tax demand of Rs. 19,807 million duc lo reinsurance premiums
reccived by the company from other insurance firms, as per the order dated December 31, 2022, The company lodged an
appeal against this order before the Commissioner (CIR-SRB). The CIR-SRE has upheld the order to the extent of the
principal amount of tax Rs 289 591 default surcharge, and penalty amounting to Rs. 14 480,
The tax department imposed Federal Excise Duty (FED) along with a penalty, eiting FED on sales tax mode for the tax
pernod from January 2012 to December 20015 (spanning 4 years) through orders dated June 01, 2016. This resulied ina
sales tax demand of Rs.172.252 million. The company appealed these orders before the Commissioner Inland Revenuc,
Appeals, Lahore (CIR-A). However, the CIR-A, through an order dated March 22, 2017, dismissed all four appeals
lodged by the company. Subscquently, the company filed sccond appeals before the Appellate Tnbunal Inland Revenue
{ATIR) challenging the CIR-A's decision. The ATIR, in orders dated Augnst 25, 2022 nullificd the FED charged by the
tax department, amounting to Rs.172.252 million. Additionally, the company initiated a writ petition before the Hon'ble
Lahore High Courl, Lahore, contesting the imposition of FED on sales tax modes. The case is currently awaiting
adjudication before the Hon'ble Lahore High Court.

£) In the mcome tax return for the tax year 2021, corresponding to the financial year ending on December 31, 2020, the

L
%

company offsct the previous year's refund adjusiment of Rs_ 18061 million agamst the tax payable for the tax year 2021.
However, the lax department finalized an order under scetion 221( 1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on March 13,
2023, disallowing the refund adjostment. Conscquently, 2 tax demand of Rs 18061 million was established. The
company appcaled this order before the Commissioner Inland Revenue, Appeals, Lahore (CIR-A). On May 31, 2023,
the CIR-A nullificd the order and directed the tax department te reconsider the matter in accordance with the law,
providing the company with a proper opportunity to be heard. The case 15 currently pending.
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n

The order was finalized by the Additional Commissioner (Enforcement), Punjab Revenue Board (PRA), recvant to the
tax period from July 2022 to June 2023, and a sales tax demand was created amounting to Rs.1,738.849 on account of
cxempt scrvices by-an order dated November 22, 2024, The company filed an appeal against the said order before the
Commissioner PRA. The matier is pending for adjudication. There is no likelihood of an un favourable outcome with

regard Lo tax liability.
26.2 Commitment

There is no known commitment as al December 31, 2024 (2023 nill). However, commitment agaimst lease liabilitics has
been disclosed in the relevant note to these financial statements.

31-Dec-2024 31-Dec-2023
Rupees Rupees
27  NET INSURANCE PREMIUM
Writtcn Gross Premium 1,234, 774,434 1 219,521 663
Add: Uncamed premium- rescrve Opeming 538,157.64%0 444 361,295
Less: Uncamed premium -reserve Closing {546,499077) (538,157.690)
Premium camed 1,226,433,047 1,125,725 268
Reinsurance premium ceded 216,377,173 265,554 297
Add: Prepaid remsurance premium - Opening 118,573,008 151,598, 164
Less: Prepaid reinsurance premium - Closing {99.397.201); | (118.,573,009)
Reinsurance cxponsc 235,552,980 298579452
700,380,067 827,145 816
28 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS
Claims Paid
Add: Ouiztanding claims including [BNR - Closing 452,525,768 543,533 646
Less: Outstanding claims ncluding IBNR. - Opening 309,940,175 254913907
Claims cxpense (254,913,997) (384332.836)
507,552,036 414,114,717
Reinsurance and other recoverics received 122,175,533 | | 226,690,814
Add: Reinsurance and other recoveries in respeel of outstanding claims - Closing 175,704,619 156,115 608
Less: Reinsurance and other recoverics in respect of outstanding claims - Opening (156,115,608)| |(247,439231)
Remmsurance and other recovencs rovenuc 141,764,544 135373191
365,787,492 278,741,525
281 CLAIM DEVELOPMENT
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Estimaic of ulimatc claims costs: o — Rs. m 00—
At end of accident year 240,301 295894 600211 382,080 531506
Ong year later 194 538 298,834 570,524 3IB5.445
Twao ycars later 194 988 301,774 568,952
Three years later 195 438 301,444 .
Four years later 195,511
Current cstimaic of cumulative claims 195,511 301444 568952 385445 531,506
Cumulative payments o date (183,178) (275,126) (547.175) (360.901) (373,015)
Liability recognized in the statement of financial position 12,333 26318 21,777 24,544 158,491

L
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29

30

303

31

NET COMMISSION AND OTHER ACQUISITION COSTS

Commission paid or payable

Add: Deferred commission expensc - Opening
Less: Deferred commission expensce - Closmg
Met Commission

Less: Commission reccived or recoverable

Add: Uncamned re-msurance commission - Opening
Less: Uncamed re-insurance commission - Closing

Commission from reinsurcrs

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Employee benefit cost

Travelling and conveyance
Advertisement and sales promotion
Printing and stationcry

Dicpreciation

Rent, rates and taxcs

Legal and professional charges -business related
Elcctricity, gas and water

Petrol, mal and lubricants

Riepairs and maintenance

Postages, telegram and telephone

Annual Supervision foc SECP

Service charges

Entcriamment

Provision for bad and doubtful reccivable
Miscellancous

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COST

Salancs, allowance and other bencfits
Charges for post cmployment benefit

30.1

303
30.2

i4

31-Dec-2024  31-Dec-2023
Rupees Rupces
259,994,726 277,853,735
140,105,642 03,163 086
(122,842 406) (140,105,642)
277,257,962 230911,179
37334919 34270518
14,034 468 15,678,432
(20,990,654)) | (14,034.468)
30,378,733 35,914 282
246,879,229 194,996, 897
213,933,701 169,606 874
10,399,792 2413203
4,025,798 5,707,058
6,242,604 7,544,299
35,806,229 32,115,769
8,588,260 7,722,985
5,153,227 4. 563,760
11,660,746 2488442
20,523,873 18,409,729
19,616,094 17,694,361
10,618,379 9.268,734
1,292,584 632,730
9,396,091 39385455
6,909,324 5,704,266
= 3,287,567
4,737,858 3,061,483
368,904,560 341,606,715
207,547,363 164,791,565
6,386,338 4815309
213,933,701 169,606,874

The Company has obtaincd 28 branches on operating leasc. According to management, these rental agreements have been
classificd as shori-term leases due Lo their duration being less than 12 months  or low value. The Company applics the

short-tcrm leasc recognition cxemption to 165 shorl-term leases of its asscts (i.c., those leasces that have a lease term of 12

months or less from the commencement date and donot contain a purchasc oplion).

DEPRECIATION
Opcrating fixed asscls
Right of usc asscts

INVESTMENT INCOME
Income from equity securities
Held for trading

- Dividend income on listed sceuntics
- Dividend mncome on mutual funds
Income from debt securities

Held to maturity

-Retum on Debt sccuntics
Income from term deposits

Held to maturity

- Retum on term deposits
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11,450,510 12,943,173
24355719 19,172,596
35,806,229 32,115,769
13,913,340 7,095,729

4,849,568 1,662,049

8,028,729 5,495,728
62,196,950 15,978,082
88088587 30231588
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32

33

35

Net realized fair value gains/(losses) on investments

Held for trading
- Listed sccurnitics
- Mutual funds

Net unrealized fair value gains/(losses) on investments

Held for trading

- Listed sccuritics

-Mutual funds

Held to maturity

- Dbt scountics

Total investment income

Less: Investment related expenses

Net Investment Income [ (loss)

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Rctum on bank balances

Realized exchange gain

Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of fixed asscts

OTHER EXPENSES
Aunditors’ remuncrabion
Fees and subscriptions
Workers” wellfare fund

Loss on disposal of fixed asscls

AUMTOR'S REMUNERATION:
Audit foo

Half yearly review fec

Other services (statutory retums)
Oul of pocket expenses

FINANCE COST

Finanee cost on right of use assct

TAXATION

Levics - final and mimimum tax:
-Final tax
-Mimimum tax

Current tax levies
Prior years levies

Taxation

Current

Super Tax
Deferred

For the prior year(s)
Current
Deferred
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31-Dec-2024  31-Dee-2023
Rupees Rupces
12873940 (105449 .087)
- 3,563,380
30,474,469 123,439,188
14,935,304 (2,233,138)
5,063,034 4,765,511
152,335,334 54,317,442
(765,032) (513.201)
151,570,302 53,804,241
44,934,321 70,800,454
- 3,068 855
16,831,381 8156410
61,765,702 82,025,719
1,234,132 1.067.615
2,439,633 2,094 458
4,960,808 3,148,139
8,634,663 6,310,212
924,636 772,391
85,800 85,800
156,996 142,724
66,700 b, 700
1,234,132 1,067 615
12,981,366 14,529,391
12,981,366 14,529,391
2814435 13.13,664
2.814,435 13,13,664
2,814,435 13,13.664
48,900,586 32,987,727
1,923,465 -
21,245,882 46,597,145
74,884,368 80,898,536
(187,607)  (9.190.896)
74,696,761 71,707,640
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35.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

2024 2023 2024 2023
T Rupees

Profit before taxation 243,083,991 157,406,936
Tax at the applicable rate 0.29 0.29 70,494,357 45,648,011
Effcet of super tax at the rate of 1% .01 - 1,923,465
Tax cffects of permanent diffcrences (0.02) (0.02) (4,960,898) (3,148,139)
Prior years fax 0.00 0.06 187,607 9_190,896
Final Tax (0.01) {(0.01) (2,814,435) (1,313 664)
Others 0.04 0.14 9,866,665 21,330,536
Average cifective rate 0.31 0.46 74,696,761 71,707,640

352 Asal December 31, 2024, as per the treatments adopied in tax returns filed that are based on the applicable tax laws and
decisions of appellate authoritics on similar matters, the provision m accounts for income tax s sufficient as there arc
strong grounds that the said treatmenis arc likely to be accepied by the tax authorities.

2024 2023
36 EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE Nate Rupees Rupces
Met Profit / (loss)aficr tax for the year 168,387,230 85,600,206
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Ouistanding 73,008,243 73,008 243
Eamings / (loss) per sharc - basic and diluted 36.1 2.31 1.17

36.1 Therc is no dilution cffcet on the basic camings per share as the Company has no convertible dilutive potential ordinary
shares outstanding al the year end; conscquently, the reported basic eamings per share is also the diluied camnings per
sharc.

37 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
The Company has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanent employees under the title of "Asia
Insurance Company Limited Employee Provident Trust”. The Fund 15 mamtamed by the Trustees and all decisions
regarding mvestiments and distribution of meome cte. are made by the Trusices mdependent of the Company.

The Trustees have intimated that the sizc of the Fund al year end was Rs. 83.034 million {2023: Rs. 61.843 million). The
catcgory wisc break up of investment as perscetion 21 8 of the Companies Act, 201715 given below:

31-Dec-2024  31-Dec-2023

(Rupees) (Rupces)
Brcak wp of fif vale of nvestments gut of providint fand i as ollows; Andiod Aol
Saving accounts 25,520,005 15,128,036
Term deposiis receipis 40, 00, 000 40,000 000
65,520,005 55,128,036
Employees' provident fund
Size of the fund 83,034,131 61,843,601
Mumber of members 124 133
Cost of investment made 65,520,005 55,128,036
Percentage of investment made T8.91% 89 14%
Fair valuc of investment 65,520,005 55,128,036
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38 REMUNRATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

338.1

39

L

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for emuncration, including all benefits, to the Chief
Exccutive, Dircctors and Exccutives of the Company arc as follows:

2024 2023
Execuli DMreciors | Exceutives Total E - Diectim | Excootives Tkl
Hupces Hupees

Muanagerial remuncration 21,135,085 2 17,189,807 38324892 10524750 z 0043779 20,468,529
Utilitics 276,900 z 2114424 2385324 1530450 = 1311689 2842139
Fees - - - - - - - -
Bonus 1,354,500 z 1833698 3,188,198 600,000 . 442651 1042651
Rent and house maintcnance 650,160 5 6,471,828 7,121,988 3811800 - 1653521 7465320
Contribution to defined-
Contribution plan 1,645,693 = 1067472 713,165 872340 : E73040 1745380

25 056,338 z 28,677,229 53733567 17339340 5 16224680 33 564,020
Exccutive Dircctors 15,056,338 . - 25,056,338 17339340 - - 17,334,340
MNon-Exccotive Director - - - - - - x -

25,056,338 = _ 25056338 17339340 - - 17339340
MNumber of persons 1 7 9 17 I 7 [ 14
The chiclexceutive officer, directors and cerlain executives are also provided with Company's maintained cars for official
purposcs.
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related pariics comprise of chicl exccutive officer, dircctors, major sharcholders, key management personnel, associated
companics, cotitics with common directors and cmployee retirement benefit funds. The transactions with related
partics arc carmcdoul al commercial terms and conditions and compensation to kcy management personnel 15 on
cmployment terms. The transactions and balances with related partics other than those which have been specifically
disclosed elsewhere in these financial stalemenis are as follows:

24 2023
Tramsactions - Tramsactions
2 Nature of Nature of i Clos
Mame of Parties relationship Eransarilons MNote during the l!ml during the  poy ing
B e 1 1= T R
Contribaticn payahle to provident fund EPFF Contribution to provident fund 6,386 338 T 4 215309 =
Payahlc 1391511 092,124
Directors, their spouscs and relatives  Sharcholders
{Country of ongin - Pakistan and and relatives ) .
relationship - Directors, spouscs and Secunity Deposit 4,537,500 4537 500
rclatives)
Fimal Cash Dividend 22 64 379 - - -
Bonus Shares Issucd (Nombers) - = _ =
Rental paid 33533320 = 0412874 =
Remuncrations and foc 25,056,338 = 17,339,340 -
Right of usc of ssscts - 39,115,730 - 76,624,154
Leasc lishilitics ; #9.653,759 _ 10,041,268
Commission paid 223914 555,600
InsuResilicnce Investment Fund Associated  Final Cash Dividend 1,887,254 *
SHZAV RAIF B 5 I 1 (MNumbers) B n B R
Key Consultancy Foc - - = N
Exccutives Mmgﬂmlt Remumncration paid IRETT 229 e 16,224 680 T
Person
Commission paid = - ~ -
Tagmu (Private) Limited Commaon Services Chanpes Paid 5,507 6E0 - 9261910 x
Direcior

Basis of relationship with the company
In respect of associated companics and holding company incorporated mside Pakistan with whom the company had entered into an agreement along with
hasiz of relationship is as follows:

MName of related party Country of origin Relationship Basis ol Association MW
InsuResilicnce Investment Fond Luxembourp Aszzociated undertaking Sharcholding 2547%
SICAVRAIF
Tagmu (Private) Limited Pakistan Related Party Common Dircctor -
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40 SEGMENT REPORTING
40.1 Following arc the scgment asscts, liabilitics, revenue and expenscs of the company

Hupees
FIRE AND MARINE HEALTH &
Courrent Perind ended December 31202 | poOPERTY | AVIATION AND MOTOR FERSONAL | MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL
| TR TRANSPORT ACCIDENT

Preminm received (inchusive of FED, FIF
o ) 627081932 132625313 176,024,057 I5H.GBE.961 139,440,960 1133861 243
Leess: Federal Excise Duty ! Sales Tax {28,842 200) {22, 590,598) {21,863 431) (10,209,295} (%, T2E. 739} {91,434,263)
Federal Insurance Fee {LESTIMT) (1979212} {1,139, 436} {LATOERO) (L5971} {TE52.546)
Crom Writien Preminm {inclusive sl Admin 508 384 685 208,055,523 153,620,198 147006786 129,706,250 1LEMTT4A
surcharpe) -
Cruss direct Freminm 152,007 B48 192 527,79 130,539, THY 146,48 423 97967397 T4D 991 153
Facaltative inward Premiom A8, 720,048 10,143,259 19,01, 97T - 20138 263 469,712,547
Administrative surcharge 3,647, TR 5384, 468 3ITRAZS SB363 1,600,550 15.870,634
Inserance Premiom exmed S62013,111 IOTS14.406 150,462 ARD ITT 465525 IZR.¥TT.515 1126433047
Insurance Premivm ceded fo rei (TIE,»SE9TH) (46, TTLAZT) {900, 555) {T&1.259) (60, G0, TET) (2135.551.900)
Ml Imswrance Preminm 443054 143 6742 97D 141,461,925 176,704 266 68 Y16,754 904 BE0 BT
Cmmissien inceme 15,158,554 3,349 658 - - 1770445 30,378,733
Net underwriling inceme 46K 312,713 FE4,092 67T 141461925 176,784,266 THLERT, 199 1,021,258 B00
Insurance cluims (208,423,567) (22,254 4K8) (BL79%6,089) | (IHT.967.970) {26, 069,924) {507,552,006)
Inzarance claims recovered frem

- 119,268,945 14335127 SAS4,T15 (521587} (T7L15T) 141,764,544
Mt claims. (H9, 154,627} {7.959_159) {53 341,874) {1HE.490_557) (26,841,081} {365, THT 402}
Commission expenses (168,202, 903) {49631 954} (29 B22.%03) (TAT6. 8581 (21,T23.344) (ITT257,96Z)
Mamagement crpenses (169, DER, DE0) (62 4 1R.&52) (45 264, 590) (53,380,400 (38, TT1.86%) (J6H D04, 5600
PFreminm deficiency expemse: - - - - 6,6l 2 B3 6642 B36
Nt Inserance claims aod expenses {426, 426,485) (120,009, 964) (128429, 366) (249,747,905} {B0,693.458) {1005 30°7, 1 TE)
Underwriting resulis A1ERE 148 A40ELTI 13032550 {73,043,639) (BB, B6, 250} 15,951,622
Mt investment inoome 151,578,302
ber income 61,765, T2
Fimance cosl {12,901, 366)
Prefit fram WT() Operstisos 3541239
Prefit before ta 243001991
Segment wseis 626,494,279 152,208 876 TIT 400,944 108,536,562 7471409 1,122, 114,030
Unallscated axsets 1264457776
Total nxsets 1,386,571 406
Sepment Habilitics 3. TIL034 99 413,920 147,69 641 141,255,252 133,570,552 1, 165,840,109
Unallscated Habilities 184,328 565
Total Fabilities 149368564
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40

41

L

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Rupees.
: FIRE AND MARINE HEALTH &
P T ol Theretees: 1 2 PROPERTY | AVIATION AND MOTOR PERSONAL  MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL
DAMAGE TRANSPORT ACCIDENT
Premium recefved {inclusive of FED, FIF
e ) SIT,175.395 195,506,401 140515976 197,681 441 260,161,509 L3IL2T3.722
Less: Federal Excise Duty [ Sales Tax {28, TR _266) (IR BAD 467 {18 336,0035) (10,205, BET) | 16,2195 053) (ELITARTH
Federal Tnsurance Fer (1L9I0ET) {1,659,635) (1,175,243 (LB4E A64) | { 1,963,001 RSTT,I80
CGross Written Premium (inclasive of Admin 485 475 202 175,807,384 121,307 698 184,847,914 251 RE1 455 1,219,521 661
sarcharge)
Cross direct Presinm IET.&B0,5T1 161,354,916 114,667 006 B4 797109 196, 166,928 B4, 666,530
Facaliative inward Premium 95,397,200 9,060,401 3,775 4H0 53,594,833 36LEITEI
Administrative surcharpe 3975 4592087 LB65,I12 S80S L2169 15827319
lusarznce Premiom carned 92,629,554 I70,E31.227 114,884,040 2129375903 135 542544 1L125,725.268
lasurance Premiom ceded Lo reinsaren (121,397,557} (57.937,387) (GEEMT) | (FMGTTE) (53,349,385) (298,579,452}
MNet Insnrance Pressinm TTUE3LEYT 112593540 107,235,693 153,891,127 1BL 493,159 BIT. 145816
Comminian income 13,668,771 3,790.801 4 94,237 T 468 469 ISHI4IRT
Net emderwriting income 04,792,768 116,684,641 07,235,697 154,885, 364 189,96 1 628 63,0,
B s it (132,515,876} {9,023,985) (60854,273) | (158957433) (52,763,230 L TIATIT)
Wb a4 Vil dusdivin bl T 110,960,106 4,499,502 796,360 626, 46K 861715 135,373,191
TENNSEIErs. 1
Met chainm {20,526.769) {4,524, 36) (SLESTALY)  (1SK33096S) {43,301.515) {(ITR.T41,525)
pmmission ciproses (L37,TH.TIT) (44,341, 570) (23,231,569} {6HILERT) (1B.656,316) (EIIILITH
Munagement cxpenses (11E,947.458) {51.555,599) 4604760 (64,631L990) (71,566,687 (41,506,715)
Met Insmramce claims and expenses {T77,563,944) (98, 6SEATO) (109.594,562)  (229854,642) (140,116,061} (K55, THE 0%
Underwriting resalts 17028824 1R025,T71 (LESEBES)  (T4.969.I7H) 49,545,568 TITLOIE
Met invesiment moome SRR 41
Other incame RESTIY
i{ther exproses (631021T)
Finamce cost {14.59.39T)
Profit from W) Operations 35144561
Prufit before tas 157486936
Sepment mscis R0, TR0 A5 113,544,556 B0.9231.219 111,156,881 186,414,442 972,318,353
Unsllcuird sxsets L1Z8495.031
Total surty 2100813384
Sepment abilities SIS 119,544 T2EE3,TII 120,619,520 173,925,900 161,146,937 LM3,695.622
Unallscated lisbilities 151, 798419
Toutal liahilities LI95494,051
Available Fair vahse
Held to ool urity Py b PEL Todal

MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS
As at Fatwary 01, 202 75406368 166,268,535 261,764,903
Aditions 157649571 29907314 167,557, 145
hesprals {xale and redemptson) (110 424.544) {111 AZ4.544)
Amntization of Pk 1907233 —l LNzra
Fair value ot gaimes {echusdmg et nzisend gams) 2 (19320343 (19320,343)
Al beginning of January 01, 2024 235,053 ATZ BS AML962 320 ABLA34
Aklitions 311,000,004 119,403,457 30 403 AKT
Dzl {sale and fodemption) (57,649,871} (IS974,660)  (T3.624,511)
Amstiztion of F1Hs 2,212.905 . LIS
Fai valmn oot gins (excliding sl realiood gains) . S1. 438,913 51.430.913
At end of current year 490,616,506 240,290,722 730,907,228
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42.1

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
Risk management framework
The Company's activitics exposc it to a vancty of financial risks; credit nisk, liqudity nisk and market nsk. The Company's
overall risk management process focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and sccks to minimize potential
adverse cffects on the financial performance. Overall nsks ansing from the Company's financial asscts and liabilitics arc
limited. The Company consistently manages ils exposure to financial nisks withoul any material change from previous
period in the manner described in notes below. The Board of Dircctors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of Company's nisk management ramework and is also responsible for development of the Company's nisk
management policics.
Insurance risk
The risk under an insurance contract is the possibility that the insured cvent occurs and the unceriainty of the amount of the
resulting claim i.c. frequency and sevenity of elaims and that the actual claims and bencfit payments exceed the earrymg
amount of the insurance liabilitics. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this nsk is random and therefore
unpredictable. The Company’s risk profile is improved by diversificalion of these risks of losses Lo a larpe porifolio of
contracis, sincc a diversified portfolio is Iess likely to be affected by an unexpected cvent in single subsct. The Company
principally issucs the general imsurance cover. Risks under these policics usually cover a twelve month duration. For
general msuranee contracts, the most significant risks anse from fire.
Underwriting limits and retention policics and procedurcs preciscly regulate who is authornized and accountable for
concluding insurance and reinsurance contracts and at what conditions. Compliance with these guidclines is regularly
checked and developments in the global, regional and loeal markets are closely observed, reacting, where necessary, with
appropriate mcasures that are translated without delay imto underwriting guidelines if required. The primary risk control
measurce in respect of the msurance nisk 1s the transfer of the nsks to third partics through reinsurance. The reinsurance
business ceded is placed on a proportional and non proportional basis with retention limils varying by lines of business.
Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it docs not,
however, discharge the Company’s liability as poimary insurer and thus a eredit nsk cxposure remaims with respeet to
remsurance ceded (o the extent thal any reinsurer may be unable to meet iis obligabons under such reinsurance
arrangements. The Company minimizes such credit risk by entering inle reinsurance armangements with reinsurers
having good credit ratings, which arc reviewed on a regular basis. The ereditworthiness of reinsurers 15 considered on an
annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior to finalization of any contracl.

42.1.1 Fregquency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like political violence, environmental and
ceonomical, atmospheric disturbances, nalural disasters, concentration of risks, civil niots cte. The Company manages
these nisk through the measures descnibed above.

The Company monitors conceniration of msurance nisks pnmarily by class of business. The table below scis oul the
concentration of the claims and premium liabilitics (in pereentage terms) by class of business as at the balance sheet date:

2024 0623
o AP i Giross Net clal Giross Met Caross Net clalme Caross Met
claims lability prenalam e wims claims Ll e ik wm premdum
liahility liabdlity liahility Liahdlity lkability Tiabllity
a i a Y L] Ha L] o
Fire and propenly danage S0t 38% 57% dR% 5T 64% 1% 51%
Marine, aviation and transpon 0% 2% L 17% % ] 3% A%
Motor 13% 11% 13% 12% 1% L] 13% L1%
Health £ 42% 14% 12% 10% L] 20% 16%
Meccllhneous 0% 7% 13% 11% 15% 4% 13% 16%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 1% 1% 1040%
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42.1.2 Source of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation of uncertainty al the balance sheet date relates to valuation of outstanding claims, whether
reporicd or not, and includes expected claims scitlement costs. Considerable judgment by management is required in the
cstimation of amounts duc to policyholders arising from claims made under insurance contracts. Such cstimates arc
necessarily based on assumptions about scveral factors, involving varying and significant degrees of judgment and
uncertainty, and actual resulls may differ from management's estimates resuliing in future changes in cstimaied labihibes.
Judgment is further used to assess the cxtent to which extenal factors such as judicial decisions and povemment
legislation affect the cstimates.

Similarly, the provision for claims mewrred but not reporied 1s based on historic reporiing pattern of the claims; henee,
actual amount of incurmed but nod reported claims may differ from the amount cstimated.

42.1.3 Keyassumptions

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Premium Deficiency Rescrves is that the
Company’s futurc claim devclopment will follow similar historical pattern for occurrence and reporting. The
management uses qualitative judgment (o assess the extent lo which past ocourrence and reporting patiern will not apply
in futurc. The judgment includes extermal factors c.g. treatment of onc-off occurrence claims, changes in market factors,

ceonomic conditions, cle. The internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claim handling procedurcs are
further used mn this regand.

42.1.4 Claims development

The Company maintains adequate reserves in respect of ils insurance business in order o protect iisclf agamst adverse
future claims expericnce and developments. The uncertaintics about the amount and timing of claim payments arc
normally resolved within onc year.

Claims which mvolve litigation and, in the case of manne, general average adjustments take longer [or the final amounts

to be determined which exceed one year. Claims of last five years arc disclosed in note 28.1. All amounts arc prescnted in
gross numbers before reinsurance.

42.1.5 Sensitivity analysis

The insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions. The analysis below is performed for possible

movements in key assumptions, with all other assumptions held consiant, showing the impact on liabilities and revenue
account

December 31, 2024 Rate I i s
Current claimms R 50,755,204 (50,755,204)
e (50,755,204) 50,755,204

December 31, 2023 Rate -'::::" ""::‘.:’::-’
Current claims it 41411472 (#1411 A7)
- (41,411,472} 41411472

42.2 Reinsurance risk

L

An analysis of gross amount due from other insurers and reinsurers recognized by the rating of the entity from which it is
duc iz as follows:

Ampuni dee from Heinsurance | (iher reinsarasce
recoveries against
Hatisg: reinsurers oy assels
claims
A or above (including PRCL) ST 46T 068 175,704,619 99,397,201
Total 567467068 175,704,619 99.397.201
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Geographical concentration of insurance risk

To optimize bencfits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extremne
importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the asccumulation of risks with reference
to the geographical location, the most important ofwhich is nsk survey.

Risk surveys arc camicd oul on a regular basis for the cvaluation of physical hazards associated with  the
commercial/indusinalresidential occupation of the insurers. Details regarding the fire separation/scgregation with
respect to the manufacturing processes, storage, utilitics cte. arc extracted from the layout plan of the insured facility.
Such details form part of the reports which are made available o the underwniers/remsurance personnel for their
cvaluation. Relerence is made o the standard construction specifications as laid down by LAP (Insurance Association of
Pakistan) forinstance, the prescnce of Perfoct Party Walls, Double Fire Proof Iron Doors, physical scparation between the
buildings within an insured's premises. I is basically that the property contained within an area which is scparated by
another property by sufficient distance Lo confine insured damage from uncontrolled fire and explosion under the most
adverse conditions to that onc arca.

Address look up and geocoding is the cssential ficld of the policy data micrphase of 1T systems. [t provides instant
location which is dependent on data collection provided under the policy schedule. All entical underariting information
15 punched into the IT system/application through which a number of MIS rcports can be gencrated Lo asscss the
concentration of sk,

For Mannc nsk, completc underwriting details, besides sums insured and premiums, like vessel identification, voyage
input (secalairinland transit), sailing dates, onigin and destination of the shipments, per carry limits ctc. arc fed into the IT
system. The reinsurance module of the 1T system is desipned to satisfy the requirements as laid down in the proportional
treaty agreemenl. Shipment declarations are also endorsed on the policics. Respective reinsurance cessions arc
automatically made upon the postimg of policy documents.

Reinsurance arrangements

Keceping in vicw the maximum cxposure in respect of key zonc aggregates, a number of proportional and non proportional
CINsuUrance arangements arc in place to protect the net account in case ol a major catastrophe. Apart from the adeguate
event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional treaty, any loss over
and above the said limit would be recovered from the non proportional treaty which is very much m line with the nsk
management philosophy of the Company.

The Company monilors conceniration of insurance risks primanly by class of busincss. The table below sets out the
conceniration of the claims and premium liabilitics (in percentage terms ) by class ofbusiness as at the balance sheet date:

Giross sum insured Heimsuramce Met
Direct and Facullative P ] [ 2003 024 | 23 2024 | 2023
Blupees
Firc and property damape ATT.TRT,TI43T2 ISTADGMS TR AGE2T] 960 0ES G242 AN6 WET D555, TS IRT 2, Dl S48 736
Marine, aviation and transpon I50TT,TSENTY | NE0.644. 958,812 259,176,202,912 61, 326,63L961 5,901,555, 161 119,318,327 851
Blodor 10,603,855 583 B33 941 542 1B %0, 950 393 SO8 6 26 AR AN T.735, 895116
Healih & A TIDZ 315933 7. 74591 1,000 - T A2 315933 T.745,911 (=0
Mlizcelbapeous 15804 529 817 21,759 631 202 I5 4R 439 221 i {1, 2T 1 e 316,000, 596 15,723 421,302
Todal B6 75 3T 690 575,E90 530,274 TERIET 596610 161,203,426, 264 15 BRT, TTT.DER A B4 690, 1,05

L
%

Sources of Uncertainty in cstimation of future claim payments
Claims on general msurance contracts arc payable on a claim oceurrence basis. The Company 1s liable for all insurced
evenits thatl oceur during the term of the insurance contract.

An estimated amowunt of the claim is recorded immediately on intimation to the Company. The estimation of the amount is
based on the amount notified by the policy holder, management or preliminary assessment by the independent surveyor
appointcd for this purposc. The mitial cstimates include cxpected scitlement cost of the claims. Incurred But Not
Reported (IBNR) claims have been estimated vsing Chaim Ladder (CL) methodology. The Chain Ladder (CL) Mcethod
mvolves determimation of development factors or link ratios for cach period. These are then subsequently combined to
determine Cumulative Development Factor (CDF) which represents the cxtent of futore development of claims to reach
their ultimate level. IBNR for all classcs is determined and recognized in accordance with valuation camed out by an
appomted actuary which is alsobased on Chain Ladder (CL) method.
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There arc scveral variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognized claim liabilitics. However, the
management considers that uncertainty about the amount and timing of claim payments is generally resolved within a
year The Company Lakes all reasonable measures (o mitigate the factors affecting the amount and timing of claim
scttlements. However, uncertamiy prevails with estimaied claim habalities. It is likely that final sctilement of these
liabilitics may be different from recognized amounts.

Changes in assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Premium Deficiency Reserves is that the
Company’s future claim development will follow similar historical patierm for occurrence and reporting. The
management uses qualitative judgment to asscss the extent to which past eccurrence and reporting pattern wall not apply
in futurc. The judgment includes extemal factors c.g. treatment of one-ofT occurrence elaims, changes in market factors,
coonomic condibions, ctc.

Financial risk

42.3.1 Credit risk

L

Credit risk is the risk that the counter party to a financial instrument will causc a fimancial loss for the Company by failing
o discharge an obligation. The Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter partics in
accordance with the intermal guidelines and regulatory requirements.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum cxposure to credit nisk before any credit enhancements at December 31, 2024 is the cammying amount of the
financial assets as sct oul below:

MNature of financial assets 2024 2023

Investmenis Rupees Rupees
Equity sccuritics 240,290,722 85,430,962
Dcht sccuritics 79616506 135,053,472
Term deposits 411,000,000 100000000
730.907,228 320,484 434
Loans and other receivables 96,627,961 88,613,502
Insurance / reinsurance rcecivables 724,169,804 557,524,093
Reinsurance recoverics against outstanding claims 175,704,619 156,115,608
Cash and bank 61.500,249 399 8R2 738

1,788,909.861 1522 620375

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of risks arise when a number of financial instruments or conlracts are entered into with the same counter
party, or where a number of counter partics are engaged m similar business activitics, or activitics m the same geographic
region, or have similar cconomic fcatures that would cause their ability to mect contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in cconomic, political or other conditions. The Company’s portfolio of financial asscls is broadly
diversificd and transactions arc entered into with diverse eredit worthy counter partics, thereby mitigating any significant
concentration of credit nsk. Provision for impairment 1s made for doubtful reccivables according to the Company's
policy.

The remaining past duc balances were not impaired as they relate o a number of policy holders and other insurers /
reinsurcrs for whom there i1s no history of defaull. The credit quality of the banks with which Company has balances
including TDR"s can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as Follows:
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o o Tl S‘hrttunmrglmg term | Rating agency 2024 J 2023
Cash at bank W
15 Bank Limitcd Al+ AA PACRA EORTe 1,647,820
United Bank Limited Al+ AAA JCR-VIS [RELETE] 2930, 358
Summit Bank Limited® W/A M/A - 7X42.533 44,761 509
Silk Bank Limited A2 A JCR-VIS lam01s Gy ARG
MCE Bank Limitcd Al+ AAA PACEA ELIERATHE] 200,00
Askan Bank Limuted Al+ AN+ PACRA 41019 35,708
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA RRES Sk 5420253
Hahib Bank Limitcd Al+ AAA JCR-VIS 1,697,900 21579950
The Bank of Khyher A-l A+ JCR-VIS 1,24 L7
SME Bank Limitcd* NIA MNIA - - -
Soner Bank Limited Al4+ AA- PACRA 1,507, %04 497176
Bank of Arad Jammu Kashmir®* N/A MIA - R LA
Punjab Provincial (o - operative Bank® MFA MiA - 15215 15215
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA+ PACRA L1 300
Bank Al- Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA R I 5,135,077
Zarani Taraqivati Bank Limited Al+ AAA JCR-VIS TIHES TI7, 708
Natonal Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA TNL4,3R2 Ef L
Khushhali Microfinance Bank Limited A2 A- JCRVIS IGLATI 1,255,255
Duhai Islamic Bank Limited Al+ AA JCR-VIS 25,951 A3,98]
Samba Bank Limited A-1 AA JCR-VIS 26861 TaR, 781
Sindh Bank Limited Al+ AA- ICRVIS H ARG B80S
MNRSP Microfinance Bank Limited A2 A~ JCRVIS 24,475,232 295,712,387
U Microfinance Bank Limited Al At JCR-VIS T4 55 2ATGRES
Finca Microfinance Bank Limited A2 BHB+ PAURA 120737 |44, 9010
The Karakum Co-Operative Bank Limited N/A M/A - WL AL 02 IS
Bank Alfalah Limiied Al+ AAA PACRA 1,420,560 9,274,443
LML Micro Finance Bank AZ A~ JCR-VIS iy -
&l ,500,244% 30 KA T34
MRSP Microfinance Bank Limitcd A2 BEE- JCRVIS 25000, D L8 AN, ERENS
15 Bank Limited Al+ AA PACEA - B
L] Microfinance Bank Limited Al At JCR-VIS LR [ORALTERA T -
Bank Al-Hahib AA+ JCRVIS A1, 0o -
Khushhah Microfinance Pank Limited A2 A- JCR-VIS 10,000, 00 =
LOLE Micro Finance Bank A2 A JCRVIS 219,400,000 100 0,000

The following are the contractual matuniics of financial asscts and Babilitics on an undiscounted cash fow basis:

Financial Liabilities: 2024

Up to One Year | More Than One Year

Cuistanding Claims Inchuding 1BNR 309,940,175 309,940,175 =
Insurance / Reinsurance Payahies 149,522,136 149,522,136 B}
Rctirement Bencfit (fbligations 1391511 1391511 :
Mher Creditors and Acernals 138,088,357 138,088 357 :
_ SUR.942.179 98,942,179 -
Financial Liahilities: 2023
Cutstanding Claims Including 1BNR 254,913,907 254,913,907 ]
Insurance  Reinsurance Payahles 122.683.450 122,693 450
Rctirement Bencfit Obligations 997,124 992,124 s
{hher Creditors and Accroaks 107,253,271 107 253 271 -
485852752 485,852,752 s
Financial Assets: 2024 [[‘ln'yilgﬁmlnil Up i One Year | Fm]—!yun]'hlnrzﬂlm!j'ml1
Insurance / Remnsurance Receivables 724,169 504 T24,169 804 z
Remsurance Recoverics Apaimst Outstanding Claims 175, TM.619 175,704,619 -
Accrued investment incomec 58,297.369 58,297 369 -
Balance with brokers 56,671 S6.6T1 -
Secunty deposits 17,791,913 17,790L.913 = -
(Mher receivable 10481008 20 AR DOR
T 006502384 D96, 502 354 _
Financial Asseis: 2023
Insurance / Reinsurance Reccivables 557,524 093 557,524,093 - -
Reinsurance Recoverics Agaimst Cutstanding Claims 156,115,608 156,115,648 o -
Acorued investment income 24,715,111 24,715,111 - -
Balance with brokcers 69,567 69,587 - -
Scourity deposits 14,559,313 14,559,313 - -
Other reccivabic 49,269 491 49,269,491 - -
#12,.753,208 BOZ,253,203 = =
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The credil quality of amount due from other insurers/ remsurers and reinsurance recovencs agamst outstandmg claims can
be assessed with reference to cxternal crodil ratings as follows:

Amoont doe from | Reinsorance | 2024 I 023
other insarers /  |recoverics Rupees
Teinsurers outsianding

(carrying amonn ) claims
A or above (including PRCL) 475,712 400 146,529,408 622,251 RO8 AKD 001 455
Below A TO4, T3 - T4, 703 73,638 656
Others 90,949,875 29,175,211 120,125,086 12,355,393
Total S6T AGT, D68 175, 7,619 T43, 171687 574,995,548
Impaired assets

The impairment provision is written-ofT when the Company expects that il cannot recover the balance duc.

42.3.2 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the nsk that the Company will cncounter difficulty in mecting its financial obligations as they fall duc.
Liguidity nsk anscs beocause of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its hiabilitics carlicr than
cxpected or difficulty in raising funds to mect commitments associated with financial liabilitics as they fall duc.

The Company's approach to managmg liquidity 1s o cnsure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient hiquidity
to meet its liabilitics when duc, under both normal and stress condiions, without incurring unacceptable losscs or nsking
damage to the Company's reputation. In the casc of the Company, the ligumdity level remained on satisfactory level duning
the year and Company did not face any difficulty in gencration of Tiguidity.

The following arc the contractual maturitics of financial liabilitics including cstiimated interest payments on an un
discountcd cash flow basis:

- Contractual cash M than
Carrying amount| " e Up te one year -::trﬂr
Financial Liabilities: 2024 s
Outstanding Claims Inchding IBNR 309,940,175 309,940,175 309,940,175 z
Insurance / Reinsurance Payablcs 149,522,136 149,522,136 149,522,136 -
(Mher Creditors and Accruals 138,088,357 138,088,357 135,088,357 =
Loanc Linhifitics 118,531,151 133,965,774 55160934  THB04,840
THEBELEID TIL516.442 652711602  TH.BM.840
Financial Liabilities: 2023
Owtstanding Claims Including IBNR 754,913,907 254,913,907 254,913,907
Insurance / Reinsurance Payahles 122,693,450 122,693 450 122,693,450
Oither Creditors and Accrusls 107 253,271 107,253 271 107,253 271 -
Lease Liahilitics 111,726 246 147 992 757 13,959 354 114,033 31
506, 586 474 632 853 385 SIRR19.9%6 114033399
Sensitivity analysis

The risks associated with the insurance contracts arc complex and subjeet to a number of variables which complicate
quantitative scnsitivity analysis. The sensitivity analysis is performed on the same basis as that of last year. The Company
makes vanous assumplions and tecchniques based on past claims development expericnce. This includes mdications such
as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and cxpected loss ratios. The Company considers that the liability for
imsurance claims reeognized in the balance sheet is adequate. However, actual expericnce will differ from the expected

oulcome.
As the company cnters into short term insurance contracts, it docs nol assume any significant impact of changes in market

conditions on uncxpired risks. However, some results of scnsitivity testing are sct oul below, showing the impact on profit
before lax net of reinsurance.

_____ Pretax Profit — Sharebolders’ equity
3024 . 3033 ]
Rupees

10% decrease in Profit
Firc and peoperty damage (8,915,462) (L052,67T) (6,329,978) (1,457,401}
Miarine aviation and tranapor (795.936) {452 A36) (565,115) (321,230)
Woknr (5A34,18T) (5,205, 791) 3,787.273) {3,696,112)
Healih (18,849,056) (15,833.097) (13382,8530) {11,241 ,499)
Miscelancous (2,684, 108) (4,330,152) {1,905, 717) (3,074 408y

(36,57R, 7T49) (Z7,874.153) (ZE9T0,912) 119,790,649)
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42.3.3 Market risk
Market nisk 1s the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate beeause of changes in
market prices of sceurities. This can be duc to a change in credit rating of the issucr or the instrument, change in market
scntiments, speculative activitics, supply and demand of securitics and liquidity in the market.
Moarkct nisk compnises of three types of nsks: pnice nsk, interest rate risk and currency nsk.

42.3.4 Price risk
Primarily, the Company's cquity imvestments are exposced Lo the price nisk. Price risk is limited by the Company through
diversification ofits portfolio and active monitoring of capital markets.
Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial mstrument will fluctuate beecaose of changes in the market
prices (other than those ansing from interestmark up rate risk or currency nisk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the mdividual financial mstrument or its issucr, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments
traded in the market. The Company is cxposcd to cquity price nisk since it has investments in gquoted cguity sccuritics
amounting to Rs. 103/ million-(2023: 72/ )million at the balance shect date.
The Company’s stratcgy is to hold its strategic cquity investments for long peniod of time. Thus, Company’s management
is not concemed with short term price fluctuations with respeet (o its strategic investments provided that the underlying
business, cconomic and management charactenistics of the mvestee remain favourable. The Company strives to maintain
above average levels of sharcholders' capital to provide a margin of safcty agamst short lerm equity price volatility. The
Company manages price risk by monitoring exposure in gquoted equity sccuritics and implementing strict discipline in
intcmnal risk management and imvestment policics.

The carrying value of investmenis subject to equily price risk arc based on guoted market prices as of the balance sheet date
and available for sale cquity instruments which are stated at fair value.
Moarket prices arc subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realized in the subsequent sale of an investment may
significantly differ from the reported market value: Furthermore, amount realized in the sale of a particular secunty may be
affccted by the relative quantity of the sccurity being sold. The Company has no sigmificant concentration of price risk.
Sensitivity analysis
The table below summarnizes company's cquity price nisk as ol December 31, 2024 and 2023 and shows the effects of a
hypothetical 10% increase and a 109 deercase in market prices as at the year end. The selected hypothetical change does
not reflect whal could be considerced to be the best or worst case scenarnios, resulis could be worse becanse of the naturc of

cquity markcts.
Estimated fair valne|  Hypothefical [ Hypathetical
‘ Fair valne 1 :'g!"f“‘“l [ afier hypothefical [mﬁfm S renae/fdecresie)
chanpe in prices | hareholders’ in profit before tax
December 31, 2024 HL.545,240 10%% imcrease HIZ7T99,764 T280,7T12 254,524
10% decrease 92,290,716 (7,280,712) (10,254,524)
December 31, 2023 72,033,507 10% mcreasc 70236, 858 5114379 7,203,351
10% decroase 64,830,156 {5.114,379) {7.203,351)

42.3.5 Interest/mark up rate risk
Interest/mark up ratc risk i1s the risk that value of a financial instrument or futurc cash flows ol a financial instrument will
fluctuate duc to changes in the market interestmark up rates. Sensitivity to interest/mark up rate nsk anscs from
mismatches of financial assets and liabilitics that mature or re-price in a given period. The company manages these
mismatches through risk management strategics.

The financial instruments of the Company can be classificd into fixed ratc instruments and vanable rate imstruments as

shown below:
Financial asscts ’
Saving accounts BT to 14% 17.5% 1w 22 50 4,364,136 350,549 661
Dicposits maturing within 12 months - Fixed ratc Investments 15.50% o 23.25% 24%, 411,000,000 100, C0W0, 0N
- Intcrest bearing - Fived rate T.50% to 12% T5% to 12% T616,506 135,053 472
534 980,642 585 4413, 133

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company docs not account for any fixed rate financial asscts and habilitics at fair valuc through profit and loss.
Therelore, a change in interest rales at reporting date would not affcet profit and loss account.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

An imcrease of 100 basis points in inlerest rates would have increased the profit and loss by the amounis shown below.
Reduction in interest rates by 100 basis points would have an opposite impact. This analysis assumes that all vaniables
remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the comparative period.
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Profit before tax Total equity
e bp 100 bp 1040 bep 100 bp
increase decrease increase decrease
Ruopees
As 31 December 31, 2024- Sensitivity 5349, 506 (5,349, 806) 3.T9R.362 (3,79, 36T)
As at December 31, 2023- Sensitivity ' 5,856,031 (5.856,031) 4,157,782 {4,157,782)

Above sensitivitics arc calculated on the assumption that all {sctors Temamn constant except interest rates and resulting
varation in [air values of the mvestments and impact on the profit and loss.

The Company monitors the interest rate cnvironment on a regular basis and alters the portfolio mix of fixed and floating
rale sccuritics. The Company™s policy requires the management to manage the risk by measunng the mismaich of the
interest rate scnsitivity gap of financial assets and liabilitics and ealeulating the average doration of the portfolio of fixed
interest securitics. The average ¢ffeetive duration of the Company’s porifolio 1s 2 measure of the sensitivity of the fair
value of the Company s fixed mterest sceurities to the changes in market interest rates.

The Company s policy refrains from the holding of interest bearing instruments that mduce the average cffective duration
of the fixed interest portfolio to pass the benchmark of the average duration.

Intcrest rate of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilitics as at December 31, 2024 can be cvaluated from the
note 45.

42.3.6 Foreign currency risk

4.1

L

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of finaneial instruments will fluctuate becavse of
changes in forcign cxchange rates. The Company, at present is not matenially exposed to currency nisk as majonity of the
transactions arc carmied cut in Pakistani rupees.

CAPITALMANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to confinue as a going concerm in
order to provide retumns for sharcholders and benefit for other stakcholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure (o
reduce the eost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to sharcholders, retum capital to sharcholders, issuc new sharcs or scll asscts to reduce debis. The
Company's overall stratcgy remains unchanged from 2012. The company has not obtained long term finance and shorl
term borrowings, therefore gearing ratio of the company is not applicable. In accordance with S.R.0. 8312017 of
Sccurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), minimum paid up capital requirement o be complicd with by
Insurance Companics at the end of each year are as follows:

2024 | 2023 [ 2022
(Rupees)
Minimum paid up capital 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying valucs of all financial assets and liabilitics reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
Fair value is the price that would be reccived (o sell an asset or paid Lo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current markel conditions (i.e. an exit pricc)
regardless of whether that price is dircetly obscrvable or estimated using another valuation technigue. The Company uscs
the following hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technigue:
Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input for which the fair value measurement is directly or
indircetly obscrvable.

Level 3: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level inpul for which the fair value measurement is unobscrvable.
Carrying amount of asscts measured under historical cost convention approximate there fair value. Further, faire value of
certain asscts measurcd under present value convention is not determinable. Hicrarchy of fair value Ievels is disclosed as
umndcr.

Age-wise Breakup of Unclaimed Insurance Benefits

Parti Total A 1io6 Tto 12 13 to 24 25 to 36 Beyond 36
‘ Culay mt months months months months maomnths
{Rupees}
Other unclaimed benefits 14,517,991 9,268,813 TOL173 TALSET T05,181
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44.2 HIERARCHY OF FAIR VALUE LEVELS

31-Dwee-MEZ4
B o Lomns and (ihver Mivia st el
Hichd- bs-iasa Eniily Tatal Lewel 1 Laewel 2 I Livel 3 Tatsl
Fianiickal sasels meisared ai kair valec
lerecslineiis Waptey
- Fyuily st 140,790,712 - - - 240,190,711 248,190,711 = - 130.190,711
Assets ol Wi Tiak afl Cpersl s -
O iudon's Fusl " - = - _
Financial sascis mal dl sl Ewir-
valne
lerecslinesit
- T ileposl® - 4711000 590 - - AT0000, 0 - 411000 40 - 411,000 b
- Thedvt securmes. - T S0 = = b TR H = -
s i il roceivahbe® - - L T el 9 | = B 6IT 961 - - - -
! e b - - T24, 165 404 u TR 169 B - - a x
Ko sons s apiina
uubilainlin chain® . - 175, 704619 E e T L] - - -
Camli s bank® < = 61,568,249 & 1.560,24% £ & ’
Ascests ol Window Takaful Opcrsiness
Dpesion’s Fumt™ = - 156,773,400 = 15677340 - = =
Finmicial Babilites nol mcsinred sl Txic-
wadoe
Ohaintanding huive inchadaip THMWRY = = = ISSEITS) (9SS = = - -
. P ) . - - (495I2136)  (149,5I2136) - - - X
Uiy ivefifions. sl aocrmbs® - - - {FI3.437,135) (I3 40T, 135§ - = a £
Tuotal Liabvilitis of Windos Tekslil -
Operstions - Dperndar's Foul® - - - (51, 7TL684) {51, TTLAR4) - - -
140798 722 A6 16 506 1204836841 (B24.671%307 110071339 248.190,712 411,000 g50 = 51,290, 711
Transfers during the year

During the year ended December 31,2024
-There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements
- There werne no transfers nto or out of Level 3 fair value measurcments

Valuation techniques

Fair value of investments classified as held to maturily is assessed wsing  level 2 inputs usually closing markel price as per rates
preseribed by Financial Market Association of Pakistan by using PERV rates al reporting date per cenificates multiplied by the number
of certificates held.

Fair value of Investments at fair value through profit or loss is determined using level | inpuls ie.; quoted market prices of listed
sccurities /! NAVS ol open end mutual fonds.

3-Dee-2OTY
Held fus Lonas smd ke Mo e al
Hoehl- b imaEarily Telal Laewel ¥ Level T Il.ﬂell Totsl

Financkl asscls meesared 2l Eadr valec
Irrcalinicnie l*"
- Equity securiies EEAI6T = s . B, A6 85,430,967 s s B 430,367
- et sosruritics p 1358514T2 = ) IAS@5IATE 4 - 3 £
Acsets ol W indow Tk aful Cpersloes = 2 = =
Uptuterrs Fussl
Fi il sascls mot il wt Eir.
vidae
Eerecsiineis
- T ot a 10000890 = N0 e L B 100,900, 0
Lot i aolie petvivaliie® B = [ e = [ETTRL A
i ‘ bl = - 557,514,093 . 557514093
HLOISI N E Perhvenes dguinsd
nblamdi, clune® 5 = 156,115,608 . 156,115,688
Cagehi nd hank™ - - I3 TR IR LT -
Aty ol Wisdow Takaful Djnaabioss
Opesruienr’s Fomd® . 10,663,509 108,63, 5%
Fanaiickal BabiliGes il meaiaded ol ir
valoe
[hatasnding oo kel [HNR® & = = [S4511.99T)  (254WL5T)
lssuimice |/ Iedsuranie paysbhes® - - - (I2eM458  (IZLE3L4500
Oy crvadinents s crls® = = = (RN, TIZ, I3 (BET2ZINI}
Todal Liahifencs of Witdos Telalil
e e (UENESY  (FONOES

o ESABRSGE  IISSSAATI  LIMLEEASI CESARAT) | Lusseaas  SSAM0SED NSO L T
*The Company has not disclosed the fair value of these items because there carrying amounts ane a reasonable approximation of fair
value.
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45 INTERESTRATERISK
Interest rate risk is the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows ol a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate cxposurc arises from investment in - PIBs, and TDRs.
Following table shows the interest rate profile of the Company's interest beaning financial instruments at the balanee sheet

dale:
3-Tec- 2024
? Interest mark op beiey Tt inlor ok’ mn mark-gp bearing
FINANCIAL ASSETE AND LIABILITIES ‘Hi “::' u.-q-q.-” ” — u-q-q.- H H R Tutsl
FENANCIAL ARSETS
Nlaveslmenis
Fiqusty Sexuritics - - - 2402972 - Z4n.290.7122 240290722
Dielet Sorarilica T5% e 11% T.616,586 TR, S - - - T, 56
Terin Crepasils. 1557 e 23.25% 411,558 000 - 411 0o gan - - - AT 0
Lamss nid Other Beerivaliles = = = W6, 627 961 ~ WG EIT B LIS
T  Rein Rorruisulid 3 < = TI4, 168, N0 i T24, 169,304 TL4, 169804
Rzinumance Feerecrics Apsiet Cutstasding Claims 175,704,619 175,784,619 175, To4, 618
Cash & Baak HT5% e 1% A464.136 44,304,136 17,196,113 - 17,096,103 15604
smenr : 2 - lmsese
FINARCIAL LIABELITIES
Lesse ikl 55,168,934 S537R,217 53,150 = = g 1,530,150
Chatstomling Tlaine Lecinbey [ENRE = 5 340,175 i 0. 548,175 39, M1TS
» i T - ~ 149,522 136 B 149,512 130 9522138
eer Creliters aml A scrusih z = 133 083 55T = 138, MEX 357 [E-T &y
55,168,934 SEITRIT 1AL 151 ST S50, R6E n 57, S5 TSNS
:u_nmm_;
FENARCEAL ASSETE AND LIARILITIES el uu-u, nl. u.-ﬂg- ™ = Tuitsl
: Emterest rade - | | | | Fuls Tt - ” | | Fasls Tl
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tervesimrsts
Exquity Sceatities - - - LLR b - RE 450 051 45430961
el Sz mrilics T e L% - 135,053,472 135853478 - = i 135,853,472
Term Depasita 4% 100,880,500 < LS00, 808 - s - 100,000,500
Navmies mind e Bleesivaliles. = - = BE §13.502 = EE13.500 g1
e s P = = - S5T524093 = SET.SMNE 557504993
it [ fic Apuisst O ding Clsims - - - 156,115,680 - 56,185,689 154, 115,608
Cnsl & Buak 17.5% in 21.5% 358, 549661 - 350,548,661 HNTETT = 48007 399,542, T30
453,549 4L 135853472 SR, 1 AT ATTIAL - AITATTI4L | SLLEAITS
FINANCIAL LIABTLITIES
Lase Linbilities 31359358 TI.TEERRR 1. T26246 - - - I T2, 246
ulstanaling {Tninn Lictmfing TENR - - - 254,913,987 - IS4913097 BSILMT
i J Ris Payabs - - - |21 453,450 - 112693 450 111653 450
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STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY

ASSETS
Property and Equipment

Investment Property
Investments

Equity Sccuritics

Dcbi Sccurnitics

Term Deposits
Total Assets of Window Takaful Operations - OPF
Total Admissible Asscts of Window Takaful Operations - PTF
Loans and Other Receivables
Insurance / Remnsurance Receivablos
Reinsurance Recoverics Against Outstanding Claims
Deferred Commission Expense / Acquisition Cost
Deferred Taxabon
Taxation & Levies - Payments Less Provision
Prepayments
Cash and Bank

Total assets (A)

In-admissible assets as per following clavses of section 32(2) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

{z) any body that is related to insurcrs

(h) Insurance / Reinsurance receivables

(i Deferred Taxation

(k) Amounts available to the insurer under guarantees

{u) 1. Vechicle, n. Office Equipment and 1. Fumiture and fittings iv. Computers
Total of Inadmissible assets (B)

Total Admissible assets (C=AB)

Total Liabilities
Total Liabilities of Wmdow Takaful Operations-OPF
Total Liabilitics of Wmdow Takaful Operations-PTF
Underwriting Provisions
Outstanding Claims Including IBNR
Uncamed Premium Reserves
Premium Deficiency Reserve
Uncamed Remsurance Commission
Taxation & Levies - Paymenis Less Provision
Retirement Benefil Obligations
Insurance / Reinsurance Payables
Lease Liabilitics
Other Creditors and Aceruals
Total liabilities (D))
Total net Admissible assets (E=C-D)
Minimum Solvency Requirement (higher of following)
Mecthod A - Uiz 36(3)(a)

Method B - U/s 36(3)( b )
Method C - U/s 36(3) ¢ )

Excess / Deficit in Net Admissible Assets over Minimum Reguirements

ASIA
INSURANCE
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31-Dec-24
Rupees

177,761,210
40,827 320

240,290,722

79,616,506
411,000,000
156,773 408
205,455,422

96,627,961
724,169,804
175,704,619
122 842 406

99,397 201
61,560 249

2.,592,026,828

4,537,504}
589,839,504

20,344,436
44,155,322

658 876,762

1,933.150,066

51,772,484
203,818,021

300,940,175
546,499,077

20,990,654
11,180,329
1,391,511
149,522,136
110,531,151
138,088 357

150,000,000
205,998 _660
82,144,265

1.543,733,895

389,416,171

205,998,660

183,417,511
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Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director

L

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board of Dircctors has overall responsibality for establishment and over sight of the Company's nsk management
framework. The cxccutive management tcam is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk
management policics. The tcam regulardy mects and any changes and compliance issucs arc reported to the Board of
Dircctors through the audil committce. The audit committce oversecs compliance by management with the Company s
risk management policics and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework mn relation to the
risks faced by the Company.

2024 2023
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES —Numbers—
MNumber of cmployees al the end of the year 135 218
Average number of employces duning the year 227 233

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been resrmanged and reclassified, wherever necessary, (o facililate comparisons. However,
no significant reclassifications made during the current year .

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - NON ADJUSTING EVENTS

In accordance with the Sharcholders' Agreement (SHA) dated September 13, 2017 a subscequent cvent occurred aficr the

reporting period, which is significant [or the fimancial statements of the Company.

Under the lerms of Clause 142 of the SHA, InsuResilicnce Invesiment Fund, SICAV RAIF (*1IF”), held a put oplion

which allows il to require the Majority Sharcholders to acquire I1F's shares in the Company. This right became

cxercisable six (6) months after the sixth (6th) anniversary of the Closing Date, which fell on January 17, 2024, As per the
terms of the SHA, the period for negotiating the sale of TTF's shares to third partics orthe Majornity Sharcholders ended on

July 17, 2024.

Due to ITF's inability to sell the sharcs within the specificd period, it has excercised its right under the SHA to require the

Majority Sharcholders to acquire its entire sharcholding in the Company. As of the date of this report, the total number of

shares held by ITF 15 18,558 243 ordinary shares, which mcludes both sharcs subsecnbed under the Share Sof 1phion
Agreement (SSA) and bonus shares issued to ITE.

The purchase price for the shares has been determined based on the book value of the shares as of the most recent end of

quarter (31.03.2024), multiplicd by a factor of 1.2. The agreed priec is Rs. 14.80 per ordinary share, amounting to a total

of Rs. 274 711,166 (Pak Rupees Two Hundred and Scventy-Four Million Scven Hundred and Eleven Thousand One
Hundred and Sixty-Six ) (the “Sale Pricc™).

The financial impact of this transaction, ifany, including the recognition of the Sale Price, will be recorded in the period

when the transaction 1s completed. This event has been disclosed in accordance with applicable accounting standards asa
subsequent non-adjusting cvent after the reporting date.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FORALLSHARIAH COMPLIANT COMPANIES

In termss of the requirements of the Takaful Rules 2012, read with SECP Circular 25 of 201 5 dated 09 July 2015, the assels,
liabilitics and statement of comprehensive income of the Operator Fund of the General Takaful operations of the
Company have been presented as a single line item in the statement of financial position and profit and loss account of the
Company, respectively. Please refer to not 19 to these financial statements. A scparate sct of financial statements of the
General Takaful operations has been annexed to these financial statements as per the requirements of the General Takaful
Accounting Regulations, 2019.

Conventional financial stalements do not have any figures under Islamic mode.

DATE OFAUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These finaneial statements have been authonzed for issuc on March 24, 2025 by the Board of Dircetors of the Company.
GENERAL

The figures in the financial statements has been rounded off to the nearest Rupec unless otherwise stated.

N L

Chief Financial Officer
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Shari'ah Advisor's Report to the Board of Dirctors

For the year ended December 31, 2024
S Lol @y SU1 gy (e Juad g odese

The year 2024 marked the eighth year of Asia Insurance Company Limited's Window Takaful Operations.
The launch of these operations by Asia Insurance Company Limited was a significant step towards
promoting a comprehensive Islamic economic system. This imtiative aitms  to provide Shanah-
compliant Takaful facilities to those seeking altematives to conventional insurance that adhere to
Shaniah principles.

As the Shariah Advisor of Al WTO, [ confirm the following:

® | have carefully reviewed all products of Al WTO, including the Wagfl Deed, PTF Policies, Takaful
Policies, and Re-Takaful Agreements. Alhamduhillah, 1 have found them to be in accordance with
Shaniah principles. | further confirm that the Takaful Policies 1ssued during the year under review
comply with Shariah guidelines.

¢ The management of Al WTO consistently seeks Shanah advice and guidance before launching any
Takaful product. All Takaful products are developed in consultation with the Shariah Advisor and in
accordance with the puidelines provided.

e The segregation of Window Takaful Operations 1s essential for valid Takalul contracts. | am pleased
to report that Al WTO priontizes the separation of all Takaful Funds, Investments, Bank
Accounts, Systems, and related matters from its conventional insurance business, as required
by Shariah. Al WTO plans to establish full-Aledged Takaful branches in the future.

e To meet the financial needs of Window Takaful Operations, Shariah- comphant funds were
secured, and Takaful expenses, meluding the Wagf seed money, were covered using these funds.

e Imaining and development are crucial for understanding Takaful principles and their practical
application. Al WTO has fulfilled its responsibility by providing Takaful training to head office and
branch stafl. | hope Al WTO will continue to mvest in its human capital to ensure full comphance
with Shanah principles at both business and operational levels.

| extend my gratitude to the Board of Directors of Asia Insurance Company, the Management, the Head of
Window Takaful Operations, Divisional & Branch Heads, and all relevant departments for their
cooperation with the Shariah Compliance function and for providing unwavering support to ensure Shariah
compliance in our Takaful practices.

In closing, I pray that Allah Almighty accepts our efforts and enables us to perform our duties in the best
possible manner. May Allah Almighty grant us success and support at every step, protect us from all
obstacles and difficulties, and grant financial prosperity to Asia Insurance Company Ltd. (Window Takaful
Operations).

“And Allah Knows Best™

Mufti Muhammad Akhlag
Shariah Advisor,

Asia Insurance Company Lid,
Window Takaful Operations
Date: March 10, 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
SHARIAH PRINCIPLES

The financial arrangements, contracts and transactions, entered into by Window Takaful Operations
of Asia Insurance Company Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended December 2024 are in
compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012.
Further we confirmed that:

® The Company has developed and implemented all the policies and procedures in accordance with
takaful rules, 2012 and rulings of the Shariah Advisor along with a comprehensive mechanism to
ensure compliance with such ruling and Takaful rules, 2012 in their overall operations. Further, the
governance arrangements including the reporting of events and status to those charged with relevant

responsibilities, such as the audit Committee /| Shanah Advisor and the Board of Directors
have beenimplement;

e The Company has imparted tramming / orientations and ensured availability of all manuals /
arrangements approved by Shariah Advisor / Board of Directors to maintain the adequate level of

awareness, capacity and sensitization of the stafl, management

e All the products and polices have been approval by the Shariah Advisor and the financial
arrangements including mvestments made, policies, contracts and transactions, entered into by
Window Takaful Operations are in accordance with the policies approved by Shari Advisor; and

® The assets and habilities of Window Takaful Operations (Participants' Takaful Fund and Operator's
Fund) are segregated from its other assets and habilities, at all imes in accordance with the provisions
ofthe takaful rules, 2012.

This has been duly confirmed by the Shariah Advisor of the Company.

L
23
Zain ul Haq Qureshi
Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT REASONABLE ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
ON THE STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S ASSESSMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
TAKAFUL RULES, 2012

Scope

We have been engaged by Asia Insurance Company Limited (the Operator) to perform a 'reasonable
assurance engagement,' as defined by International Standards on Assurance Engagements, here after
referred to as the engagement, to report on the management's assessment of comphance of the
Window Takaful Operations (Takaful Operations) of the Operator, as set out in the annexed
Statement of Compliance (the Statement) prepared by the management for the year ended December
31, 2024 (the “Report™).

Other than as described in the preceding paragraph, which sets out the scope of our engagement, we
did not perform assurance procedures on the remaiming information included in the Repori, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion on this information.
Criteria applied by the management

In preparing the Subject Matter, the management applied the criteria in accordance with the Takaful
Rules, 2012 (Cnterna).

The Management's responsibilities

The management 1s responsible for selecting the Critenia, and for presenting the Subject Matter in
accordance with that Critena, in all matenial respects. This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining internal controls, maintaining adequate records and making estimates that are relevant to
the preparation of the subject matter, such that it 1s free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

ISCO's responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the presentation of the Subject Matter based on the
evidence we have obtained.

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the International Standard for Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information ("ISAE 3000"), and
the terms of reference for this engagement as agreed with the Operator. Those standards require that
we plan and perform our engagement to obtain reasonable assurance about whether, in all matenal
respects, the Subject Matter is presented in accordance with the Cntenia, and to issue a report. The
nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an
assessment of the risk of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Our Independence and Quality Management

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for
Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which 1s founded
on fundamental principles of integnty, objectivity, professional competence and due care,
confidentiality and professional behaviour.

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Management 1 for Firms that Perform Audits or
Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other Assurance or Related Services engagements, which
requires the firm to design, implement and operate a system of quality management including policies
or procedures regarding comphance with ethical requirements, prolessional standards and apphicable
legal and regulatory requirements.

A ASIA
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Description of procedures performed

We checked that all the products and policies have been approved by Shariah Advisor and observed
that the Operator has developed and implemented all the policies and procedures in accordance with
the Takaful Rules, 2012 and Shariah Rules and Principles as determined by Shanah Advisor.

We checked that the assets and liabilities of Window Takaful Operations (Participants' Takaful Fund
and Operator's [und) are segregated from its other assets and liabalities, at all imes m accordance with
the provisions of the Takaful Rules, 2012.

o Wereviewed training certificates and attendance sheetsto evaluatethat the Operator has imparted
necessary tramings and onentations to maintain the adequate level of awareness, capacity, and
sensitization of the staff and management.

o We have designed and performed following verification procedures (including but not limited to) on
various financial arrangements, based on judgmental and systematic samples with regard to the
compliance with Takaful Rules, 2012 and principles.

o Weobtained details of mvestments made and checked that all investments made in Shariah Comphant
stocks as determined by Shanah Advisor;

" We inquired regarding other investments like fixed deposits to confirm that all such contracts are
executed with Islamic Financial Institutions;

e We reviewed re-takaful and co-takaful parties along with arrangements / contracts entered into by
Window Takaful Operations to assess comphiance with Shanah Advisor guidelines and Takaful
Rules, 2012; and

We re-calculated Operator's profil share and Wakala fee income to confirm that approved percentage
. - - - - - -

are applied on income from investments and contnibution respectively.

The procedures selected by us for the engagement depended on our judgment, including the

assessment of the, nsks of the Operator's matenal non-comphance with the Takaful Rules 2012,

whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we considered internal control

relevant to the Operator's compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in order to design assurance

procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances butl not for the purpose of expressing a

conclusion as to the effectiveness  of the Operator's internal control over the Takaful Operations'

compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012.

A systemn of internal control, because of its nature, may not prevent or detect all instances of non-

comphance with the Takaful Rules, 2012, and consequently cannot provide absolute assurance that

the objective of comphance with the Takaful Rules, 2012 will be met. Further, projection of any

evaluation of elfectiveness to future periods 1s subject to the nisk that the controls may become

madequate or fail.

In performing our audit procedures necessary guidance on Shariah matters was provided by the

Shanah experts.

Opinion

In our epinion, the Statement of Comphiance of the Takalul Operations of the Operator as of December

31, 202415 presented, 1n all matenial respects, in accordance with Takaful Rules, 2012.

The engagement partner responsible for the independent reasonable assurance reports 1s Bushra Sana.

é}; -
ILY ED & Ci.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
LAHORE
DATED March 24, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF ASIA INSURANCE
COMPANY LIMITED (WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Asia Insurance Company Limited- Window
Takaful Operations (the Operator), which comprise the statement of financial position of OPF and
PTF as at December 31, 2024, and the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in shareholders equity and participants’ takaful funds and the cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and beliel, were necessary
for the purposes ol the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive mcome,
the statement of changes in fund and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof, conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
mformation required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017),
in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of Operator's affairs as
al December 31, 2024 and of the profit and total comprehensive income, the changes in funds and 1ts
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described m the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Operator in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropniate to provide a
basis for our opmion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our awdit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
providea separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate inour report

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance concluston thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial stalements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be matenally misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing toreport in this regard. :
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors or the Financial Statements
Management 15 responsible for the preparation and Fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such internal control as
management determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material musstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Operator's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as apphicable, matters related to going concern and using the
goimng concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Operator's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that
mcludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ol assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as apphicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the nsks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimion. The nisk of not detecting a matenal
misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnide of mternal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropnate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opimion on the
effectiveness of the Operator's internal control.

e Evaluate the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® (Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events or

® conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Operator's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Operator to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signmificant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safepuards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Operator as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
mcome, the statement of changes in funds and the statement of cash Hows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act,
2017 (XXI1 0f2017), and are in agreement with the books ol account;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the period were for the
purpose of the Operator’s busimess; and;
d) nozakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII1 ol 1980).

The financial statements of Asia Insurance Company Limited - Window Takaful Operations for
the year ended December 31, 2023 were audited by another firm of auditors who expressed an
unmaodified opinion on those financial statements on April 03, 2024,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Bushra Sana.

% g |40
ILY. EED & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
LAHORE
DATED: March 24, 2025
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED -WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF OPF AND PTF

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

ASSETS

Louns and Other Receivables
Takaful / Retakalul Receivables
Deferred Wakala Fee
Receivable from PTF

Accrued Investment Income
Retakaful Recoveries Against Ouistanding Claims
Deferred Commission Expense
Prepayments

Shorl term investments

Cash andd Bank

TOTAL ASSETS

FUND AND LIABILITIES

OPERATOR'S FUND (OFF)
Statutory Fund

Qurd-E-Hasmna

Accumulated Profil

Total Operator’s Funds

WAQF /| PARTICIPANTS' TAKAFUL FUND (FTF)
Sewd Money

Qard-E-Hasna

Accumulated Surplus / (Deficit)

Balanceof Wagl/ PTF

LIABILITIES

FTF Underwriting Provisions
Outstanding Claims Including IBNR
Unearned Contribution Reserve
Contribution Deficiency Reserves

Retirement Benefil Obligations
Conlnibutions Received In Advance
Unearned Wakala Fee

Takaful / Retakaful Payvables

Other Creditors and Accruals
Payable to PTT / OPF

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL FUND AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The: amnexed notes from | 4] fom an mlepal par of tese Finencial Statements.
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Operators’ Fund Participants™ Takaful Fund
2024 023 2024 2123
Rupees
1,178,030 556414 - 973,896
L - 117.596,819 R6.288 870
- - 27,491,425 24,136,262
81,269,561 32213 898 - .
8,174,658 1,867,740 = 5
= : 38,281 2,998 991
13,061.131 11,184,193 : o
- . 15237337 14,968,200
50,000,000 50,000,000 . -
3,000,028 12,846,344 125,956,312 78,153,709
156773408 |08 668 589 286,320,174 207,519,928
50,000,000 50,000,000 2 =
(T8,411.000) | (78.411.000) . -
133,411,924 97.999_ 530 2 -
105,000,924 69,588 530 = 5
- 500,000 SO0, 000
= 78,411,000 78,411,000
£ 3,591,153 {1 _880_249)
= 82,502,153 77,000,751
= 32,288,199 24,942 709
z 68,728,554 59,892.520
- 5,849,042 2,634,320
= 106,865,795 §7.469 049
16,294 18,324 £ R
= - 208,826 4277.752
27,491,425 24 136,262 - -
= - 11,143,610 2 256,490
24,264,765 14,925 473 4330229 4321 98%
4 = 81,269,561 32,213 .89%
51,772,484 39,080,059 203,518,021 130,489,177
156,773,408 286,320,174 07519928

W

Director
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED -WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Participants' Takaful Fund (PTF)

Contributions Eamed

Less: Contributions Ceded to Retakaful
Net Contributions Revenue

Retakaful Rebate Earned

Net Underwriting Income

Net Claims - Reported / Settled - IBNR
Charge of Contribution Deficiency Reserve

Other Direct Expenses

(Deficit) / Surplus Before Investment Income

Other Income

(Deficit) / Surplus Transterred to Accumulated Surplus

Operator's Fund (OPF)
Wakala Fee

Commission Expense
General, Adminstration and Management Expenses
Operating Results

Other Income
Other Expenses
Profit for the year

Note

19
19

20

20

25

24

22
21
23

24
26

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
81,860,097 69,181,804
(42,746,863)  (32,067.925)
39,113,234 37,113,879
39.113.,234 37.113,879
(44,933,831)|| (49,200,790)
(3,214,722) (2,424.538)
(48,148,553)  (51.625,328)
(5.517) (1.088,337)
(9.040.836)  (15,599.786)
14,512,238 12,380,415
5,471,402 (3,219,371)
54,872,158 49,211,813
(27.343,513)  (23,256.917)
(3.293.,666) (2,638,346)
24,234,979 23,316,550
11,529,890 12,078,585
(352,475) (250,574)
35,412,394 35,144,561
iﬁnr Chief Financial Officer




ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED -WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
PARTICIPANT'S TAKAFUL FUND (PTF) Note Rupees Rupees
(Deficit) / Surplus during the vear 5,471,402 (3,219.371)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive (Deficit) / Income for the year 5,471.402 (3.219,371)
OPERATOR'S FUND (OPF)
Profit during the year 35.412.3%4 35,144,561
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 35,412,394 35.144.561

The annexed notes from | to 41 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED -WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

|

MNote

Balance As at January 1, 2023

Total Comprehensive Income for the vear
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Incorae for the year

Crard-e-Hasna to Participants' Takaful Fuad (PTF)
Balance as at December 31, 2023

Balance as at January 1, 2024

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Profit for the vear
Other Comprehensive Income Tor the year

Qard-g-Hasna to Participants' Takaful Fund (PTF)

Balance as at December 31, 2024

Balance as at January 1. 2023

Total Comprehensive Income for the vear

Deficit for the vear
Oher Comprehensive Income for the year

Qard-e-Hasna from Operator's Fund {OPF}

Balsnce as at December 31, 2023

Balance as at January 1. 2024

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Surplus for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the vear

Qard-e-Hasna from Operator's fund ((OFPF)

Balance as at December 31, 2024

OPERATOR'S FUND

Accnmulated

The annexed notes from 1 1o4] fonm an integral parl of thege Financial Statements.
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Statutory fund Qard-e-Hasna Surplus Tutal
E Rupees ]
S0.000.000 {60,411.000) 72,834,969 52,443,969
- - 15,144,561 15, 144,561
- - 35,144,561 35,144,561
. IRERULEAELH r { 1800000}
30,000,000 {78,411.000) 97.009,530 69,588 530
S0.000,000 (TRA11.000) 97.999.530 69,588,330
- - 3541230 35412394
- - 35,412,394 35412394
S 000, iy (TR.A1L.000) 133,411,924 105,000,924
PARTICIPANTS' FUND
Accumulared
Seed money  Qard-e-Hasna Surplus/ Total
{ Deficit)
Rupees 1
300,000 il 411,000 1,339,122 2,250,122
- - (32195371} (3.219.371)
- - 3219371 {3,219.371)
T8 (RO, O - 18,000, D0
S00,000 8411000 {1.580,249) T35
S00.000 TEALLDOD (1.880,249) 77,030,751
- - 5471402 5471402
- - 5.471.402 5471402
S00.000 T8,411.000 3.591,153 82,502,153
WP 35
Director i r Chief Financial Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

ASTA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED -WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

Orperators' Fund Partlelpanis’ Takalful Fund
024 2023 4 2023
Rupecs

OPERATING CASH FLOWS

1 Takaful activities

Coniributinns received . - 146,972,626 126,933,340
Wakala foe reccived £ (paid| 58,227,321 51,248,610 [58,227,321) (52,245,610}
Retakaful contributon ceded - - [70,.861,092) 139,920,373}
Claims Paid - - [34,627,131) (62,065,512}
Raotukafil and other recoverics pecsived - - - -
Commusaions Paid (20,899 225) |22, 709,94 7) - -
[rrect, management and other expenses {paymenis) / receipis {2.630,105) {3,792,301) 49,319,259 (18,236,325}
Cither tnkalnl receipis | {payiments) (49,677 279) 10,446,873 713,022 {983,406}
Met cugh flow peneruted from / {used inp from Taksful activities 114,979, 28K) 45,193,735 13,290,365 {46.525,792)
by Other operating activities

Income tax poid - - -
D¥irect expanges paid - - -
Ciilier expenses pald - =
Manggement oxpenses pcd . - - .
Other aperating receipts 5,222,972 11,078,585 14,512,238 12,380,415
Met cash flow generabed from other operating setvibies: 5,222,972 12,078,585 14,512,238 12,380,415
Tutal cash Mow from all sperating activities [9,756,316) 572171310 47,802,603 134,145,377}
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Profit! returm received - - - -
Qand-e-Hasna - |18, 000, 000) 18, 000,000
Paymdnts for investisents. - - - -
Fixed capital expendituse - - -
Toral eash Now (used inj ¢ generated from investing activities - {16,000, 000} 18, G0, 000
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Coitrilsistion to the opesator's fursd - - -
Cohest mumey - , R
Twul cash flows from financing activities - -
Met cash Mow gencrated from  (used log all activities (9. 756.316) 34,272 120 47802603 (16,145,377
Cash and cash equivislents at bagimeng of the year 12846344 23,574,024 TH IS T 94,294 Oa
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year BAPHLAZE 62,846,344 125.%56.312 78,153,704
RECONCILIATION TO PROFIT AND LOSS ACOOUNT

Ciperutmg cash (lows [9,756,316) 57,272,320 47,802,603 134,145,377}
Increase ¢ Decrease] in wssets other thun cash 57,861,135 {17,385, 203) 30,597,643 17,412 058
(Tncrease) § decrease in labilitics [12,692,425) [4,73%,556) (73,328 Bad) 13,513,947
Profit for the yeur 354123594 35,144 561 5471402 {3,219.371)
Adtribiated to

Particigrants’ Takatfol Fumd - - 5,471,402 13,215,371}
Operators Fund 35,412,394 35,144,561 . .

35,412,394 35,144,561 5471402 13,219,371}
The annexed nodes from | to 31 feron o dndegml part of these Finanein]l Statemeis.
o, gt B
ﬂ /"_——-'_'
o s
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director r Chief Financial Officer
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1

2.2

23

31

L

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Asia Insurance Company Limited ("the Company'), a quoled public limited company, was meorporated m Pakistan
on December 06, 1979 under the repealed Companics Act, 1913 (now the Compamies Act, 2017). The Company is
cngaged in non-life msurance business mainly compnsing of fire, marnne, motor and miscellancous. The Company
commenced its commercial operations in 1980, The registered and principal office of the Company is situated at 19 C/D,
Block L, Gulberg I11, Main Ferozpur Road, Lahore. Shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company has been allowed to work as Window Takaful Operator ("the Operator) through License No. 10 on August
13, 2015 by Sceunfics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan under Window Takaful Rules, 2012 (o carry on Islamic
General Takaful in Pakistan. It has not transacted any business oulside Pakistan.

For the purposc of carrying on the takaful business, the Company has formed a wagf for participants’ cquity fund. The
Wagl namcly Asia Insurance Company Limited (Window Takaful Opcrations) -Waqgf Fund (hereafter referred to as
participant takaful fund (PTF)) was created on August 20, 2015 under a trust deed exccuted by the Company with a ceded
moncy of Rs.500,000/-. Wagl deed also governs the relationship of Operators and policy holders for management of
takaful operations, mvestment policy holders funds and mmvestment of Operators' funds approved by shanah advisor of
the company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprisc of such Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
issucd by International Accounting Standard Board as arc notificd under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and
directives issucd under the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordmance, 2000, the Insurmnce Rules, 2017, the
Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 SECP Takaful Rules, 2012 and General Takalul Accounting Regulations, 2019,

In casc requirements differ, the provisions or directives issucd under the Companics Act, 2017, the Insurance
Ordinance, 2006, the Insurance Rules, 201 7, the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and SECP Takaful Rules, 2012
and General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019, shall prevail.

These financial statements refleet the financial position and results of Window Takaful Operstions of both the Operators”
Fund (OPF) and the Participants’ Takaful Fund (PTF) in a manner that assels, liabilitics, meome and expenses of the
Operator and PTF remains scparatcly identifiable.

Total asscls, total habilities, and profil of Window Takaful Operations of the Operator's referred (o as the Operator's Fund

has been presented in these financial stalemenis in sccordance with the requirements of Circular 25 of 201 5 dated July 09,
2015.

During 2019, the SECP vide its S.R.O 1416 (1) /2019 datcd November 20, 2019 has issued the General Takaful
Accounting Regulations, 20019 (Regulabions). These regulations presenibed the format for the regulatory returmns and
published financial Stalements of the Window Takaful Opcrations applicable from January 01, 2020. The financial
statements for the year ended December3 1, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with these Regulabions.

Basis of measurement

These financial statemenis have been prepared under the historical cost convention without any adjustmicent for the cffect of
mflation exeept where disclosed. The financial statements, exeept for cash flow information, have been prepared under the
accrual basis of accounting.

Functional and presentation cuorrency

These financial statements arc prescotcd o Pakistani Rupees which is the Operator’s functional currency and
prescatation currency. All figures have been rounded to the nearest upee, unless otherwisce stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED
APPROVEDACCOUNTING ANDREPORTING STANDARDS

New aceounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the vear ended December
31,2024

There arc ceriain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Operator's
accoumiing periods begmning on or afier 01 Januwary 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any
significant cffect on the Operator's operation and therefore not defailed m these financial statements.
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
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Effective date (annual
perieds beginning on
or after)
Classification ofliabilitics as current or non-current (Amendments to [AS | in January 2020) January 01,2024
MNon-current liabilitics with covenants (Amendment to TAS 1 in October 2022) January 01, 2024
Lease lizbility in a salc and leascback (Amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) January (1, 2024
Supplicr finance arrangements { Amendmenis to IAS Tand IFRS T) January 01,2024

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet elfcetive
New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not vet effective
The followmg Intcrnational Financial Reporimg Standards (IFRS Standards) as notificd under the Compamies Act, 2017
and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting peniods beginning on or afier 1 January
2025:
Sale or Contribution of Asscts between an Investor and 1ts Associate or Joint Venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS
28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control of business or asseits. The amendmenits also introduce new accounting
for less frequent transaction thal involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retamed interests in assets that are not
busincsscs. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.
Early adoption continucs to be permitted.
-Lack of Exchangeability (amendments to IAS 21) clarify:
-when a currency 15 exchangeable into another curreney; and
-how a company cstimates a spot rate when a curmency lacks exchangeability

Further, companies will need Lo provide new disclosures io help users assess the impact of using an estimaled exchange
ralc on the financial statements. These disclosurcs might melude:

-the nature and financial impacts of the currency not being exchangeable;

-the spot cxchange rate used;

-the estimation process; and

-risks to the company becausc the currency is nol cxchangeable.
The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or aficr 1 Japuary 2025, Earlier application is
permitted.

Amendments o the Classification and Measurcment of Financial Instruments - Amendments to [FRS 9 Financial
Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures:

-Financial asscts with ESG-linked features:
Under IFRS 9, it was unclecar whether the contractual cash flows of some financial assct with ESG-linked fcaturcs
represcnted SPPL This eould have resulted in financial assets with ESG-linked features being measured at fair vahse
through profit or loss.
Although the new amendments arc more permissive, they apply o all contingent features, not just ESG hinked features.
Whilc the amendments may allow certain financial assets with contingent fcatures to meet the SPPI criterion, companics
may need to perform additional work to prove this. Judgement will be requited in determiming whether the new testis met.
The amendments introduce an additional SPP1 test for financial asscls with contingent fcatures that arc nol related directly
toa change in basic lending risks or costs - ¢.g_, where the cash flows change depending on whether the bormower mects an
ESG target specificd in the loan contract.
The amendmenls also include additional disclosurcs for all financial asscts and financial liabilitics that have certain
contingent features that are:

-not related dircetly to a change in basic lending nisks or costs; and

-are not measurcd at fair value through profit or loss.

The amendmenis apply [or reporting periods beginning on or afier | January 2026, Companies can choose to carly-adopt
these amendments (including the associated disclosure requircments), scparaicly from the amendments for the
recognitionand de recognition of financial asscts and financial iabilitics.
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Recognition/ De recognition requircments of financial assets / liabilitics by clectronic payments:
The amendmicnts to IFRS 9 clanfy when a financial assct or a financial liability is recognized and derccognized and
provide an  exception for certain finaneial liabilitics settled wsing an electronic payment system. Companics gencrally
derccogniee their trade payables on the scitlement date (i.e. when the payment is completed). However, the amendments
provide an exception for the de recognition of financial liabihities. The exception allows the Company io derecognize its
trade payable before the scitlement date, when it uses an clectronic payment system that mects all of the following
critcria:

- no practical ability to withdraw, stop or cancel the payment instruction;

-no practical ability Lo aceess the cash to be used for scitlement as aresult of the payment instruction; and

- the settlement nisk associated with the clectronic payment system is insignificant.
The amendments apply for reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2026. Companies can choose to carly-adopt
these amendments (including the associated disclosure requirements), separatcly from the amendments for the
rccognitionand de recognition of financial asscts and financial liabilitics.

- Other related amendments:
Contractually linked instruments { CLIs) and non-recourse featurcs:
The amendments clanify the key charactenistics of CLIs and how they differ from financial asscts with non-reccourse
featores. The amendments also include factors that a company needs (o consider when assessing the cash lows underlying
a financial asset with non-recourse features (the *look through” lest).

-Dhsclosures on investments m equity instrimicents:
The amendments require additional disclosures for investments in equity instruments that are measured at fair value with
gains or losscs presented inother comprehensive income (FVOCT).
The amendments apply for reporting peniods beginning on or after | January 2026 Earlicr application is permitied.
Annual improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards
Amendments to:

- [FRS | First-time Adoption of Intecrmational Financial Reporting Standards;

-IFRS7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and it"s accompanying (uidance on implementing

- IFR.5 9 Financial Instrumcnits;

- [FR.5 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; and

- LAS 7 Statement of Cash flows
The amendments to IFRS 9 address:
A conflict between IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers over the mitial measurement of trade
receivables: Under IFRS 15, a trade receivable may be recognized at an amount that differs from the transaction pricce g
when  the transaction price is varable. Conversely, IFRS 9 requires that companics mitially measure trade receivables
without a significant financing component at the transaction price. The TASB has amended IFRS 9 to requirc companics
Lo mitially measure a trade receivable without a significant financing component al the amount determined by applying
IFRS 15; and
how a lessce accounts for the de recognition of a lease liability under paragraph 23 ol TFRS 9:
‘When lease liabilitics are de recognized under IFRS 9, the difference between the carmying amount and the consideration
paid is recognized in profit or loss.
The amendment on trade receivables may require some companics tochange their accounting policy.
The amendments apply for annual reporting periods begimning on or atter 1 January 2026. Earlicr application is permitted.
The amendment on de recognition of leasc liabilitics applics only to lease hiabilitics extinguished on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period m which the amendmient is first applicd.
Temporary Exemption from IFRS 17 & IFRS 9
Pursuant to the requircments of Sccuritics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan SRO 1715 (I} / 2023 daled 21
MNovember 2023 IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™, is applicable to the companics engaped in insurance / takaful and re

msurance / re-takaful business from financial years commencing on or after 01 January 2026.

IFRS 17, rcplaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The new standard will apply to all cntities that issuc msurance and
remsurance contracts, and to all entitics that hold reinsurance contracts. This standard requires entities to identify
contracts and 1ts lerms and to assess whether they meet the definition of an insuranee contract or includes componenis of

AHEE &0

ASIA
INSURANCE

COMBANY LTD 117




ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

an insurance contracl Insurance contracts arc required Lo account for under the recognition / derecognition of IFRS 17.
Companics subject to the requirement of SRO 1715 will also be required to adopt requirements of TFRS-9 from the date ol
transition. On initial application of IFRS 17, comparative information for insurance contracts is restated in accordance
with IFRS 17, whercas comparative information for related financial asscts might not be restated in accordance with [FRS
Oif the insurer is initially applying IFRS 9 at the same date ax IFRS17.

SECP through its S R.0.506{1)2024 has dirceted thal the applicability period of opfional temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 Financial Instrumcnts as given in para 20A of TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts is cxtended for annual periods
beginning before (1 January 2026, subject to fulfilling the same conditions as are prescribed by para 20B of TFRS 4.

SECP vide letier no. IDIMDPRDAFRS-17/2021/176 dated 15 Junc 2021 matiated a four-phase approach towards
implementation of IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts. The first three phases now stand completed and Phase 4 paralle] mun and
implementation has commenced and is currcnily under progress.

In Phasc 4 SECP requires parallel run of TFRS 17 for the year cnded 31 December 2024 (o be submitted to SECP by 30 Junc
2025 and dry run on the financial statement of the first quarier of 2025 to be submitted by 30 November 2025,

The tables below sel out the fair values a5 at the end of reporting period and the amount of change in the fair value during
that period for the following two groups of financial asscts scparatcly:

a) Financial asscis with contractual terms that give nse on specified dates to cash flows that arc solcly payments of principal
and mterest (“SPPI™) on the principal amount oulstanding, excluding any financial assct that meets the defimtion of held
for trading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whosc performance is cvaluated on a fair value basis, and

b) All other financial asscis:
Operator Fund Dicuinkior 31, WG
(:ross carrying amoonis of debt instruments that pass the SPPI test
AAA Ak~ At Unrated
Rupces Rupees Rupees Rupces
Term depisit recelpts (TDRs) 50,008,000 = c
Toasl L '
December 31, 2824
Dperators Fund Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test
Change in Change in
wnrealized gain umrcalized gain
Financial assets Fair valuc wﬂ::::fi“ Carrving value I:;::EL or {t::::,:,ﬁ’m
Rupces Rupces Rupces Rupccs Rupecs
Cash and hank * 3,090,028 - - = =
Loans and other reecivables * 1,158,012 = = = =
Tital 4248 040 = = = =
Participant Takaful Fund
December 31, 28624
Participants” Takaful Fund Fail the SPPI test Pass the SPPI test
Change in Change in
. . wnrealized gain Cost less unrcalized gain
Financial assects or (loss) during  Carrying value Impairment or (loss ) during
thi year the yoar
Rupces Rupces Rupces Rupccs Rupecs
Cash and Bank*® 125,956,312 - - - -
Total 125,956,312 = = = 5

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policics adopted in preparation of these financial statements arc sct out below. These policies

have been applicd consistently to all years presented.

4.1 Property and equipment
4.1.1 Operating assets - Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

A ASIA
INSURANCE

' COMPANY LTD

118
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4.2
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Depreciation on all fixed asscts is charged to statement of comprehensive income on the reducing balance method so as to
wrilc off depreciable amount of an asset over its uscful life at the rates stated in note. Depreciation on additions to fixed
asscls 15 charged on “number of months basis™
The carmying values of tangible fixed asscts arc revicwed for impairment when cvents or changes in circumstances indicate
that this carmying valuc may not be recoverable. 16 any such mdication exists and where the earrying valucs exceed the
cstimatced recoverable amounts, the asscts are wntien down Lo their recoverable amount.
Subscquent costs arc included in the assct's carmying amount or recognized as a scparate asscl, as approprizle, only when it
15 probable that future cconomie benefils associated with the items will flow to the Operator and the cost of the item can be
mecasurcd reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the period in which they arc mcurred.
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an assct represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assct 1s recognized as an Income or cXpensc.
Takaful contracts
The Takaful contracts are based on the principles of wakala. The takaful contracts so agreed usually inspire concepl of
tabarm (to donale for benefit of others) and mutual sharing of losses with the overall objective of climinating the clement
of uncertainty. Contracts under which the Participant Takaful Fund (PTF) accepts significant takaful ngk from another
party (the policy holder) by agrecing fo compensate the policyholder if a specificd uncertain future event (the takatul
cvent) adverscely affects the policyholder are classified as wkaful contracts. Takaful risk is significant if a takaful cvent
could causc the PTF to pay significant benefits duc to the happening of the takaful event compared to ils non happening.
Omnce a contract has been classified as a takaful contract, i remains a takaful contract for the remainder of its lifetime, cven
ifthe takaful nisk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations arc extinguished or cxpired.
The PTF underwrites non-life takalul coniracts thal ean be cateporized into fire and property, manne, aviation and
transporl, motor, health and miscellancous contracts. Contracts may be concluded for a fixed term of onc year, for less
than onc year and in some cascs for more than one year. However, most of the contracts are for twelve months duration.
Takaful contracts entered into by the PTF under which the contract holder is another tzkaful operator/ insurer of a
facultative nature are included within the individual category of takaful contracts, other than those which {all under the
treaty.
Firc and properly damape lakaful provides coverage against damages cansed by fire, riol and sirike, explosion,
carthquake, atmosphenc damage, flood, electne fluctuation and other related perils.
Marinc, aviation and transpori takaful provides coverage against cargo risk, terminals, damage occurred in between the
points of origin and final destination and other related penls.
Motor takaful provides comprehensive car coverage, indemmnity against third party loss and other related covers. Health
takaful provides basic hospital care including maternity care and cutpaticnt earc.
Miscellancous takafol provides cover against Engincering, Health, Cash in safe, Cash in transit, ATM withdrawals
snalching, Personal Accident Takaful, Workmen™s Compensation Takaful, Terronism Takaful, Third party liability
Takaful, Platc GGlass Takalul and Home Takaful.
Deferred commission expense
Commission cxpenses and other acquisition costs arc spread over the tenure of the contract, it is calculated by applying
1/24 method in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Accounting Repulations, 2017 and General Takaful
Accounting Regulations, 2019. Rebaie from re-takaful 1s spread over the tenure of the contract ceded, it is caleulated by
applying 1/24 mcthod in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and General
Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019. The deferred commission expensc and other acquisition costs and uncamned
portion of rebate [rom re- takaful is scl aside as a reserve. Such reserve is ealeulated by applying 1/24 method
accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017  and General Takaful Accounting
Regulations, 2019.
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4.8.1

4.8.2
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Reserve for Unearned contribution

The uncamed portion of contribution wnitten net of wakala is set aside as a reserve and 15 recognized as a hability. The
reserve for uncamed contmibuiion s caleulated by applying 1/24 method in acecordance with the provisions of the
Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 201 9.

Contribution deficiency reserve

According to the requirements of the Insurance Rules, 2017 and General Takafol Accounting Regulations, 2019, a
contribution deficicncy reserve necds Lo be created where the uncamed contmibution for any class of business is not
sufficient to cover the liability after re-takaful from elaims, and other supplementary expenses expected to be meurred
after the statement of financial position date in respeet of the policies in that class of business. Any movement in the
reserve 1s to be charged to the stalement of comprehensive income.

For this purposc, loss matios for cach class, excluding health are estimated based on historical claim development.
Judgment is used in assessing the extent to which past trends may nol apply in future or the effects of one-off elaims. [F
these ratios arc adverse, contribution deficiency is determined. The liability of contribution deficiency in relation to
Health Takatul is calculated in accordance with the advice of actuary.

As at year end, a provision is created in respect of coninbution deficieney reserve for those classes of business where 1t is
cstimated that the uncamed contribution for that elass will not be sufficient to provide for the expected losscs and
cxpenscs atiributable to the uncxpired periods of policies in foree at the statement of financial position datc.

Re-takaful contracts held

The operator cedes ratakaful in normal course of business for the purposc of limiting its net loss potential through the
diversification of its nisks. Asscis, habilitics and income and cxpensc arising from ceded retakaful contracts arc presented
scparatcly from asscts, liabilitics, income and expense from the related (akaful contract becawse the reiakaful
armangements do no relicve the PTF from its direct obligation to its policyholder.

Re-takaful ceded

The Operator enlers in lo retakaful contracts in the normal course of business in order to limil the potential for losses
arising from certain exposurcs. Outward retakaful contributions arc accounted for in the same period as the related
contribution for the direct or accepted retakaful business.

Retakaful liabilitics represent balanee due to retakaful companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent
with the rclated retakaful contract. Retakaful assets represent balances duc from retakaful companics. Amounts
rccoverable from retakaful arc csimated in a manner consistent with the provisions for outstanding claims or scttled
claims associated with the retakaful policies and are in accordance with the related retakaful contract

Retakafunl asscis are nol offsct agamst related takafol habiliies. Income or expenses from relakaful contracts arc nol
ofTsct agamst cxpenscs or income from related takaful asscts.

Retakaful asscts or liahilities are derccognized when the contractual rights arc extinguished or expired.

The Operator asscsses 1is retakalful assels for impairment on staiement of financial posibon date. If there is objective
cvidence that retakaful asscts arc impaired, the Operator reduces the cammying amount of the relakaful asscts to its
recoverable amount and recognizes that impairment loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

Receivables due to / from retakafuol operators

Reecivables and payables related (o takaful contracts are recognized when duc at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given less provision for impairment, ifany.

Takaful / Re-takaful receivables

Contributions duc from takaful / retakaful represents the amount duc from participants and other takaful insurcrs on
account of takaful contracts. These are recognized at cost, which is the fair value of the contmbution to be received less
provision for impairment, ifany

Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims

Clamms recoveries recoverable from the retakaful operators are recognized as an asset at the same time as the elaims which

gives risc to the right of recovery are recognized asa liability and are measured at the amount expected to be received.
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4.9 Sepment reporting
Abusiness scgment is a distinguishable component of the Operator that is cngaged in providing services that are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of other business scgments. The Operator accounts for scgment reporting of
opcrating results using the classes of busincss as specificd under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, General Takaful
Accounting Regulations, 2019 and the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 201 7 as the primary reporting format.
Based on its classification of takaful contracts issucd, the Operator has four primary business scgments for reporting
purposcs namely firc, marine, motor and miscellancous. The nature and business activitics of thesc scgments arc
disclosed in respective notes to the Financial Statements.
Aszsects and hiabilitics are allocated to particular scgments on the basis of contribution written. Thosc asseis and liabilibies
which cannot be allocaled to a particular scgment on a reasonable basis arc reported as unalloeated corporate asscls and
ligbilitics. Depreciation and amortization arc allocated Lo a particular segment on the basis of contnbulion written.
4.10 Financial instruments
Financial asscls and financial liabilites within the scope of IAS - 39 arc recognized at the time when the Operator
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument and de-recognized when the Operator loses control of
coniractual rights that comprisc the financial asscts and in the casc of financial liabilitics when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derccognizing of the financial asscts and financial
liabilities is included in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.
Financial instruments carmed on the stalement of financial position include cash and bank deposits, mvestments, takaful /
rc- takaful reccivables, loan and other receivables, contribution and claim rescrves detained by cedants, retakalul
rccoverics against  oulstanding  claims, provision lor outstanding claims, takaful / re-takaful payable, other
creditors and accruals, liabilitics agaimst asscts subjoct to finance leasc.
4.11 Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equvalents are carmied in the statement of financial position al cost. For the purposes of cash flow
statement, cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash, cheques, pay orders, demand drafis and balances with banks.
4.12 Revenue recognition
a) Contribution-PTF
Coninibution mcome under a policy is recognized over the period of takaful net oft wakala fee. Administrative surcharge
recovered from insurcr is recognized as parl of coniribution in the casc of co-takaful policics (Leader Follower Case) on
proportionate basis.
Wakala fee- OPF
The operator manages the general Lakaful operations for the participants and charges 40% on gross contribution for all
classes as wakala fee against  the scrvices. Wakala fee 13 recognized on the same  basis as  the related  revenoe is
recognized. Unexpired portion of wakala fec isrecopnized as a iability of OPF and an assct o/ PTE.
b} Commission Income-PTF
Rechate from retakaful operators is recognized at the ime of issuance of the underlying takaful policy by the operator. This
mcome is deferred and brought to account as revenue in accordanee with the patiern of recognition of the retakaful
coniribution to which it relates.
¢} Investment Income-PTF/OPF
Profit on Islamic investment prodocts is recognized on accrual basis.
d) Dividend Income-PTF/OPF
Dividend income 15 recognized when the nght to reccive the dividend 15 exstablished.
4.13 Investments
a) Inequity securities
Available forsalc
Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined peniod of tme but may be sold in response to the need for
liguidity or changes in interest rates cle. arc classified as available for sale.
Subsequent to initial recognition at cost including the transaction cost, these are measured at fair value. Changes in fair
value arc recognized as other comprehensive income until the investment is derccognized or impaired. CGains and losscs
om de recognition and impairment losses arc recognized in stalement of comprehensive income.
Return on fixed income sccurntics classificd as available for sale is recognized on a time proportion basis.
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4.14

4.15

L

Held for trading
Investments which arc acquired with the inlention to trade by taking advantage of shorl tcrm market / interest rate

movements arc considered as held lor trading. Afier mitial recognition, these are measured at fair valucs with any resulting

gains or losses recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income.
In debt securities
Held to maturity

These arc securitics with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Opcrator's has a positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity. Thescarc inibially measured at cost mcluding acquisition charges associated with the
mvestments. Subscquent o initial recognition, these mvestments are measured at amortized cost less any accumulated
impairment losscs. Amortized cost is caleulated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition by using the
clfcctive yicld method. These are revicwed for impairment and any losscs ansing from impairment in valucs arc charged

Lo the statement of comprehensive income.
Held for trading
Investments which are acquired with the imtention to trade by taking advantage of short term market J inferest rate

movements are considered as held for trading. A fter inihal recognition, these are measored al fair values with any resulting
gains or losscs rocognized dircetly in the statement of comprehensive incomce.

In term deposits Held to maturity

These are seeuntics with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Operator's has a posiive mtent and
ability to hold to maturity. Thesc arc mmitially measured at cost including acquisition charges associated with the
mmvestments. Subscquent Lo mitial recognition, these mvestments are measured at amortized cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortized cost is calenlated taking into aceount any discount or premium on acquisition by using the
clfcctive yicld method. These are revicwed for impairment and any losscs ansing from impairment in values arc charged
to the statement of comprehensive meome.

Ofsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial asscts and financial habilitics arc offsct and the net amount 1s reported in the financial statements only when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Operator intends cither to settle on a net basis
orto realize the assets and to sctile the hiabiliies simultancously.

Provisions

Claims include all elaims ocewrring during the year, whether reported ornot, related mternal and  external claims handling
cosis that are dircetly relaied to the processing and scitlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other
recoveries and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

The Opcrator recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the balance sheet date which is measured at the un
discounted value of the expected future paymenis. The claims are considered to be incurred at the ime of incident giving
nisc to the claims cxcepl as otherwise expressly indicated in an insurance contract. The liahility for claims include amounts
rclating to unpaid reported claims, claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR ) and cxpected claims scitlement costs.
Provision for liability m respect of claims reporied but not scitled at the balance sheel date 1s made on the basis of
mdividual casc cstimates. The case estimates arc based on the asscssed amounts of individual losscs and where loss
asscssments have not been carmicd oul, the cstimates are established in light of currently available information, past
cxpericnce of similar claims and in some cases in relation to the sums insured. Case cstimates arce reviewed peniodically to
cnsurc that the recognized outstanding claim amounts are adequale to cover expecied future payments including cxpected
claims settlement costs and are updated as and when new information becomes available.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is consistently made at the balance sheet date in 2ccordance
with the SECP Circular no_ 9 of 201 6. IBNR claim have been estimated using Chain Ladder (CL) methodology. The Chain
Ladder (CL) Mcthod involves determination of development factors or link matios for cach peniod. These arc then
subsequently combined to determine Cumulative Development Factor (CDF) which represenis the extent of future
development of claims to reach their ultimate level. Provision for IBNR 15 bascd on the management best cstimate.

As a general policy of the Operator, being followed consistently over the years, no provision of claims has been made
where the quantum of loss is unknown.
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4.16 Staff retirement benefits Defined contribution plan
The Company operates a funded Provident Fund Scheme [or its ecmployees and contributions arc made monthly equal (o
cmployces contribution (& 8.33% (2023: §.33%) ofbasic salary and cost of living allowance ifany:
4.17 Impairment of assets
The carrying amount of asscts arc revicwed at cach statement of financial position date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment of any assct or group of assets.  [f such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
cstimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carmying amount of an assct cxceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losscs arc recognized in statement of comprehensive income.
Where impairment loss subscguently reverses, the carmying amounts of the assets are increased (o the revised recoverable
amounts bul limited to the carrying amounts that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asscis in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in statement of comprehensive
In addition, impairment on available for sale investments and retakaful assets are recognized as follows:
I} Awailable forsale
The operalor determines that available for sale cquity mvestments are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost.  This determination of what 1s significant or prolonged requires
Judgment. In making this judgment, the operator evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share price. In
addition, impairment may be appropriatc when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the mvestee,
industry and scctor performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flows.
ii) Re-takaful assets
The operator determines the impairment of the re-takaful assets by looking at objective evidence, as a result of an cvent that
occurred afler mitial recognition of (he re-takaful assets, which indicates that the operator may not be able to recover
amount duc from re-takaful under the terms of re-takaful contract.  In addition the operator also monitors the financial
ratings ofits re-takaful operators on cach reporting date.
4.18 Management expenses
4.18.1 Direct expense
Expenscs allocated to the "PTF" represcots dircetly attnbutable expenses. Expenscs not dircetly allocable to "PTF arc

charged to Operator’s Fund.
4.18.2 Management expense
Expenses nol allocable to the underwriting business are charged as management expensces. Management expenses ol

takaful busincss are allocated to revenue account of operator as per requirements of Takaful Rules, 2012,

4.18.3 Claims expense
Creneral takaful claims melude all claims ocewmng during the year, whether reporied or not, relaied mtemal and external
claims handliing costs that arc dircctly rclated to the processing and sctflement of claims, a reduction for the value of
salvage and other recoverics, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

4.19 Creditors, aceruals and provisions
Liabilitics for creditors and other amounis payable are camied at cost which is fair value of the consideration Lo be paid in
future for goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Operator.
Provisions arc recognized when the Operator has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past cvents, it is
probablc that an out flow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions arc reviewed at each reporting dzte and are adjusted to reflect the current
best cstimate.

4.20 Foreign currency transactions and translations
Forcign currency transactions arc translated imto Pak Rupees ( functional currency) using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monctary asscts and liabilitics in forcign currencics are translated into Pak Rupecs using the
exchange rate at the statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the sctilement
of such transactions and from the translations at the year cnd cxchange rates of monctary asscts and liabilitics
denominated in forcign currencics arc recognized in the statcment of comprchensive income.

4.21 Takaful surplus
Takaful surplus atiributablc to the participants 1s calculated after charging all direct cost and sctting aside vanous rescrves
and charity. Allocation to participants, if applicable, is madc aller deducting the elaims paid to them duning the year.
Further, surplus will be disinibuted to participants afler payment of gard -c-hasna to operator.
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4.22

4.23

4.24

Zakat

Zakal on investment incomc is accounted for in the year of deduction, under Zakat & Ushr Ordinance, 1980.
Qard-e-hasna

Qard-c-hasna is provided by Operators' Fund (OPF) to Participanis' Takaful Fund {(PTF) in case of deficit in Participants’
Takaful Fund (PTF).

Related party transactions

Party 15 said to be related if they are able to influcnee the operating and financial decisions of the Operator and vice versa.

The Operator in the normal course of business carries out transactions with relaled partics. Transactions with related
partics arc priced at comparable uncontrolled market price and arc carried out al arm’s length prices.
CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accountimg and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
requires the use of ceriain eritical accounting cstimates. [t also reguires management o exercisc its judgment in the
process of applying the Opcrator's accounting policics. Estimates and judgments arc continually cvaluated and are based
on historical cxperience, including cxpectations of future cvents thal are belicved o be reasonable under the

circumstances.
These cstimates and underlying assumptions arc revicwed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting cstimates arc

recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the peniod of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of
Judgment or complexity or areas where assumpiions and cstimates are significant lo the financial statemenis are as

follows:
a) Usclhul lives and residual value of property and cquipment (Notc 4.1)

b Reserve for Uncamed contribution. (Note 4.4)

c) Contribution deficicney reserve. (Notc 4.5)

d} Classification of investments. (Note 4.13)

¢) Outstanding claims includmg IBNR. (Notc 4.15)
(dher arcas involving cstimates and judgments are discloscd in respective notes to the financial statements.
OQARD-E-HASNATOPTF
In accordance with the Takaful Rules, 2012, if al any poinl in ime, asscts in Participants’ Takatul Fund are not sufficient to
cover iis liabilitics, the deficit shall be funded by way of an interest free loan (Qard-c-Hasna) from Operator's Fund. In the
cvent of future surplus in the Participants’ Takaful Fund, to which a Qard-c-Hasna has been made, the Qard-c-Hasna shall
be repaid prior to distribution of surplus o Participanis.

7  LOANSANDOTHERRECEIVABLES

L

Unsceurcd considered - Good

Advances to stall 7,000 = i =
Advance againsi commission 1,011,030 20,018 - -
Others - 536,396 - 973,896
Sccurity Deposits 160,000 - -
1,178,030 556414 973 896
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Operator's Participanis’
Fund T akaful Fund
NOTE 2024 2023 2024 2023
8  TAKAFUL/RETAKAFUL RECEIVABLES s
{Unsceured and considered good)
Duc from takaful contract participanis - - 8,201,005 13,625268
Less: Provision for impairment of recervables from
takaful participants holders - - (223.574)  (223,574)
Due from other takaful / retakaful - = 110,480,229 73,748,017
Less: Provision for impairment of reccivable from
takatul / retakaful E £l (B60,841) (R60,%41)

- - 117596819 86288870

Movement of provision for impairment is as follows:
Opcning balance - - 1.084.415 -
Adjustment on account of:

Doubtful preminm written of - - - -
Provision made for doubtful due from:

Duc from takaful contract participants = : = 223 574

Duc from other takaful / retakaful - - - 860,841
Nect adjustment . - : 1,084 415
Closing balance - . 1.084,415 1,084,415

9 PREPAYMENTS
Prepaid re-takatul contribution ceded - - 15,237,337 14 968 200
10  SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Deposits Maturing within 12 months
Term deposit receipts 10.1 50,000,000 50,000,000 - -
50,000,000 50,000,000 - -

10.1 This represents, invesiment in Term Deposit Receipls (TDRs) with the National Bank of Pakistan, have a maturity period
olone year and will be matured on January 26, 2025, This carnes a mark-op at the rate of 17_5% per annom.

11 CASH AND BANK

Cash at bank 3,090,028 12846344 125956312 78,153,709
- Baving accounts 11.1 3,090,028 12846344 125956312 78,153,709
11.1 Therate of return on PLS saving accounts mamtained at various banks range from 5.87% to 9% (2023 2.79% to 20%) per
annom.
12 SEEDMONEY
Wagf moncy 2y - - 500000 500000

12.1 The amount of Bs. 500,000/~ has been sct apart for Wagl Fund / Participant Takaful Fund as Wagf moncy according to
the Waqf deed prepared for the purposc of creation of Wagl Fund / Participanti Takafu] Fund.

13 STATUTORY FUND (OPF)
Statutory reserve 13.1 50,000,000 50,000,000

13.1 This represents amount of Rs. 50 million deposited as statulory fund to comply with provisions of paragraph 4 of circolar
no. & of 2014 read with section 11({1){c) of Takaful Rules, 2012 issucd by SECFE, which states that "every insurer who is
mterested to commence Window Takaful business shall transfer an amount of not less than Rs. 50 million to be deposited
in a scparale bank account for Window Takaful business duly maintained m a scheduled bank'.
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Operator's Fund Participants' Takaful Fund
31-Dec-24 31-Dec-23 31-Dec-24  31-Dec-23
NOTE Rupees
14 TAKAFUL / RETAKAFUL PAYABLES
Unscourcd
Takaful / Re-takaful payables - - 11,143,610 2256490
15 OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Sales tax payable - - 380,305 670,702
Federal takaful fee payablc - - 79.204 49,769
Tax deducted at source 117,003 191.407 2,789 45,251
EORBI payable 85,680 36,000 - -
Ontstanding agency commissions 22,690,745 14369519 - -
Auditors’ remuncration 225370 155,595 - -
Others 1,145,967 172952 3867841 3556266
24264765 14935473 4330,229 4321 988

15.1 Thisrcpresent the commission payable on the polices which has been underwritien during the year.
16  Receivable / Payable (Currrent Account between OPF and PTF)

Other Receivable £ Payable 81,269,561

32213898 (81,269,561) (32.213.898)

17 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - OPF

Staff provident fund 16,294 18,324 2 =

17.1 The Company opcratcs a funded Provident Fund Scheme for its employees and contributions arc made monthly cqual to

cmployces contribution (@ 8.33% (2023: 8.33%) of basic salary and cost of iving allowance.
18 CONTINGENCIESAND COMMITMENTS

18.1 Contingencies
There were no contingencics outstanding as al December3 1, 2024 (2023: Nil).
18.2 Commitments
There were no commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2024 (2023: Nil).
Participants' Takaful Fund (PTF)
31-Dec-24 31-Dee-23
19 NET CONTRIBUTION Rupees Rupces
Wnitten gross contribution 145,568,289 129,284 556
Less: Wakala fec (58,227,321) (52,249.610)
87,340,968 77,034,946
Add: Provision for uncarncd contribution - Opening 35,756,258 27903116
Less: Provision for uncamed contmbution - Closing (41,237,129) (35,756,258)
Contribution camed 81,860,097 69,181,804
Less: Re-takaful contnbution coded (43,016,000) (40,024,000)
Add: Prepaid re-takaful contnbution - Opening (14,968,200) (7.012,125)
Less: Prepaid re-takaful contribution - Closing 15,237,337 14,968,200
Re-takaful cxpense (42,746,863) (32,067,925)
Net Contribution 39,113,234 37,113 879
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Participants’ Takaful

Fund (PTF)
20  NET CLAIMS - REPORTED / SETTLED - IBNR NOTE 31-Dec-24 31 Dee-23
Rupees Rupeces
Benefits / Claims Paid 34,627,131 62,069.512
Add: Outstanding claims including IBNR - Closing 32,288,199 24942209
Less: Outstanding claims mcluding IBNR. - Opening (24,942,209) (37.506,329)
Claims expense 41,973,121 49,505,392
Less: Re-takaful and other recoveries received - -
Add: Re-takaful and other recoveries in respect of outstanding claims - Closing 38,181 2,998,991
Less: Re-takaful and other recoveries in respect of outstandimg claims - Opening {2,998,991) {2,694 389]
Re-takaful and other recovenies revenue (2,960,710) 304.602
Met Claim Expense 44,933,831 49 200,790
Operator’s Fund (OPF)
31-Dec-24 31-Dcc-23
21  COMMISSION EXPENSE R Bts
Commission paid or payable 29,220,451 25,308,587
Add: Deferred commission expense - opening 11,184,193 9,132,523
Less: Deferred commission expense - closing (13,061,131) {11,184,193)
Net Commission 27343513 23,256,917
22 WAKALA FEE
Wakala fee 58,227.321 52249610
Add: Uneamed Wakala fee - opening 24,136,262 21,098,465
Less: Uneamed Wakala fee - closing (27,490,425)  (24,136.262)
Wakala Fee Earned 54,872,158 49211813
23  GENERAL, ADMINSTRATION AND MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Employee benefit cost 231 2386,682 2,043,524
Travelling expense 305,003 199,967
Repairs and mamtenance - 10,842
Printing and stationery 140,564 56912
Bank charpes 5473 3,063
Service charpges 351,032 230,941
Miscellaneous 104,912 03,097
3,293,666 2638346
23.1 These include Rs.0.071 million (2023: Rs. 0.053 million) in respeet of post employment benefit respeetively.
Operator's Fund Participants' Takaful Fund
Note 31-Dec-24 31-Dece-23 31-Dec-24 31-Dec-23
24 OTHER INCOME Rupers
Return on bank balances and deposits 24,1 £ 242 11,519,890 12,078,585 13,583,446 11,682 355
(her income - - 928,792 HOR.060
11,529,890 12,078,585 14,512,238 12,380,415
24.1 This mcludes retum on (TDRs) amounting Rs. 8871 million (2023: Bs. | 868M) at the rate of 17.5% per annum.
24.2 The rate of retum on PLS saving accounts mamtained at various banks range from 5.87% to 9% (2023: 2.79% (o 2084)
PCT annuim.
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Operator's Fund Participanis' Takaful Fund
MNote Ji-Dec-24 31-Dee-23 3i-Dec-24 31 -Dece-23
25 OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES Rupees
Provision for bad and doubtful receivable - = - 1084415
Bank charges - - 5.517 3,922
- - 5.517 1,088 337
26 OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors' remuncration 26.1 352475 250,574 - -
352.475 250,574 - a
26.1 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Audit foc 295,145 195974 - -
Hall yearly review 57,330 54,600 - -
352,475 250,574 - -
27 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chief Executive Directors Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Rupees  Rupecs Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupces
Managenal remuncration = Z = o =
Leave cncashment = = = & = <
Bonus = = = = - -
Ex-gratia allowance = = = i = =
Contribution to defined = = =, 4 - =
contribution plan =

28  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

28.1 Rclated partics comprise of dircclors, major sharcholders, key management personnel, associaled companics, cntitics
with common dircetors and employce retirement benefit funds. The transactions with related parties arc carmed ool at
commercial terms and conditions and compensation to key management personnel is on employment terms. The
transactions and balances with related partics other than those which have been specifically disclosed clsewhere in these
financial statcments arc as follows:

Party name/description Basis Relation

Directors Sharcholder -

key management personncl - -

Staff retirement benefits plan - - 31-Dec-24  31-Dec-23
Relation with undertaking MNature and transaction (Rupees) (Rupces)
Balances at year end:

Staff retirement benefits plan (Payablc) to defined bencfit plan (16,294) (18,324)
Transactions during the year:

Koy management personncl Remuneration of key management personnel - -
Staff retirement benefits plan Contribution to provident fund during the year 70,680 53,832
Key management personnel Commission paid to relatives - -

28.2 The transactions with Asia Insurance Company Limited have been disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial
statcrmments.
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29 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operator has four primary business segments for reporiing purposes namely fire and property damape, manne aviation
and transport, motor and misccllancons. Asscts and liabilitics, wherever possible have becn assigned to the following
segments based on specific identification or allocated on the basis of contnbution written by cach segment.

Rupers
FIRE AND
Curreal Perlod ended on December 31, 2024 diet wg'\mT i L
DAMAGE
Caontribution received (inchusve of FED, FIF and
At Surcharg) 80,252,911 L6 | 23259003 0517499 | 155,144,014
Less: Foderal Excise Doty/Sales Tax (3,502,159 (3,134361) | (1.674,578) (539.376) (B.B50,474)
Federal Takaful Fee {221,576) (259,387) (105,572) (138,716) (725,251)
oo il ool Mirint s (e Sl sl 76,529,176 I0ATS 21419813 19830407 145568280
sarcharge)
Ciross direet contribution 21,573 4% 24.036,186 | 10245877 13819406 | J0.574.877
Facultative mward contribution 54,465,618 1,780,759 | 10,977,605 S96TATS | TA,191857
At rC W b iiad e | 2wam s handcciicd
Wakala fee expense 28,478,030 10,651,397 6,730,710 o012012  S4872158
Taksfisl contribution camed 42,717 058 15,077,002 10,006,063 069,584 81,860,097
Takaful contribution cedod to retakafil (18.823.49) (18,553.736)  (LA3T.96T) (L951,668) (42 T46,863)
Net Takaful eontribution 23,893,562 L5Ta64d) 7,658,006 10,138220 39,113,234
Retakafil rebate income = = = = =
Net underwriting income 23,893 562 (L5T6,640) 7658006 10138220 39,113,234
Takafisl claims (22,328 488) 421,230 | (6:210,170) (13R55,69%)  (41,973,121)
Takaful claims recovered from retakafil (1,149,556) (1,567,162) 38281 (282273)  (2,960,710)
MNet claims (X3 ATE044) (1,145932)  (6.171,889) (14,137.966)  (44,933,831)
Dircet expenscs (2.879) (1077 (680) (331) (5,517)
Contnbubion deficicncy expense (1, 119.297) A2 ,620 5= (2517, 045) (A4 722)
Met Takaful claims and expenses (24,600.220) (T25389)  (6.171569) (16,655892)  (48,154,0M0)
Underwriting results (TG, 658) (3.301,033) 1,485,527 (6.517.,672) (9,040, 836)
(ther moome 14,512,238
(her cxpenscs -
Resolt of operating activities-FTF 5471402
Segment sssets - (FTF) 87314389 2TA33TE I IR0075 21686027 160,363,861
Unallocated asscts - (FTF) 125956311
Total assets - (FTF) 286,320,174
Sepment Bahbilitics - (FTF) A8 AG2A12 733532 14046428 15335392 BARTY.T6d
Unallocated liabilites - (PTF) 118,940,257
Total lihilities - (FTF) 203,818,021
(Operators’ fund scooont
Wakala fee carned 28 ATRA30 10651397 6,730,710 9012012 S4ATZISE
et Commission and other acquisition costs (17,696.334) (GAILI00) (1L653,680) (1,579308)  (27.343.513)
Management expenscs (1,731,569) (627,197) (486,008) (448.892) (3,293, 666)
(ther moome 11,529,890
(Ither cxpenscs ISZATS)
Profit for the period 3541
Sepment assets - (OPF) 9892112 1,149,501 1,115,438 903,980 13,061,131
Unallocated asscts - ((OPF) M43 T22TT
Total assets - ((JPF) 1
Sepment Exbilitics - {OPF) 27,869,263 6111504 7855577 8235736 SOI8L170
Unallocated hishilities - (OPF) 1,590,314
Total habilitics - ((PF) 51,772 AR
Qe
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29.1 SEGMENT INFORMATION

| Rapezs =
Prior Period cnded on December 31, 2023 TR AT MARINE AVIATION
m;l'l' AND T MOTOR MISCELLANECHIS TOTAL
Ot m‘“’;‘"’d (inchasive of FED, FIF and 61,856,042 | 37245700 | 15,347,286 26561642 | 137,010,770
Less: Federal Excise Duty/Sakes Tax (2,256,142) (L512.964) | (1.816.463) EI0I09) | (T.095,678)
Federal Takaful Foo {10958 | 28519) | (e (et | 50
‘;‘;:“h_"’mﬁ""ﬂ ety e k. Al 65,456,072 UEMNT 34T ISRETI4 129,284,556
Ciroas ditect contribution 14006523 | 19950453 | 11,009,743 16305552 | 61362271
Facultative inward contribution 51,077,485 3,672,956 2,038,223 0459603 | 66248267
Administrative surcharee 172,064 900,506 279,857 122,059 1.674,018
Walkals foe cxpense 2,779411 9,315,157 6,732,208 038583 49211813
Takaful contribution carmed 35,669,112 13,972,737 10098314 9,441,641 69,181,804
Takafiul contribution ceded to retakaful (11,495,561) (15671617 (L078,011) 2A2TI6)  (3L067,025)
Net Takaful contribution 24,173,551 (LG0R280) 8020303 6618905 37113879
Retakafil rebate mcome = - = =
Met underwriting income 24,173,551 (LGYEZA0) 8020303 6618905 37,113,879
G —EEe | ST ‘ — I S [ B ‘
Takaful claims recovered from retakaful 390,480 | 212,421 (785,142} {193,166) 304,602
Ned claims (32,570,045) (LBIOTI0)  (7.500,171) (TO10.864)  (49.200,790)
Dircct expenscs (561,130 (219.813) (158,862) (148532)  (L08R33T)
Contribution deficiency cxpense (284,517) (421,520) : (1,TIRA01) (2A24.538)
Net Takaful claims and expenses (33,715,692) (461,143  (1.659,033) (RETTTYT) (52713665
Underwriting results (9,542, 141) (4,160,023) 361,270 (225R802)  (15.599.736)
Other income 12,380,415
(her Expenses e
Result of operating activifies-PTF 1 1
Segment assets - (PTF) 68,350,077 22105110 12,7I8,105 28310,001 128,302,323
Unallocated asscts - (FTF) 79,127,605
Total asscts - (PTE) 307,519,028
Sepment labilities - (PTF) 34, 464,667 THINEG 10,422,659 15054297 67,182,709
Unallocated lahilitics - (PTF) 63,306,868
Todal liahilitics - (FTF) 130,489,177
Uperators” fond accoummt
Walkals foe camed 23,779411 9,315,157 6,732,208 0IBSEIT 49211813
Met Commission and other acquisition costs (14,764,511) (5.605432)  (1,659.424) (1,227.550)  (23,256,917)
Management cxpenscs (1335, 780) (500,473) (ZT3,805) {528, 288) (2,638.346)
Cther income 12,078,585
(Hher cxpenscs (250.574)
Prefit for the period 35,144,561
Sepment assets - (OPF) .STH.GED 884,466 646,770 LOT4268 11184193
Unalloeated asscts - (OPE) 07,424,396
Total asscts - ((IPF) _108.668.589
Sepment liabilities - (OPF)
Unallocated liahilities - (OFF) 21,081,703 4180931 4137397 9096750 38505781
Todtal lishilitics - (OPF) 574,278
39,080,059
Qe
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MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS

Druring the year, the cntity invested Rs. 50,0 million in term deposit receipts, which is categorized at amortized cost. There
arc no opening balances, additions and impairments for the year, climinating the need for reconciliation. This is classified
under short lerm investment.

CAPITALMANAGEMENT
The objectives, policics and processes for managing capital of the Operator arc as follows:
o be an appropriatcly capitalized institution, as defined by regulatory authorntics and comparable to the peers;

-maintain strong rating and to protect the Operator agamst uncxpected cvents;

-availability of adequate capital at reasonable cost so as to cnable the Operator to cxpand; and

-gchicve low cost ol capital with appropriate mix of capilal clements.

Management of takaful risk and finaneial risk

The operator is cxposed to a varicty of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (comprising cummency nisk,
mterest rate risk and other price risk) that could result in a reduction in operator's net asscts or a reduction in the profits.
The operator's overall sk management program focuscs on unpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimize
potential adverse effcels on the financial performance. Owverall nisks ansing from the operator'’s financial asscts and
liabilitics arc limited. The operator consistently manapges ils exposure to financial nisks without any maternial change from
previous year in the manner desenibed in the notes below. The Board of Directors has the overall responsibality for the
cstablishment and oversight of operator's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the operator’s risk management policy.

Takaful risks

32.1.1 Takaful risk

L

The company accepts the takaful risk through its takaful contracts where it assumes the nsk of loss from persons or
organzations that arc dircctly subjcct to the underying loss. The company is cxposcd to the uncertainty surrounding the
timing, frequency and seventy ofelaims under these contracts.

The company manapes its nisk via its underwniting and retakaful strategy within an overall nsk management
framcwork. Exposurcs arc managed by having documented underwriting limits and eniteria. Retakaful is purchased to
mitigatc the cffect of potential Toss to the company from individual large or catastrophic cvents and also to provide access
o spocialist nisks and to assist in managing capital. Retakaful policics arc written with approved reinsurcrs on cither a
proportional or cxeess of loss treaty basis.

A concentration of risk may also anisc from a single takalul contract issued to a particular demographic type of policy
holder, within a geographical location or to types of commereial business. The company minimizes ils exposurc to
significant losscs by obtaining rctakaful from a number of rctakaful operators, who arc dispersed over scveral
geographical regions.

Geographical concentration of takafuol risk

To optimize benefits from the prmeiple of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of nisk 13 of cxireme
imporiance. There arc a number of parameters which arc significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference
to the geographical location, the most important of which is nsk survey.

Risk surveys are carmmcd out on a rcgular basis for the cvaluation of physical hazards associated with the
commercial/industnal/residential occupation of the insurers. Details regarding the fire scparation/scgregation with
respect o the manufacturing processces, storage, ulilitics cle. are exiracled from the layout plan of the msured facility.
Such details form part of the reports which are made available to the underwniters/retakaful personmel for their evaluation.
Reference is made to the standard construction specifications as laid down by TAP (Insurance Association of Pakistan) for
mstance, the presence of Perfeet Party Walls, Double Fire Proof Iron Doors, physical scparation between the buildings
within an msurcd's premises. It is basically that the property containcd within an arca which 15 scpamated by another
property by sufficient distance to confine msured damage {rom uncontrolled fire and explosion under the most adverse
conditions to that one area.

Address look up and geocoding is the cssential ficld of the policy data interphase of IT systems. It provides instant
location which is dependent on data collection provided under the policy schedule. All eritical underwniting information
is punched imto the IT systemfapplication through which a number of MIS reports can be generated to asscss the
conceniration of nsk.
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For Mannec risk, complele underwriting details, besides sums covered and contribution, like vessel identification, voyage
input {scalair‘inland transit), sailing dates, origin and destination of the shipments, per carmy himits ele. arc fed into the IT
systcm. The retakaful module of the IT system 15 designed to satisfy the requirements as laid down in the proportional
trcaty agrecment. Shipment declamations are also endorsed on the policies. Respective retakaful cessions anc
automatically made upon the posting of policy documents.

32.1.2 Retakaful arrangements

Kccping in view the maximum cxposure in respect ol key zonc aggregales, a number of proportional and non proportional
retakaful armangements arc in place to protect the net account in casc of a major catastrophe. Apart from the adequate
cvent limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional treaty, any loss over
and above the said limit would be recovered from the non proportional treaty which is very much in line with the nisk
management philosophy of the Company.

In compliance with the regulatory requircment, the retakalul agreements are duly submitied with Sceuritics and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.

The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarized below by reference to liabilities.

Liross sum covered Hetakalul Cover Mei Liability
2024 [ FITrE] FTE | FITEE] 024 | 0
Hupees

Fitee anel property damsge BESELTILO% | 62043099174 65.519,261.852 16,620, 864,155 2.T4Z 469,244 A5 AZ2235,019
Marine awviation s lansport A13ED 40403 | 35251971704 43501,553.595 | I6,01K0079.950 HET,THO,H0K 9,233 891,265
Mutor 104,530,932 W26 52661 204,694,313 158,647 966 AZ,136,619 167,954,697
Msoellaneouy 1131338307 1 #2652 965 LOIH 204476 | SOULEIH 43 113,133,831 1,326.254,072 |

TG IR9 TA0TIH 100045 11 71 43298771 003 3,785,526, 5001 5b 50,335 03

32.1.3 Uncertainty in the estimation of future claims payment

Claims on general tskaful contracts are payable on a claim oceurrence basis. The operator is liable for all insured events
that occur during the term of the lakaful contracl

An cstimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on intimation to the Company. The estimation of the amount is
bascd on the amount notificd by the policy holder, management or preliminary assessment by the independent surveyor
appointcd for this purposc. The initial estimates include expected scitlement cost of the claims. Incurrcd But Not
Reported (IBNR) claims have been estimated wsing Chain Ladder (CL) methodology. The Chain Ladder (CL)
Method mvolves determimation of development factors or link ratios for cach period. These are then subsequently
combincd to determine Cumulative Development Factor (CDF) which represents the extent of future development of
claims Lo reach their ultimate level. IBNR for all classes is determined and recognized in accordance with valuation
carried out by an appointcd actuary which is also based on Chain Ladder (CL)ymethod.

There are several variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognized claim liabilitics. However, the
management considers that uncertamty about the amount and timing of claim payments 15 generally resolved within a
year. The operator takes all rcasonable measures to mitigale the factors affecting the amount and timing of claim
scitlements. However, uncertainty prevails with cstimated claim liabilities and it is likely that final scttlement of these
liabilitics may be different from recognized amounts.

32.1.4 Key assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the liability cstimation of IBNR and contribution deficiency rescrve is that the
operator's future claim development will follow similar historical patiemn for eccurmrence and reporting. The management
uscs qualitative judgment (o asscss the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern will not 2pply in future. The
Judgment includes external factors c.g. treatment of one-off oceurrence claims, changes in market factors, cconomic
conditions, clc.

32.1.5 Sensitivity analysis

L

The risks associated with the takaful contracts are complex and subject to a number of vaniables which complicate
quantilative sensitivity analysis. The sensitivity analysis is performed on the same basis as that of Tast year. The Company
makes vanous assumplions and lechniques based on past claims development experience. This includes indications such
as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and expected loss ratios. The Company considers that the liability for
takalul claims recognized in the statement of financial position is adequate. However, actual expericnee will differ from
the cxpected outcome.
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32.2

L

As the company cnters into short lerm takaful contracts, it docs not assume any significant impact of changes in market
conditions on uncxpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing arc sct out below, showing the impact on profit
before tax net of retakaful.

Pre tax Profit Participants' Takaful Fund
2024 | 2023 2024 | 2023

10% decrease in profit Rupres

Firc and property damage (2.347.804) (3,287,005) (2.347,804) (3.287,005)

Marinc aviation and transpori (114,593) (181.971) (114,593) (181,971)

Motor (617,189) (750017) (617,189) (750,017)

Miscellancous (1.413,797) {701,086) (1.413,797) (701,088)
{4,493 383) {4,920,079) {4.493383) {4,920,079)

10% increase in profit would have the same but oppositc impact on above analysis.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk, which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
obligation and causc other party Lo incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring crodit
cxposurcs by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterpartics in vanious industrics and by continually
asscssing the credit worthiness of counterpartics.

Concentration of credit nsk anscs when a number of counterpartics have a similar type of busimess activitics. As a result,
any change in economic, political or other conditions would affect their ahility to meet contractual obligations in similar
manner. The Company's credit nsk exposure is not significantly different from that refleeted in the financial statements.
The management monitors and limits the Company's exposure to eredit risk through monitoring of clienis cxposure and
conscrvative estimates of provision for donbtful assets, ifany. The management is of the view that it is not cxposed Lo the
significanl conceniration of credit nisk as its financial asscls are adequately diversified in entitics of sound financial
standing, covenng various indusinial sectors.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

2023
Catepory of financial assets Rm Rupees
Saving Accounts Loans & Reccivables 129,046,340 91,000,053
Takaful / re-takaful receivables Loans & Reccivables 117,596,519 86,288,870
Receivable from FTF Loans & Receivables 81,269,561 32213898
Loan and other receivables Loans & Receivables 1,178,030 556,414
325,000,750 210,059,235

The company did not hold any collatcral against the above during the year. General provision is made for receivables
according o the Company's policy. No provision is made for impairment during the year. This impairment provision is
utilized to write ofT a financial asset when it is determined that Company cannot recover the balance duc.

The credit quahity of Company's bank balances can be assessed with referenee to external eredil ratings as follows:

Rating iy A 2024 2023
Short term [ Long term e HRupees Rupees

Simdh Bank Lamiled A-1 At HOR-VIS 771,364 570,748
Meeran Bank Limited A-l+ AAN MCR-VIS 10,531,174 2434 580
Hahib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ Al PACHA 104 178
Bank Islami Pakistan Lid. Al AA- PACRA 26,175 24,647
Mational Bank of Pzkistan Al+ AAp PACRA 109,665,725 BOLEI2ZR1G
Faysal Hank Al+ Al PACHA - 7137082

120,994,542 01 000,054
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L

The following arc the contractual matunitics of financial liabilitics on an undiscounted cash flow basis:

Financial labilitics: 2024

Prowision for outstanding clams {(includng IBME)

Coninbution received m advance
Takaful / re-takafil payables
Payable o PTF / OPF

(Mher creditors and accruals

Fnencial habilitses: 2023

Provision for outstanding clamms {mcledmg IBNE)

Comribution received n advance
Takaful / re-iakaful payahles
Payahle o PTE / OPF

(Mher creditors and acoruals

Agpe analysis of financial assets is a5 under:

Financial assets: 2024

Carrying Amount | Up to One Year :‘:::Hm
328K 199 3LIER.199 -
208,826 208,826 =
11,143,610 11,143,610 =
B1,269,561 81,269,561 -
24062082 24,062,082 -
e MAE9T2278 V4R972278 =
Carrying Amount Up to One Year 2o Vi s
24 942 209 24 042 200 .
4277752 4,227,752 ]
2,256,490 2,256,490 ]
32,313 804 32,213 KoY =
14, 608 (466 14,698 066
TE 338415 TR IIRALS

Carrying Amount |Up to (ne Year | From 1 - 2 years|More than 2 years |

Ruopees

Takaful / re-takaful receivables 117,596,519 73,858,043 34,047 815 9, 660,961
Loan and other receivables 1.178,030 L174,030 - -
Receivahle from PTF H1.269.561 81,269,561 - -
Saving accounty 129,046,340 129,046,340 2 -

329,089,750 2¥53H1.974 34047815 0,660,961
Financial assets: 2023 | Canmyme Amount | Up to One Year | From | - 2 years | More than 2 years |
Takaful / re-takaful receivables B, 2RE 870 63,100,181 13,296,236 9K92 453
Heceivable from PTE 32213 598 32213.89% x -
Loan and other receivables 556,414 556,414 - -
Saving accounts 91,000,053 91,000,053 x -

210,059,235 156870546 13,296,236 0 %97 453

The credit quality of amount due from other takaful! retakaful and retakaful recovenies against outstanding claims can be
assessod with reference o extemal credit ratings as follows:

Amount doe from Retakafal 024 023
other takaful / recoverics against
retakaful outstanding claims | —— Rupees——
A ar ahove (including PRCL) 11467512 - 1MA6T.51T TO461 505
{ithers 12717 38,251 50,998 6285503
Total 110, 488,.22% 38,281 110,518,518 76,747,008
Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk 15 the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall duc. Prudent
ligmdity risk management implics maintaming sufficicnt cash and marketable scounitics. The Company finances its
opcrations through cquity and working capital with a view to mamtaining an approprialc mix between various sources of
finance to minimize risk. Please refer tonote 33 for igumdity nisk schedule.

Market risk
Market nsk means that the fair valuc or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becawse of changes

market prices. The objective is 1o manage and control markel risk exposurcs within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the retum. The market risks associaled with the Company's business activitics arc mterest/mark up rate risk
and price nsk. The Company 1s not cxposcd to matenal currency risk.
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L

Interest / mark up rate risk

Interest/mark up rate sk 15 the nsk that value of a financial mstrument or future cash flows of a finanecial instrument will
fluctuate due to chanpes in thc market mierest'mark up rates. Scnsitivity (o interest/mark up rale nisk anses [fom
mismalches of financial assets and hiabilitics that mature or re-price in a given peniod. The company manages these
mismatches through nsk management strategics.

Al the staterment of financial position date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial
instruments is as follows:

Financial asscts 2024 | 2023 2024 2023
Effective interest rale (in %) Rupees Rupees
Saving accounts 5.87 o 9% 2.79 w 0% 129,046,340 91,000,053
Term deposil 17.50% N 35% 50,000,000 50,000, 000
179,046,340 41 000,053
Sensitivity analysis

For cash flow scositivity analysis of variable ratec instruments a hypothctical change of 100 basis points in
mnlerest rates at the reporting date would have decreased/(inercased) profit for the year by the amounts shown below.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assets 1.790.463 1,410,001

It is assumed, for the purposc of scositivity analysis, that the changes ocour immediately and umformly to cach category
of instrument containing inlerest rate nsk. Vanations in markel interest rates could produce significant changes al the
time of carly repayments. For these reasons, actual results might differ from those reflected in the details. The analysis
assumes that all other vaniables remain constant
Price risk
Price risk represenis the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market
prices {other than those ansing from interest/mark up rate nsk or currency nisk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the mdividual financial instroment or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments
traded in the market. The Company is not exposcd Lo cquity price nisk sinec it has no significant investments in guoted
cquity scocuritics at the statement of financial position date. The Company is cxposcd to cquity price nisk since it has
investments in quoted cquity scouritics amounting to Rs. Nil/- (2023: Nil/-) at the statement of financial position date.
The Company's stratcgy is to hold its strategic equitly investments for long peried of ime. Thus, Company's management
1% not concerned with short term price fluctuations with respect o its strategic investments provided that the underlying
busincss, economic and management characteristics of the invesice remain favorable. The Company sinves (o maintaim
above average levels of sharcholders’ capital to provide a margin of safety against short term equity price volatility. The
Company manages price rnisk by monitonng exposure in guoted equity sceurities and implementing strict discipline m
inicrnal risk management and mvestment policics.
The carrying valuc of investments subject to cquity price risk arc based on guoted market prices as of the statcment of
finaneial position date and available for sale equity mstruments which are based on quoted market prices as of the
statcment of financial position datc in accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Accounting Rules and
Regulations issucd by the Sccuritics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), dated February 09,201 7.
Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realized in the subsequent sale ol an investment may
significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthermore, amount realized in the sale of a particular sccurity may
be affeeted by the relative quantity of the security being sold. The Company has no significant conceniration o price nisk.
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Hypothetical
Estimated fair
thetical nrd lue aft increase / Hypothetical
Fair value " change hypothetical {decrease) in inerease/{decrease)
in shareholders” in profit before tax
ERRAER IR BT equity
2024 - 10% increase - - -
1% decrease - - =3
23 3 10%% increase = 2 -
10% decrease _

325 FUNDMANAGEMENT

The operator's objectives when managing capital or to safeguard operator's ability to continue as going concern in order to
provide retumns for operator or participants and to offer benefits for other stakcholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure o reduce the cost of capital. In order o mamtain or adjust the capital struciure, the amount of retum paid to

opcrators or to participants may be adjusted.
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33 FINANCIALASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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ASIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

34

as

L

STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY Participant's
Asgets Note Takaful Fund
Property and equipment 31-Dec-2024
Investments Rupees
Term deposits
Loans and others receivables -
Takaftul / Re-takaful receivables -
Retakaful recoveries apainst outstanding claims 8 11.5%6,819
Deferred wakala fee | 38,281
Prepayments 22 27,491,425
Cash & bank 9 15237337
Total assets (A) 11 125,956,312
286,320,174
In-ad missible assets as per following clauses of section 32(2) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000,
{h) Takaful / Re-takaful receivables 80,864,752
(q) -
(m) x
v =
Total of Inadmissible asseis (B) 80,864,752
Total Admissible assets (C=A-B) 205,455,422
Total Liabilities
Underwriting provisions
Provision for outstanding claims (incloding IBNR) 20 32,288.199
Contnbution deficiency reserve 5,849,042
Reserve for unearmed contnbution 68,728,554
Reserve for unearned retakaful rebate -
Contnbutions received in advance 208,826
Takaful / Re-takaful payables 14 11,143,610
Other creditors and accruals 15 4.330,229
Payable to OPF 81,269,561
Total liabilities (D)) 203,818,021
Total net Admissible assets (E=C-D) 1,637,401

Minimum Solvency Reguirement

As per requirement of scction 1K) of Takaful Rules, 2012. An Operator shall cnsure that in case of General takaful
fund, at all times, has admissible asscis in cxcess of 1ts liabilitics.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of all fmancial asscts and hiabilitics reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
Fair valuc is the price that would be reccived o scll an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction i the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.c. an cxit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The Company uses
the following hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair valuc of financial instrumenis by valuation technigue:
Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) m active market for identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techmiques based on observable mputs either directly (ic. as prices) or indircetly (i.c. denved from
priccs).

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobscrvable inputs.
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As at December 31, 2024

At fair valoe throungh profit or loss-Held for trading

At fair valoe through OCT - Available for sale

As at December 31, 2023

At fair value through profit or loss-Held for trading

At fair value through OCI - Available for sale

Operator's Fund

Category of financial assets
Loan and receivables

Loan and receivables
Takaful / retakaful receivable
Receivable from PTF

Accrucd mvestment incomec
Other financial assets

Short lerm investment
Cash and bank deposits

Category of financial Liabilities
Other financial liahilities
Oither creditors and accruals

Participants Takaful fund

Category of financial assets

Loan and receivables

Takaful / retakaful receivable

Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims
Other financial asscts

Cash and bank balances

Category of financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Outstanding claims including IBNR
Contribution received in advance
Takaful / retakaful payable
Payable to OPF

Other creditors and accruals

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

Level-1 | Level-2 | Level-d | Total
Rupees

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
1,178,030 556,414
81,269,561 32,213,898
8,174,658 1,867,740
50,000,000 50,000,000
3,090,028 12,846,344
143,712,277 97484 396
24,062,082 14,698 066
24,062,082 14,698 066
117,596,819 86,288 870
38,281 2,998,991
- 973,896
125,956,312 78,153,709
243,591.412 168.415.466
32,288,199 24,942,209
208,826 4227752
11,143,610 2,256,490
81,269,561 32,213,898
4,330,229 4321988
129,240,425 67.962 337

All significant transactions and cvents that have affected the Company's financial position and performance during
the year have been adequately discloscd in the notes to these financial statements.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding  figures have been rcarranged and reclassificd, whenever necessary to reflect more a ppropriate

presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of companson. However, no significant reclassification has been

madc duning the year.
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38 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - NON ADJUSTING EVENTS
There is no cvent causing adjustment to or disclosure in financial stalcments.

39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES NZ!HI szl
MNumber of cmployecs at the end of the year 3
Average number of cmployces K

40 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statcments have boen authonzed for issuc on March 24, 2025 by the Board of Dircctors of the company.
41 GENERAL

The figures arc rounded offto the nearest rupecs unless otherwise stated.

F e g s g R

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director
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BRANCHES NETWORK
Detail of Branches / Sub Offices across the Country

HEAD OFFICE

Asia House, 19 C/D, Block-L, Gulberg-111
Main Ferozepur Road, Lahore

Ph: 042-35865574-T8# Fax: 042-35865579
infof@asiainsurance. com.pk
www.asiainsurance.com.pk

HEALTH / AGRI/ TRAVEL DIVISION
Asia House, 19 /D, Block-L, Gulberg-111

Main Ferozepur Road, Lahore

Ph: 042-35865574-78 Fax: 042-35865579
info@asiainsurance com.pk
www.asiainsurance.com.pk

WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATION
Asia House, 19 C/D, Block-L, Gulberg-11I
Main Ferozepur Road, Lahore

Ph: 042-35865574-T% Fax: 042-35865579
takafuligasiainsurance. com.pk
infof@asiinsurance com.pk

LAHORE REGION

Branch Head

Mr. Zaheer nd Din Babar / Mr. Jaffar Abbas
Taj Arcade Office

Suite No. 33-34, 1st floor, Taj Arcade, Opposite
Services Hospital, Jail Road, Lahore

Ph: 042-315408325-27-29
Ihr-tajarcadef@asiainsurance com_pk

Branch Head

Mr. Javaid Talib

Mumtaz Cantre (Mfice

Suit No. 4, 3rd Floor, Mumiaz Centre, 15-A
Shahrah-e-Fatima Jinnah, Lahore

Ph: 042-36299472-3
mumtazcentrefgasizinsurance. com.pk

Branch Head

Mr. Sana Ullah / Mr. Mohammad Ahmad
Land Mark Plaza Office

330 3rd Floor, Landmark Plaza, Jail Raod
Lahore

Ph: 042-35764121

land mark{@asiainsurance com.pk

Branch Head

Mr. Agha Soud

Abbot Road Office

2nd Floor, Asif Center, 19-A, Abbot road
Lahore.

Ph: 04236308070 Faoc: 042-36308066
abbotf@lasiainsurance. com. pk

Branch Head

Mr. Afag Ali

Bilal Center Office

Room No. 213, 2nd Floor, Hassan Centre
$3-Brandreth Road, Lahore

Ph: 042-37672619
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Branch Head
Mr. Nadeem Haider
Patiala Complex Office

Office No. 7, 2nd Floor, Patiala Complex
2-link Mecload Road, Lahore
Ph: (42-37351138 Fax: (42-37351139

FAISALABAD REGION

Branch Head

Mr. Ch. Muhammad Ashraf

Faisalabad Regional Office

Office Mo. 08, 4th Floor, Sidig Plaza, Outside
Kutchery Bazar, Circular Road, Faisalabad
Ph: 041-2605557-58 Fax: 041-2605559
fadi@asiainsurance com.pk

Branch Head

Mr. Mian Muhammad Afzal

Faisalabad Pakistan Market Office
Office Mo. 17-C, 1st Floor Pearl City Tower
Opp. PSO Pump, Sargodha Road, Faisalabad.
Ph: 041-8815227

Branch Head

Mr. Muhammad Shafig

Faisalabad Kotwali Road Office

Taj Plaza, 3rd Floor, Opposite Shell Petrol Pump
Kotwali Road, Faisalabad

M 041-2648291_ 041-2412192

fad W@asiainsurance com. pk

Branch Head

Mr. Irfan Akram

Faisalabad Civil Lines Office

Office No. 83 2nd Floor Chandhary Arcade
Mew Civil Lines | Faisalabad

Ph: 041-2408444
irfan.akramigasiainsurance com_pk

Branch Head

Mr. Abdul Rasheed

Sargodha Office

Khan Arcade, Kutchery Road, Sargodha
Ph: D48-3721286
spdi@asiainsurance com. pk

SIALKOT REGION

Branch Head

Mr. Younas Shaheen

Sialkot Kashmir Road Office

2nd Floor, Al-Khalil Center, Kashmir Road
Sialkot Ph: 052-3240271-3
sktci@asiainsurance.com.pk

Branch Head
Mr. Ahmad Wagas Afzal
Sialkot Paka Garha Office

Plot / Building # 14 £ 15 1st Floor
Business Bay, Clock Tower, Pakka
Giarha, Sialkot

Phe 052-4591023 Fax: 052-4593022
slk@asiainsurance com_pk




BRANCHES NETWORK

MULTAN REGION

Branch Head
Mr. Syed Khalil Ahmad
Muttan Corporate Office

2nd Floor, Ghaffar Plaza, Bohra Street, Multan
Cantt Ph: 061-6306813, 061-4586814
mnifEiasiainsurance. com.pk

Branch Head
Mr. Ch. Imran Ali
Multan Nusrat Road Office

Ist Floor, Khawar Centre, Near SPP Chowk
Musratl Road, Multan Cantt

Ph: 061-4541451-2 Fax: 061-4541450
mnl2{asiainsurance com_pk

Branch Head

Mr. Attig ur Rehman

Sadigabad Office

Mukarram Plaza, Alfalah Town Sadiqabad
Dustrict Rahim Yar Khan

Ph: 06E-5T01195 Fax: D6B-5957377
sadigabadi@asiainsurance. com. pk

KARACHI REGION

Branch Head
Mr. Mohammad Ashruf Ansari
Karachi |

Room Mo 1, 1st Floor Mian Chamber, Opposite

Sindh Madrasa, Shahrae Liagat, Karachi_
Ph: 021-32428365, 32466960, 32465203
Fax: 021-32433569

k| (@asiainsurance com.pk

Branch Head

Mr. Sh. Murad Afral

Karachi Il

Office No. 510, 511, 512, Gul Tower,
LI Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

Ph: 021-32461834-5
k2{@lasainsurance. com.pk

Branch Head

Mr. Asif Masood Bhatti

Karachi Regional Office

Office Ne. 512-513, 5th Floor Falak
Caorporate City, Mithandar Police Station,
Bolton Market, Karachi.

Ph: 021-32469584-5
karachif@asisinsurance.com.pk

Branch Head

Mr. Suleman Basaria

Karachi V

806, 8th Floor, Busincss Plaza, Mumilaz
Hussain Road L1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
Ph: 021-32431032-3

s basanafiasiminsurance com pk

HAWALPINDI REGION

Branch Head

Mr. Liagat Ali Malik

Rawalpindi Canning Road Office
(Miice No. 62, 3rd Floor Nice Plaza
Canming Road Saddar, Rawalpindi
Ph: 051-5582116
rwpidasiainsurance. compk

Branch Head

Mr. Mohsin Mahmoad
Islamabad Corporate Office

Flat No.6, st Floor, Al Barkal Plasa
Punjab Market G. 13/4, Islamabad

PESHAWAR REGION

Branch Head

Mr. Barkat Ali Bhatti

Peshawar (Office

Deans trade Centre, Unit No. 1E0-TF
Saddar Road, Peshawar Cantt

Ph: 091-5603040
pew(dlasiamsurance com.pk

Branch Head

Mr. Aijaz Rafique

Hyderabhad Office

2nd Floor, Banglow Mo 202, Arian Cenler
Block D Nuit No. 7 Latifabad, Hyderabad
Ph: 022-3864308

hydi@asiainsurance_com_pk

Branch Head

Mr. Syed Wagas Hussain Shah
Muzaffarabad Office

2nd Floor Mear Baba Bakery
Giojra MuerafTarabad, AJTK

Ph: 0582-2446242
misiasiainsurance. com_pk

Branch Head

Mr. Faheem Akhtar

Gillgit Office

Office No. 14, 2nd Floor, Meer Shah Market
Shahrah-e-Quaid Azam, Jutial Gilgit.

Abbotabad Office
Representative Office
abbtiidasiainsurance.com.pk

We've got You covered
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Optio

\ o T P
I'We of being a member of Asia Insurance Company Limited and holder
of {number of shares) Ordinary Shares as per Registered Folio Mo, herelyy
appoint Mr./Ms. of or failing whom Mr./Ms. of

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the {annual, extraordinary general
mecting as the case may be) of the Company to be held on and at any adjourncd thercof.
Signed under my/our this day of . 20

Sign Across
Revenue Stamp
Rs. 5/- Signature should agree
With the specimen signalure

Registeraed with the Company
Signed in presence oft

Signature of Withess Signature of Withess
Option 2

E-voting as per The Companies (E-voting) R lations. 2016

L'We, of being a member of Asia Inswrance Company Limited and holder
of, inumber of shares) Ordinary Shares as per Registered Folio No.

hereby appoint for e-voting through intermediary and hereby consent the appointment of execution i_vf'f'-::er
as proxy and will exercise e-voting as per the Companies (E-voting) Regulations, 2016 and
hereby demand for poll for resolution,

My secured email address is . Please send login details, password and electronic
signature through email.

Sign Across
Revenue Stamp
Es. 5/-

Signature should agree
With the specimen signature

Registered with the Company
Signed in presence of:

Sig;rmture of Witness Signature of Witness

Thiz form of Proxy. duly completod. must be deposited at the Compiny's Begistered Office st Asia House, |9 C/D. Block-L. Gulberg 111,
Bain Ferozpur Boad. Lahove, not Later than 45 hows before the fime appodinted for the meeting.

CDC Sharcholders and their Proxies are ¢ach sequested 1o attach sttested photocopy of their Compuoterized Mational Identity Cavd (CRIC)
o Passport with this proxy form befuoee submizsion we the Company.

CDC Sharcholders or their Proxies are reguested to bring with them their Original Computenized Mational Identiy Card or Pazsport slong
with the Participant's D number aond their account number at the ume ol attending the Annual General Meeting in ovder to facilitate their
identification.
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2024
ANNUAL
REPORT

ADDRESS
Asia House 19 C/D, L Block Gulberg-IIi,
Main Ferozpur Road, Lahore

CALL

UAN | 0311=111-2742
Ph: 042-35865574-78
FAX: 042-35865579

EMAIL

info@asiginsurance.com.pk

Yisit our website



